
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              December 17, 2019

          

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a 
card  from  the Board Clerk and  indicate each  item you would  like  to discuss.   Return  the completed card  to  the Board Clerk before  the Board 
considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it. 

Any member  of  the  public may  also make  comments  during  the  scheduled  “Public  Comment”  period  on  this  agenda  concerning  any  subject 
related to the Board of Supervisors or County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period.
Public Notices: (1)    In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,  if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 8780373.  (28 CFR 35.10235.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
County  to  make  reasonable  arrangements  to  ensure  accessibility  to  this  meeting.  Should  you  because  of  a  disability  require  appropriate 
alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda 
available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item 
for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,  is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be 
available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).              
Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at 
the Board’s convenience.

December 17, 2019  9:00 AM
 

  1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

  2. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

  3. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)
 

  4. INTRODUCTIONS  The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: Orion L. Boucher, HHS 
Specialist  IV,  Savannah  Cole,  Social  Worker  IV,  Emily  Faircloth,  Prevention  Specialist,  Katelyn  Lent, 
Prevention Specialist, and Amber Williams, Administrative Analyst II, Health and Human Services; and Luis 
Camacho Rodriguez, Heavy Equipment Mechanic Trainee, Public Works.

 

DEPARTMENTAL  PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
 

5. County Administrator  Request Board: A) approve the attached job description; 
and B) find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: 1) 
the availability of funding for one (1) Code Enforcement Officer exists in the General 
Fund CAO Budget, as certified by the  County Administrator and AuditorController; 
2) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy 
could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is 
more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and 3) approve the hiring of 
one (1) Code Enforcement Officer at Range 68 ($4,444  $5,400).

 

6. Health & Human Services  Fiscal  Request Board find that, consistent with the 
adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for the 
requested position exists in the various nonGeneral Fund HHS budgets (no County 
General Funds), as certified by the HHS Director  and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and the AuditorController; B) where internal candidates meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal 
recruitment, an external recruitment is more appropriate; C) approve the hiring of one 
(1) Office Technician III at Range 63 ($3,944  $4,799); and D) if an internal 
candidate is hired as a result of the open recruitment, authorize HHS to backfill 
resulting vacancy.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              December 17, 2019

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator)
 

7. County Administrator  Personnel  Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019
59, titled, “Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, 
Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer Paid Member Contribution," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign.

 

8. County Administrator  Recycling & Waste Management  Request Board 
approve Resolution No. 201960, waiving solid waste disposal and gate fees up to 
$100 for trash and litter removed during the Owens River CleanUp event, Saturday, 
February 8, 2020, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.

 

9. Coroner  Request your Board approve Amendment #1 to the contract between the 
County of Inyo and William D. Stinnett, for Personal Services as a County Officer, 
amending the contract by: A) Changing the end date of the contract to June 30, 
2020; and B) Increasing the contract amount by $10,000 for a not to exceed amount 
of $68,000.

 

10. Planning Department  Request Board certify that funds expended by Inyo County 
through the Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office for Federal Fiscal Year 
2019 (October 1, 2018  September 30, 2019) were expended in accordance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, and authorize the Chairperson to sign the certification.

 

11. Sheriff  Request Board approve Amendment No. 01 to the Taser Assurance Plan 
Agreement between the County of Inyo and Axon Enterprises, Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ, 
adding the redaction assistant license, five (5) additional body cameras and 
increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $127,262, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets and authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

12. Treasurer/Tax Collector  Request Board: A) declare HdL SOFTWARE, LLC of 
Brea, CA a solesource provider of business licensing software services; B) approve 
the contract between the County of Inyo and HdL SOFTWARE, LLC of Brea, CA for 
the provision of business licensing software services in an amount not to exceed 
$57,000.00 for the period of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience)
 

13. Water Department  Request Board consider the Letters of Interest received for 
appointment to the Water Commission and appoint two Water Commissioners with 
terms ending December 31, 2023.

 

14. Clerk of the Board  Request Board consider three (3) Letters of Interest received 
for one (1) vacancy on the Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Commission, and appoint 
one of those individuals to an unexpired fouryear term ending October 6, 2021.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              December 17, 2019

15. County Counsel/County Administrator  Request Board approve proposed 
Resolution No. 201961, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California, Approving and Directing Execution of a Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the California Municipal Finance 
Authority, Approving the Obtaining of a Loan by the Authority for the Purpose of 
Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition, Construction and Improvement of Certain 
Facilities for the Benefit of Wolverine/Inyo LLC, and Approving the First Amendment 
to Build to Suit Lease Agreement," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. (This 
resolution will facilitate financing for the County's future consolidated office building, 
which is being built by a private developer {Wolverine/Inyo LLC}. The County is not 
itself loaning money or assuming any obligations with respect to the financing; rather 
its "approval" is merely authorizing the Authority to proceed with the loan. The 
Authority requires the County to be a member of the JPA at the time the loan is 
made. There is no cost or obligation to the County in joining the JPA; on the contrary, 
the County may receive a portion of the Authority's fees {estimated at $8,000
10,000}. And the County can withdraw from the JPA at any time after the loan is 
made. The Resolution also authorizes certain amendments of the existing lease 
agreement, which are necessary and consistent with the proposed financing.)

 

16. Planning Department  Request Board: A) conduct a workshop on proposed 
changes to the County's Shortterm Rental of Residential Properties Ordinance; and 
B) provide comments and direction to staff.

 

17. Planning Department  Request Board: A) conduct workshop on the draft scoping 
comment letter for the Bureau of Land Management's Alabama Hills Management 
Plan; and B) provide comments and potentially direction to staff to send the comment 
letter.

 

18. County Administrator  Parks & Recreation  Request Board: A) conduct a State 
of the Parks workshop and provide followup direction to staff; and B) consider 
adopting the Inyo County Statement of Philosophy for Park Maintenance and 
Improvement to be used as a guideline for prioritizing parks and campgrounds 
projects.

 

19. Health & Human Services  Request Board ratify and approve the contract between 
the County of Inyo and Brian McKinney, M.D. Inc. for jail psychiatry services in an 
amount not to exceed $5,000.00, for the period of July 1, 2019 to September 30, 
2019, and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign the contract and HIPPA 
Business Associate Agreement.

 

20. Health & Human Services  Request Board ratify and approve the payment of 
$1,633.00 to Maria Serna for per diem reimbursement for the period of FY 16/17 
through FY 18/19.

 

21. Health & Human Services  Fiscal  Request Board ratify and approve purchases 
from Pueblo Hotel Supply for kitchen equipment in the amount of $14,190.37.

 

22. County Administrator  Emergency Services  Request Board amend the Fiscal 
Year 20192020 Budget as follows: A) create a new budget titled CDFWOil Spill 
Prevention Response Grant (budget number to be determined by the Auditor
Controller); and B) increase revenue in State Grants (Revenue Code #4498) by 
$35,000 and increase appropriation in Equipment (Object Code #5650) by $35,000 
(4/5ths vote required).

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              December 17, 2019

23. Clerk of the Board  Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of December 10, 2019.

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff)
 

  24. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

CORRESPONDENCE  INFORMATIONAL 
 

  25. TreasurerTax Collector  Treasury Status Report for the Quarter Ending March 31, 
2019.

 

  26. Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control  Application for Person to Person 
Transfer of OffSale Beer and Wine alcohol license from Boulder Creek Resort, LLC 
to JHK Holdings LLC for Boulder Creek RV Resort, 2550 State Highway 395, Lone 
Pine, CA.

 



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Clint Quilter 
 
SUBJECT:  Hiring of Code Enforcement Officer 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the attached job description; and B) find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized 
Position Review Policy: 1) the availability of funding for one (1) Code Enforcement Officer exists in the General 
Fund CAO Budget, as certified by the  County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; 2) where internal candidates 
may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, 
but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and 3) approve the hiring of one 
(1) Code Enforcement Officer at Range 68 ($4,444 - $5,400).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
During the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget hearings, the Board approved, funded and authorized the filling of a Code 
Enforcement Officer position. This position will reside within the CAO's office. 

Staff is requesting that the Board approve the job description for the position. While the Board has already 
authorized filling the position, we are asking you to affirm this now that a job description is available.

Future workshops will be held with the Board to come to a clear understanding of the enforcement posture that 
you want to present.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
1. Not approve the position. This would be contrary to previous Board direction

2. Provide staff direction to modify the job description.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor-Controller
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
This position is included in the FY 2019-20 Board Adopted Budget
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER Job Description.
 
APPROVALS:
Clint Quilter Created/Initiated - 12/6/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/9/2019
Clint Quilter Approved - 12/11/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/11/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/12/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 12/12/2019



CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

DEFINITION

Under the general supervision of the County Administrator or designee, seeks compliance with 
sections of the Municipal Code, ordinances and resolutions in such areas a planning, zoning, 
community nuisance, property maintenance, housing, signs, and related areas, and performs 
related work as required.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED

No supervision exercised.

EXAMPLES OF IMPORTANT AND ESSENTIAL DUTIES

Responds to public inquiries regarding permits and/or licenses, explains  Count of Inyo  Code 
requirements and procedures.

Ascertains and gathers facts related to applicable ordinances, codes, laws, rules, and regulations and 
determines and institutes proper action to be taken.

Responds to and investigates complaints regarding violations of County ordinances; issues 
notices of violations; stipulates necessary changes for ordinance compliance; takes appropriate 
action to insure compliance.

Prepares reports and recommendations on code enforcement matters, and gams voluntary 
compliance.

Coordinates actions with other departments, jurisdictions or regulatory agencies.

Prepares case information and presents evidence at appeal hearings and other legal proceedings. 

Explains, interprets, and makes presentations to community groups and businesses.

Maintains records of applications, inspections, investigations, violations, hearings and related data. 

Performs field surveys and inspections related to above functions.



EXAMPLES OF IMPORTANT AND ESSENTIAL DUTIES

Assists the County of Inyo staff in a variety of duties including researching and rewriting 
ordinances and performing a variety of office functions.

Perform related duties and responsibilities as assigned.

OTHER JOB RELATED DUTIES

Completes special projects as assigned.

Performs related duties and responsibilities as required.

JOB RELATED AND ESSENTIAL QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Municipal Code enforcement methods and procedures. 

Principles of investigation, interviewing, and report writing.

Safe and efficient work practices related to inspections and enforcement duties. 

Techniques of negotiations and conflict resolution.

Skill to:

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with individuals and citizens groups, 
businesses, and other internal and external agencies.

Gather and analyze data for the purpose of preparing accurate and concise written and 
statistical reports.

Interpret and implement assigned regulations, policies, and procedures as they are related to 
the program.

Interpret  county codes and determining corrective action.

Operate an office computer and a variety of word processing and software applications.

Ability to:

Apply analytical skills and understand impact and consequences of decisions and actions.



Ability to:

Read and interpret laws, codes, ordinances and policies.

Process information and data in a relevant manner to reach reasonable conclusions and make 
practical decisions.

Travel to remote sites within the  county to conduct 

inspections. Work indoors or outdoors in a variety of 

climatic conditions.

Ability to express oneself clearly and concisely both orally and in writing. 

Bilingual Spanish speaking skills highly desirable.

Meet deadlines, work independently, and operate office equipment. 

To work alternative work schedules.

Experience and Training Guidelines

Any combination equivalent to experience and training that would provide the required 
knowledge, skills, and abilities for a Code Enforcement Officer would be qualifying. A 
typical way to obtain the knowledge, skills, and abilities would be:

Experience:

Two (2) years of experience dealing with the public in any of the following types of 
work: code enforcement, planning, building inspection, investigation, or other closely 
related field. Additional related experience may be substituted for the education 
requirement below to a maximum of one (1) year. Local government experience 
desired.

Training:

Two (2) years of undergraduate course work from an accredited college or university 
(equivalent to 60 semester units or 90 quarter units).

License or Certificate:

Possession of a valid California driver's license authorizing operation of an 
automobile or light truck.



License or Certificate:

P.O.S.T. approved Penal Code 832 certification may be required prior to 
completion of the probationary period. Certification as a Code Enforcement 
Officer from an organization approved by the California Association of Code 
Enforcement Officers is desirable.

Special Requirements

Essential duties require the following physical skills and work environment:

Ability to work in a standard office environment with the ability to sit, stand, walk, 
kneel, crouch, twist, climb, crawl, stoop, squat and lift 20 lbs.; exposure to noise, 
outdoors, dust, vibration, confining work space, chemicals, mechanical hazards, and 
electric hazards; ability to travel to different sites and locations. Work environment is 
expect to be office conditions 50% of time and outdoors in varying conditions 50% of 
time.



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Fiscal
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  Request for authorization to hire a full time Office Technician III in the HHS Fiscal division. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for the requested position exists in the various non-General Fund HHS budgets (no County General 
Funds), as certified by the HHS Director  and concurred with by the County Administrator and the Auditor-
Controller; B) where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be 
filled through an internal recruitment, an external recruitment is more appropriate; C) approve the hiring of one (1) 
Office Technician III at Range 63 ($3,944 - $4,799); and D) if an internal candidate is hired as a result of the open 
recruitment, authorize HHS to backfill resulting vacancy.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
We are requesting to fill a budgeted full time Office Technician III position in the HHS Fiscal Division, which will 
become vacant when an employee retires at the end of the year.  This position is responsible for receiving and 
processing payables for all HHS divisions; depositing and tracking payments as well as State and Federal 
revenue; assisting the Administrative Analysts in maintaining more complex tracking for revenues/expenditures; 
compiling monthly program Account Director Reports; processing HHS payroll; State quarterly invoicing; 
reconciling internal charges to appropriate HHS budgets; and Behavioral Health and Public Health billing. This 
position also cross-trains within HHS Fiscal to insure that there is coverage across multiple budgets in case of 
absences or vacancies.  The Department respectfully requests authorization to recruit and hire an Office 
Technician III and authorize the Department to fill any subsequent vacancy if the position is filled by an internal 
candidate from the department.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the filling of this position which could negatively impact the timeliness of 
claims being submitted and could cause delays in payments to vendors due to the shortage of staff in the fiscal 
division.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Auditor’s Office, multiple State Departments
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
State, Federal, Health, Social Services and Behavioral Health Realignment funds. This position is budgeted 5% 
in Health (045100), 80% in Mental Health (045200), 5% in SUD (045315), and 10% in Social Services (055800) 
in the Salaries and Benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 11/15/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/18/2019
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 12/5/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 12/6/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/10/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/10/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/11/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/12/2019
Rhiannon Baker Final Approval - 12/12/2019



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Personnel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-59, titled, “Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, 
State of California, Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer Paid Member Contribution," and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This Resolution will complete the the changes that were agreed to in the Deputy Sheriff's Association 
Memorandum of Understand that was approved by your Board in October 2019.  This Resolution will provide for 
the Classic employees to begin paying 4.5% of the employees side of retirement.  This change will become 
effective December 26, 2019.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approve the resolution and instruct negotiators to begin negotiations on this section of the MOU.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. EPMC Resolution 2019
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/10/2019
Sue Dishion New - 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/10/2019



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/11/2019



WHEREAS, the ggygrning body of the County of Inyo has the authority to implement
Govemment Code Section 20636(c) (4) pursuant to Section ZOegt;

WHEREAS, the governing body of the County of Inyo has written labor policies and agreements
which specifically provide for the normal member contributions to be paid by the imploy.r, undr.ported as
additional compensation;

WHEREAS, one of the steps in the procedures to implement Section 20691 is the adoption by the
governing body of the County of Inyo of a Resolution to commence paying and reporting the value olsaid
Employer Paid Member Contributions (EpMC);

WHEREAS, the governing body of the County of Inyo has identified the following conditions for
the purpose of its election to pay EpMC;

' This benefit shall apply to employees represented by the Qeputy Sheriff s Association
(DSA) and the Law Enforcement Administrator Assocration g,rae;.

This benefit shall consist of paying 4.5yo of the member's normal contributions as
EPMC, and reporting the same percent of compensation earnable as additional
compensation.

RESOLUTION 2OI9 -

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, PAYING AND REPORTING THE VAL-UE OF EMPLOYER PAID

MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS

a

o The effective date of this Resorution shalr be December 26,2019.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of the County of Inyo elects to
pay and report the value of EPMC, as set forth above.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this lTth day of December 2019, by the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors, County oflnyo, by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Rick Pucci
Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors
County of Inyo, State of California

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

Darcy Ellis
Assistant Clerk of the Board

IEPMC Resolution 12/17 I 19



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Cap Aubrey 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of waiver of fees for Owens River Clean-Up Event. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-60, waiving solid waste disposal and gate fees up to $100 for trash 
and litter removed during the Owens River Clean-Up event, Saturday, February 8, 2020, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
As a community service, The California Waterfowl Association and other organizations are holding a Clean-Up of 
the Owens River event on Saturday, February 8, 2020.

The organization has requested a waiver of solid waste disposal and gate fees for waste collected at the event. 
The California Waterfowl Association will be separating items that can be recycled to help Inyo County meet our 
recycling goals, and bringing only trash collected from the Owens River Clean-Up to the Bishop-Sunland Landfill. 
Waste attributable to the clean-up will be tracked by the Landfill Gate Attendant. 

The attached resolution waives the fees as requested.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not waive these fees. The cost will then be borne by the event’s organizers.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
There is a minimal amount of revenue to the Waste Management Enterprise Fund that may be lost as a result of 
the waiver of these fees.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Owens River Clean Up FEE WAIVER RESOLUTION 2019
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 11/25/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/26/2019
Teresa Elliott Approved - 11/26/2019
Leslie Chapman Approved - 12/3/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/3/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/3/2019
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/4/2019



RESOLUTION NO. ___________

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISOR, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, WAIVING SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AND GATE FEES FOR TRASH 

AND LITTER REMOVAL DURING THE OWENS RIVER CLEAN UP

              WHEREAS, on February 8, 2020 the California Waterfowl Association will be 
conducting a community clean-up of the Owens River; and

WHEREAS, the sponsors have requested a waiver of solid waste disposal and gate fees 
for the trash collected at the event, and

              WHEREAS, Inyo County recognizes the benefit of public access to lands owned and 
managed by the City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, and desires to assist the 
City and public in keeping these lands clean and beautiful; and

WHEREAS, all recyclable materials collected at the event will be separated and 
disposed of properly at the County Landfill or other recycling center; and

WHEREAS, Inyo County will track the volume and associated landfill fees attributable 
to the event; and 

WHEREAS, all trash and litter coming from the Owens River Clean-Up will be 
transported by Preferred Waste and deposited in the Bishop-Sunland Landfill; and

WHEREAS, trash or litter coming from any other source will not be represented as 
having been collected at the Owens River Clean-Up.

              NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, 
pursuant to Section 7.10.080 of the Inyo County Code, hereby waives gate and waste disposal 
fees for the disposal of litter and trash resulting from the California Waterfowl Association’s 
Owens River Clean-Up for a total up to $100.

              BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this fee waiver shall cover disposal fees for the 
disposal of material from February 8, 2020 to February 10, 2020.

             PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 17th day of December, 2019, by the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:  
                                                 _______________________________________________
                                                  Rick Pucci, Chairperson
                                                  Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

CLINT QUILTER
Clerk of the Board

By:  ________________________________
         Darcy Ellis, Assistant



County of Inyo

Coroner
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Denelle Carrington 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Amendment #1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and William D. Stinnett for 
Personal Services as a County Officer. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request your Board approve Amendment #1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and William D. Stinnett, 
for Personal Services as a County Officer, amending the contract by: A) Changing the end date of the contract to 
June 30, 2020; and B) Increasing the contract amount by $10,000 for a not to exceed amount of $68,000.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This amendment is being brought before your Board to extend the date through June 30, 2020 and to increase 
the contract amount by $10,000 for a not to exceed amount of $68,000 to cover the expenditures through the end 
of the fiscal year.

Mr. Stinnett is the current Deputy Coroner of the Northern portion of Inyo County. As noted in the past, via 
Contract, the contractors for Coroner services are available 24/7, 365 days a year (other than vacation time). 
They do not participate in PERS.

This amendment through June 30th will allow the Coroner, Jason Molinar, to recruit for another Deputy Coroner, 
as Mr. Stinnett is planning on retiring sometime next year.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Your Board approved an original contract with Mr. Stinnett on December 20, 2016 for a period of two years.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this amendment, which is not recommended as this position is critical 
for maintaining the current levels at the Coroners Office.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract amendment is included in the Coroner Budget (023500) in the salaries and benefits 
object codes.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Stinnett Amendment #1
2. Original Contract - Stinnett
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 12/3/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2019
Denelle Carrington Approved - 12/5/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/6/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/6/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/6/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 12/7/2019



2

AMENDMENT NUMBERlTO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

William D. Stinnett
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES

AS A COUNTY OFFICER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and William D. Stinnett
(hereinafter referred to as "Office/'), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of personal

Services as a County Officer, dated December 20, 2015, on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 2Oi. for
the term from Januarv 1, 2017 to December 3L, 2019.

WHEREAS, County and Officer do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in
written form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original
Agreement to maintain continuity.

County and Officer hereby amend such Agreement as follows

TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Januarv 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020 unless sooner
terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Agreement. The total sum of the all payments made by the
County to Officer for services and work performed under this Agreement, including overtime, travel, and per diem
expenses, if any, and all payments made by the County to any Federal, State, County, or municipal agency by
reason of Officer's employment under this contract, including employer's social security contributions and state
disability insurance, if any, shall not exceed 563,000 dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Officer for services or work
performed, including overtime, travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is December 1, 2019.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 201
(Appointed County Officer)

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER l TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
William D. Stinnett

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES

AS A COUNTY OFFICER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

_ DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO OFFICE

/z/4./l
Signature

ByBy

1,,t,/t 12tn -*rro4tDated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIry

tr----_

County Counsel

APPROVED TO ACCOUNTING

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL R EQUIREMENTS

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT

County Risk Manager

or

Dated: o>

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 201
(Appointed County Officer)

Page 2

20

Su.o-D





























County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board certify that funds expended by Inyo County through the Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment 
Office for Federal Fiscal Year 2019 (October 1, 2018 - September 30, 2019) were expended in accordance with 
the provisions of applicable laws, and authorize the Chairperson to sign the certification.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Section 116(c) of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (Act), as amended, defines the activities that may be 
undertaken by affected units of local government, which include monitoring, oversight, and impact assessment. 
The Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 and the Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2010 (Public Law 111-85) prohibit the use of these funds to pursue legislation against the 
U.S. Government, for any lobbying activity, or to support multi-state efforts or other coalition building activities 
inconsistent with the restrictions contained in the Act. Under the Energy and Water Development and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Act, in Federal Fiscal Year 2016, monies were expended by Inyo County which had 
been previously provided to the County by the U.S. Department of Energy to conduct appropriate activities and 
participate in licensing activities. The Nuclear Waste Policy Act requires that the County annually certify that the 
funds were used in accordance with the Act and the 2010 Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act (Public Law 111-85).  

The Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office under the guidance of the Planning Department has been 
responsible for the expenditure of the funds received from the Department of Energy. These funds have been 
expended in accordance with the relevant Federal laws as stated in the certification. The attached certification 
form states that the monies received from the U.S. Department of Energy were expended by Inyo County on 
activities that are allowable as defined under applicable federal laws, including the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 
1982, Public Law 97-425 and the 2010 Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies Appropriations 
Act (Public Law 111-85). This year’s expenditures are a little higher than last year’s as funds were used to 
replace the plotter that had been purchased for the Yucca Mountain office. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to submit the annual certification; however, if a certification is not submitted, the 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

County would no longer be eligible to receive funds for this program.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Inyo County is recognized as an Affected Unit of Local Government (AULG). The Yucca Mountain Repository 
Assessment Office is funded by the U.S. Department of Energy and budgeted within the Yucca Mountain 
Oversight Budget #620605.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Certification FY2019
2. 2019 Fund Expenditures and Revenues
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 11/25/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/26/2019
Cathreen Richards Approved - 12/2/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/2/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 12/3/2019



CERTIFICATION OF EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS 

FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 

 

This is to certify that Inyo County, California has expended funds during Federal Fiscal 

Year 2019 in the amount $36,248.86 provided to it through direct payment by the U.S. 

Department of Energy, and that all such expenditures were for allowable activities as 

defined under applicable federal laws, including the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, 

Public Law 97-425 and Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies 

Appropriations Act, 2010 (Public Law 111-85).   

 

It is further certified that none of the funds were: (1) used directly or indirectly to 

influence legislative action on any matter pending before Congress or a State legislature 

or for lobbying activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1913; (2) used for litigation expenses; or 

(3) used to support multi-state efforts or other coalition building activities inconsistent 

with the restrictions contained in the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, Public Law 97-

425, and the Act.   

 

 

 

 

BY:     

Rick Pucci, Chairperson                   Date 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST:      

         Darcy Ellis, Board Clerk                            Date 

 

 

 

NOTE: If the County fails to provide such certification by December 31, 2019, 

DOE is expressly prohibited from making further direct payments to the 

County.  Please forward the fully executed certification to: 

 

 

 

U.S. Department of Energy 

ATTN: John Kotek   

Office of the Assistant Secretary 

For Nuclear Energy                                 

1000 Independence Avenue SW 

Washington, DC 20585  

 









County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Office of the Sheriff 
 
SUBJECT:  Amend Taser Enterprises agreement to include additional digital editing and purchase additional 
body cameras. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 01 to the Taser Assurance Plan Agreement between the County of Inyo 
and Axon Enterprises, Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ, adding the redaction assistant license, five (5) additional body 
cameras and increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $127,262, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
of future budgets and authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Sheriff's Office is requesting to purchase additional body cameras to have on hand as replacement and 
back-up cameras. We are also requesting to purchase the redaction assistant license. The redaction assistant 
tool is a critical component of the Axon audio/visual evidence suite. The enhanced features will allow us to meet 
new evidence policies effected by legislative change.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
On March 26, 2019, your Board declared Axon a sole source provider of body cameras, approved the purchase 
of 25 body cams and authorized a 5 year agreement for licensing, storage and maintenance plan for $93,687.30.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny this request. Staff does not recommend this action. At this time we have a very 
limited supply of body cameras on hand. In the event that more than one was damaged or malfunctioned, we 
would not be able to equip our staff in accordance with our policies. The redaction assistant tool will significantly 
reduce the man hours needed to process audio/visual evidence in accordance with local, state and federal 
policies and government code.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor's Office
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
Current expenses will be paid from multiple budgets, and object codes within our department budget authority. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

There is sufficient budget split between all Sheriff divisions to make these payments. Future expenses will be 
included in future budget requests.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Axon Contract
2. Axon Amendment 01
3. 20191216 Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA - Add 5 Body 2 10 Basic to 21234 11.20.19
4. 20191216 Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA - Add Redaction Assistant to 21234 Special Rate 11.20.19
5. Axon Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 11/22/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/26/2019
Riannah Reade Approved - 12/3/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/3/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/5/2019
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 12/5/2019





















Amendment No. 1 to Inyo-Axon Contract
Page 1

062912           

AMENDMENT NUMBER (1) ONE TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF BODY-WORN CAMERAS AND ASSOCIATED ACCESSORIES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Axon Enterprise, Inc. 
(hereinafter referred to as “Axon”), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of body-worn 
cameras and associated accessories dated March 29, 2019, for  the term from March 26, 2019 to March 
26, 2024 

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity. 

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 

Per attached vendor specifications, the County and Contractor mutually desire to modify the Agreement 
to 

1. Add a license to Axon’s redaction assistant software
2. Add five (5) additional body-worn cameras
3. Increase the amount of the Agreement to an amount not to exceed $127,262, contingent on the 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors’ approval of future budgets 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is December 27, 2019.



Amendment No. 1 to Inyo-Axon Contract
Page 2

062912

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same. 

AMENDMENT NUMBER (1) ONE TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF BODY-WORN CAMERAS AND ASSOCIATED ACCESSORIES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________.

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By: ____________________________________              By: __________________________________
       Signature 

Dated:_________________________________  
      ___________________________________

        Type or Print

Dated: ________________________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

________________________________________
County Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

_________________________________________
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

_________________________________________
Personnel Services 

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

__________________________________________
County Risk Manager 



Payment Terms: Net 30

Delivery Method: Fedex - Ground

Contract Number: 00021234

Q-236708-43789.607KP

Year 1

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price 
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages

80012
BASIC EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE: YEAR 1 

PAYMENT
10 75.00 75.00 750.00

85070
TECH ASSURANCE PLAN  ANNUAL PAYMENT, 

BODYCAM
5 100.00 100.00 500.00

85110 EVIDENCE.COM INCLUDED STORAGE 100 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hardware

74001
AXON CAMERA ASSEMBLY, ONLINE, AXON BODY 

2, BLK
5 499.00 499.00 2,495.00

74021
MAGNET MOUNT, THICK OUTERWEAR, AXON 

RAPIDLOCK
5 0.00 0.00 0.00

11507 MOLLE MOUNT, SINGLE, AXON RAPIDLOCK 5 0.00 0.00 0.00

11553 SYNC CABLE, USB A TO 2.5MM 5 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal 3,745.00

Estimated Shipping 0.00

Estimated Tax 232.12

Total 3,977.12

Year 2

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price 
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages

80013
BASIC EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE: YEAR 2 

PAYMENT
10 180.00 180.00 1,800.00

85070
TECH ASSURANCE PLAN  ANNUAL PAYMENT, 

BODYCAM
5 240.00 240.00 1,200.00

Issued: 11/20/2019

Quote Expiration: 11/29/2019 

Account Number: 126706 
Axon Enterprise, Inc.
17800 N 85th St.

Scottsdale, Arizona 85255

United States

Phone: (800) 978-2737

Protect Life.

PRIMARY CONTACT

Tim Bachman

Phone: (760) 878-0235

Email: tbachman@inyocounty.us

BILL TO

Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA

550 S. Clay Street

Independence, CA 93526

US

SHIP TO

Tim Bachman

Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA

550 S. Clay Street

Independence, CA 93526

US

SALES REPRESENTATIVE

Kyle Panasewicz

Phone: (480) 905-2071

Email: kylep@axon.com

Fax: (480) 658-0673

Q-236708-43789.607KP

1



Year 2 (Continued)

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages (Continued)

85110 EVIDENCE.COM INCLUDED STORAGE 100 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal 3,000.00

Estimated Tax 93.00

Total 3,093.00

Year 3

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages

80014
BASIC EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE: YEAR 3 

PAYMENT
10 180.00 180.00 1,800.00

85070
TECH ASSURANCE PLAN  ANNUAL PAYMENT, 

BODYCAM
5 240.00 240.00 1,200.00

85110 EVIDENCE.COM INCLUDED STORAGE 100 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal 3,000.00

Estimated Tax 93.00

Total 3,093.00

Year 4

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages

80015
BASIC EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE: YEAR 4 

PAYMENT
10 180.00 180.00 1,800.00

85070
TECH ASSURANCE PLAN  ANNUAL PAYMENT, 

BODYCAM
5 240.00 240.00 1,200.00

85110 EVIDENCE.COM INCLUDED STORAGE 100 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal 3,000.00

Estimated Tax 93.00

Total 3,093.00

Year 5

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages

80016
BASIC EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE: YEAR 5 

PAYMENT
10 180.00 180.00 1,800.00

85070
TECH ASSURANCE PLAN  ANNUAL PAYMENT, 

BODYCAM
5 240.00 240.00 1,200.00

Protect Life.
Q-236708-43789.607KP

2



Year 5 (Continued)

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Axon Plans & Packages (Continued)

85110 EVIDENCE.COM INCLUDED STORAGE 100 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal 3,000.00

Estimated Tax 93.00

Total 3,093.00

Grand Total 16,349.12

Protect Life.
Q-236708-43789.607KP

3



Summary of Payments

Payment Amount (USD)

Year 1 3,977.12

Year 2 3,093.00

Year 3 3,093.00

Year 4 3,093.00

Year 5 3,093.00

Grand Total 16,349.12

Protect Life.
Q-236708-43789.607KP

4



Notes

This quote is co-termed with quote Q-181520 (executed contract #21234). Year one has been prorated to 5 months to align agency annual billing dates. This has been done 

according to an anticipated license start date of 1/1/20.  The end date of these subscriptions is subject to change if the ship/start date changes. 

Axon Body 2 hardware contained in this quote will be covered under the Taser Assurance Plan, and will be eligible for replacement at the same time as the equipment 

originally deployed on this existing contract as determined by quote Q-181520 (contract #21234).

Tax is subject to change at order processing with valid exemption.

Axon’s Sales Terms and Conditions

This Quote is limited to and conditional upon your acceptance of the provisions set forth herein and Axon’s Master Services and Purchasing Agreement 

(posted at www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions), as well as the attached Statement of Work (SOW) for Axon Fleet and/or Axon Interview 

Room purchase, if applicable. Any purchase order issued in response to this Quote is subject solely to the above referenced terms and conditions. By 

signing below, you represent that you are lawfully able to enter into contracts. If you are signing on behalf of an entity (including but not limited to the 

company, municipality, or government agency for whom you work), you represent to Axon that you have legal authority to bind that entity. If you do not 

have this authority, please do not sign this Quote.

Signature: CustSIG Date: CustDate

Name (Print): CustName Title: CustTitle

PO#  (Or write

N/A): CustPo

Please sign and email to Kyle Panasewicz at kylep@axon.com or fax to (480) 658-0673

Thank you for being a valued Axon customer. For your convenience on your next order, please check out our online store buy.axon.com

‘Protect Life’© and TASER® are registered trademarks of Axon Enterprise, Inc, registered in the U.S. © 2013 Axon 

Enterprise, Inc. All rights reserved.

Protect Life.
Q-236708-43789.607KP

5

***Axon Internal Use Only***

Review 1 Review 2

SFDC Contract #:

Order Type:

RMA #:

Address Used:

SO #:

Comments:

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http://www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions&data=01|01|mbeckman@seismic.com|4ccdc899ca6f40d8e7d808d5dba3faac|3566798d3d314a2fa3df3a4fe9c9fd40|1&sdata=VKzc640TU9MtzniB25QbEoQuIfpfoYnwDgw3Qrn9kD8%3D&reserved=0
https://buy.axon.com/


Payment Terms: Net 30

Delivery Method: Fedex - Ground

Contract Number: 00021234

Q-220209-43789.605KP

Year 1

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price 
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Other

73470
REDACTION ASSISTANT 11-30 SWORN AGENCY-

WIDE LICENSE: 5 YEAR
1 0.00 0.00 0.00

73473
REDACTION ASSISTANT 11-30 SWORN ANNUAL 

PAYMENT
1 1,625.00 1,625.00 1,625.00

Subtotal 1,625.00

Estimated Shipping 0.00

Estimated Tax 0.00

Total 1,625.00

Year 2

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price 
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Other

73473
REDACTION ASSISTANT 11-30 SWORN ANNUAL 

PAYMENT
1 3,900.00 3,900.00 3,900.00

Subtotal 3,900.00

Estimated Tax 0.00

Total 3,900.00

Issued: 11/20/2019

Quote Expiration: 12/15/2019 

Account Number: 126706 
Axon Enterprise, Inc.
17800 N 85th St.

Scottsdale, Arizona 85255

United States

Phone: (800) 978-2737

Protect Life.

PRIMARY CONTACT

Tim Bachman

Phone: (760) 878-0235

Email: tbachman@inyocounty.us

BILL TO

Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA

550 S. Clay Street

Independence, CA 93526

US

SHIP TO

Tim Bachman

Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA

550 S. Clay Street

Independence, CA 93526

US

SALES REPRESENTATIVE

Kyle Panasewicz

Phone: (480) 905-2071

Email: kylep@axon.com

Fax: (480) 658-0673

Q-220209-43789.605KP

1



Year 3

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Other

73473
REDACTION ASSISTANT 11-30 SWORN ANNUAL 

PAYMENT
1 3,900.00 3,900.00 3,900.00

Subtotal 3,900.00

Estimated Tax 0.00

Total 3,900.00

Year 4

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Other

73473
REDACTION ASSISTANT 11-30 SWORN ANNUAL 

PAYMENT
1 3,900.00 3,900.00 3,900.00

Subtotal 3,900.00

Estimated Tax 0.00

Total 3,900.00

Year 5

Item Description Quantity
List Unit 

Price
Net Unit Price Total (USD)

Other

73473
REDACTION ASSISTANT 11-30 SWORN ANNUAL 

PAYMENT
1 3,900.00 3,900.00 3,900.00

Subtotal 3,900.00

Estimated Tax 0.00

Total 3,900.00

Grand Total 17,225.00

Protect Life.
Q-220209-43789.605KP

2



Summary of Payments

Payment Amount (USD)

Year 1 1,625.00

Year 2 3,900.00

Year 3 3,900.00

Year 4 3,900.00

Year 5 3,900.00

Grand Total 17,225.00

Protect Life.
Q-220209-43789.605KP

3



Notes

This quote is co-termed with quote Q-181520 (executed contract #21234). Year one has been prorated to 5 months to align with agency annual billing dates. This has been 

done according to an anticipated license start date of 1/1/20. The end date of these subscriptions is subject to change if the ship/start date changes.

Tax is subject to change at order processing with valid exemption.

Axon’s Sales Terms and Conditions

This Quote is limited to and conditional upon your acceptance of the provisions set forth herein and Axon’s Master Services and Purchasing Agreement 

(posted at www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions), as well as the attached Statement of Work (SOW) for Axon Fleet and/or Axon Interview 

Room purchase, if applicable. Any purchase order issued in response to this Quote is subject solely to the above referenced terms and conditions. By 

signing below, you represent that you are lawfully able to enter into contracts. If you are signing on behalf of an entity (including but not limited to the 

company, municipality, or government agency for whom you work), you represent to Axon that you have legal authority to bind that entity. If you do not 

have this authority, please do not sign this Quote.

Signature: CustSIG Date: CustDate

Name (Print): CustName Title: CustTitle

PO#  (Or write

N/A): CustPo

Please sign and email to Kyle Panasewicz at kylep@axon.com or fax to (480) 658-0673

Thank you for being a valued Axon customer. For your convenience on your next order, please check out our online store buy.axon.com

‘Protect Life’© and TASER® are registered trademarks of Axon Enterprise, Inc, registered in the U.S. © 2013 Axon 

Enterprise, Inc. All rights reserved.

Protect Life.
Q-220209-43789.605KP

4

***Axon Internal Use Only***

Review 1 Review 2

SFDC Contract #:

Order Type:

RMA #:

Address Used:

SO #:

Comments:

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http://www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions&data=01|01|mbeckman@seismic.com|4ccdc899ca6f40d8e7d808d5dba3faac|3566798d3d314a2fa3df3a4fe9c9fd40|1&sdata=VKzc640TU9MtzniB25QbEoQuIfpfoYnwDgw3Qrn9kD8%3D&reserved=0
https://buy.axon.com/


































County of Inyo

Treasurer/Tax Collector
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Alisha McMurtrie, Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract for software services to support Cannabis and Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) processing 
and taxation. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare HdL SOFTWARE, LLC of Brea, CA a sole-source provider of business licensing 
software services; B) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and HdL SOFTWARE, LLC of Brea, CA 
for the provision of business licensing software services in an amount not to exceed $57,000.00 for the period of 
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Hdl SOFTWARE, LLC PRIME Solution Software provides a web-based business license, application, and 
taxation platform that will support the business practices of the Treasurer-Tax Collector and The Agriculture 
Commissioner whose duties include processing the applications, issuing the corresponding licenses, and the 
billing and collection of the appropriate taxes for HTOT, commonly known as Bedtax, and the County Cannabis 
program.  In addition, all other departments who play a role in the review and approval of various business 
licenses issued by the County, will have access to the platform to complete their work.  The data will be housed 
in a central location, available to authorized users.  An electronic workflow process is part of this system and will 
contribute enormously to efficiencies, and should expedite processing.  As a hosted solution, there will be impact 
to the Information Services department, but it should be minimal.

The Bedtax program has ceased functioning.  Since the onset of short-term rentals, the program no longer allows 
the department to add any new licensees' resulting in the need to track these operators offline on Excel 
spreadsheets.  We are required to manually create the tax returns for these operators which has added 
considerably to the processing time, diverting staff from other required tasks.  All requested analysis or reporting 
must be compiled manually and takes additional time to prepare.  The Treasurer-Tax Collector and Planning 
departments have review and approval roles in this area.

The County Cannabis Program includes the application process, review and rating process, licensing process, 
and the taxation process.  This currently is being managed with Excel spreadsheets in various departments.  
Agriculture Weights & Measures, Sheriff, Planning, Environmental Health, and Public Works all have roles in the 
review and approval process for Cannabis applicants.  Upon approval of a license, the Treasurer-Tax Collector's 
office begins the taxation process.  Moving the required documents between departments is laborious and time is 
being lost to inefficiencies.  



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The Treasurer-Tax Collector will soon be conducting a workshop with your Board to open a dialogue to gauge 
the interest to implement a business license program in the unincorporated area of Inyo County.  This has long 
been a recommendation of the Treasurer-Tax Collector and the former Sheriff, Bill Lutz.  Sheriff Hollowell has not 
yet had the opportunity to weigh in on this subject.  Should the County choose to move forward with a business 
license program, PRIME Software Services will be in position to accommodate those needs immediately.  The 
County would not be in a position to roll out a business license program without first having the appropriate 
software in place.

SOLE SOURCE REQUEST FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

The Department is requesting to Sole Source Hdl SOFTWARE, LLC for professional services that we are unable 
to provide internally.  The ability to provide the calculations for various types of taxation, custom form creation, 
custom reporting features, internal electronic workflow process, and a public facing portal for our mutual clients is 
a unique niche with limited providers.  Hdl SOFTWARE, LLC is a California based company and has been in on 
the ground floor when it comes to the Cannabis licensing, business licensing, and taxation.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Treasurer-Tax Collector's office is responsible for processing, billing, collecting and reporting TOT for all 
hotel, motel, and short-term rental operators located in the unincorporated area of Inyo County.  Our current in-
house system has failed leaving the Department in a position to manually bill and track approximately 50% of our 
active accounts.  

The County does not currently have a software support system for any portion of the Cannabis Regulation 
processes or the taxation processes.  The Treasurer-Tax Collector's and Agriculture Weights & Measures 
Commissioner's departments are reliant upon using Excel spreadsheets to track all Cannabis related activities.  

In order to provide, efficient, timely services and information to our clients, external reporting services, and your 
Board, our departments need the support this software system will provide.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board can choose not to approve the Contract with Hdl SOFTWARE, LLC.  This is not recommended due 
to the onset of the failure of the current HTOT taxation system and the absence of a Cannabis Management 
Program.  The departments current use of Excel to manage multi-million dollars in revenues allows for a higher 
level of risk to seep into the process.  We can continue using Excel to manage these programs, but I would not 
recommend any future business license program without the support of a software system.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
These departments are all involved in the processing of either (or both) Cannabis or TOT related processes: 
Sheriff, Planning, Environmental Health, Public Works Building & Maintenance,and the Assessor.
 
FINANCING:
This contract will be initially funded out of CAO Economic Development, Budget #010202, Professional Services, 
Object Code #5265. However, the Treasurer-Tax Collector and the Ag Commissioner will be adjusting their 
budgets to reimburse the Economic Development Budget during the Mid-Year Financial Budget Review Process 
as appropriate.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. HdL Prime Software Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Alisha McMurtrie Created/Initiated - 11/19/2019



Agenda Request 
Page 3

Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/19/2019
Alisha McMurtrie Approved - 12/2/2019
Denelle Carrington Approved - 12/2/2019
Nathan Reade Approved - 12/3/2019
Scott Armstrong Approved - 12/4/2019
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 12/4/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/5/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/5/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 12/13/2019



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 1 

AGREEMENT FOR BUSINESS LICENSE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into as of the _____ day of ___________ 2019 (the “Agreement 

Date”), by and between the COUNTY OF INYO, CA, a municipal corporation hereinafter referred to as 

COUNTY, and HDL SOFTWARE LLC, a California company, hereinafter referred to as HDL. 

 

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to enforce its business license ordinance to ensure that all persons and 
organizations doing business within the County are licensed; and 
 
WHEREAS, HDL has the programs, equipment and personnel required to deliver the services referenced 
herein; 
 
THEREFORE, it is agreed by COUNTY and HDL as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Specific services to be performed by HDL are as described in Exhibit A.  Includes scope, schedule, 
support, and system requirements. 

 
2. COMPENSATION 

County agrees to compensate HDL for services under this Agreement as described in Exhibit B.  
 
3. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Agreement Date and shall continue each year 
thereafter until termination is requested.  The process for termination can be found in Exhibit C. 

 
4. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The General Terms and Conditions for this Agreement are as described in Exhibit C. 

 
5. NOTICE 

All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to the County and to HDL in writing, by personal 
delivery or first-class mail postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 
County  County of Inyo 

    224 N. Edwards Street  
    Independence, CA 93526 

   
HDL  HdL SOFTWARE, LLC 

    120 South State College Blvd., Suite 200 
    Brea, CA 92821 

 
  



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first 
above written by their respective officers duly authorized in that behalf. 
 
COUNTY OF INYO, CA     HDL 
 
By:         By:      
Name: ___________________________       Robert Gray 
Title:    ___________________________       President, HdL Software LLC 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 3 

EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF SERVICE 

 

1. Prime Software System 
1.1. County Management Support - HdL will assist the County in evaluating current policies and procedures 

in order to enhance operational efficiency.  This may include suggestions to redesign forms/reports, 
implement new processes, or adopt new strategies for improving communication with the business 
community and other County departments. 

1.2. Data Conversion - HdL will convert the County’s existing data.  If County is migrating from HdL “Classic” 
Business License, County will provide a current backup of the existing Microsoft Access or Microsoft SQL 
Server HdL database.  If County is converting from another vendor’s software, the County agrees to provide 
its current data in ASCII delimited file format, SQL Server backup, or another format agreed upon between 
HdL and the County; along with a file layout detailing the content of the file.  This data will be required a 
minimum of two times during the conversion process.  The County understands that the second (and any 
subsequent) data set must be provided in the same format and layout as the first data set.  Any 
inconsistencies between the first and second data sets will result in a delayed installation date and 
additional charges for conversion. 

1.3. Implementation 

1.3.1. HdL's responsibilities 
1.3.1.1. Project manager - HdL will provide a project manager (PM) to guide the software 

implementation process.  The primary responsibility for the HdL PM is to ensure successful and 
timely completion of each step of the software implementation schedule.  The HdL PM will 
work closely with the County's designated project manager to define the software 
implementation schedule, identify County needs and configure the software accordingly, 
validate the data conversion, provide user training, and generally shepherd the County through 
the software implementation process.  

1.3.1.2. IT support - HdL will provide a dedicated IT staff member to provide IT support during the 
software implementation process.  This individual will provide the necessary instruction and 
assistance in order to install the software in the County's computing environment and will 
provide any needed technical support.  

1.3.1.3. Training - HdL will provide software training as defined in the agreed upon software 
implementation schedule.  This generally consists of one (1) training session.  The size and 
participants of each training session will be determined by the HdL PM and the County’s 
designated project manager. 

1.3.1.4. User manual - HdL will provide access to a digital copy of the software user manual.  The County 
may use the manual as needed for internal use by County staff.  The user manual contains 
proprietary and confidential information, and as such is bound by the confidentiality portion 
of this agreement.  The user manual may not in any circumstances be distributed to any 3rd 
party or any individual that is not a current County staff member responsible for using or 
maintaining the software. 

1.3.2. County's responsibilities 
1.3.2.1. Project manager - The County will designate a staff member to serve as the County's project 

manager (PM).  This individual must be intimately involved in the daily business processes 
which the software will automate, and be empowered to make, or quickly secure from 
management, decisions required for the implementation of the software.  The primary 
responsibility for the County PM is to ensure that all County responsibilities during the software 
implementation are met according to the agreed upon software implementation schedule.  The 
County PM will be instrumental in the successful implementation of the software; working 
closely with the HdL PM to verify data conversion, review and approve reports, establish 
business rules, and configure all aspects of the software. 

1.3.2.2. IT support - The County will designate an IT staff member to work with HdL staff throughout 
the software implementation process.  This individual must be knowledgeable about the 
County's computing environment and be authorized to manage the SQL Server database and 
install and configure software on the network server and workstations.  The primary 
responsibility of the County’s IT designee is to provide data to HdL for conversion (if required), 



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 4 

install the SQL Server database, and install the software in the County's computing 
environment. 

1.3.3. Schedule – The default timeline for complete implementation (including “Go Live”) of the software 
is approximately 60 days from the start of implementation. When the Agreement is signed by all 
parties, HdL will immediately work with the County to establish a specific implementation schedule. 

1.4. Payment Gateway - For online payment functionality HdL’s solutions include built in payment gateway 
services supporting both credit card and eCheck transactions. If a different payment gateway is required, 
there will be a development cost of up to $7,500 to establish the custom payment gateway integration. 

1.5. Maintenance and Support 
1.5.1. Customer Support - HdL will provide customer support by telephone, email and the web during 

the term of this Agreement.  In the United States, no charge support is available as follows:  For 
customer support between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm Pacific time, Monday through Friday, 
email support@hdlcompanies.com or call the HdL offices at (909) 861-4335 and ask for software 
support.  For technical support before 8:00 am or after 5:00 pm Pacific time, Monday through 
Friday (or anytime Saturday), email 911@hdlcompanies.com and an HdL staff member will be 
paged.  Please only include your name, agency and contact # in emails to 911@hdlcompanies.com. 
You will be contacted as soon as possible.   

1.5.2. Support Policy Regarding Reports - HdL will assist with modifications to reports as needed during 
the term of this agreement. Typical report modifications require 7 to 10 business days to complete.  
Very complex reports or reports required in a very short time frame may incur development costs, 
in which case an estimate will be provided for approval before the work is begun. 

1.5.3. Software Upgrades - Except to the extent that upgrades of the software include new modules or 
features not previously offered as part of the software as of the date hereof, County is entitled to 
upgrades of the software within the terms of this Agreement.  Though rare, additional costs may 
apply depending on the extent of the upgrade.  Potential additional costs include training, 
consulting, configuration, or other requested services. 

1.5.4. Outside Connections to HdL Database - HdL programs rely on the integrity of the database to 
operate properly.  As such, it is critical that any outside connection to the database be 
implemented with HdL’s full knowledge and participation.  Only “read only” connections will be 
established to the HdL database.  No modifications will be made to the HdL database, including 
database/table design and data content.  Any repair work necessary due to violations of the above 
items will not be covered by the Software Use Fee, and as such will be billable to the client on a 
time and material basis.  The County shall contact HdL for instructions if any added functionality is 
required, including reading additional data or writing to the HdL database. 

1.6. System Requirements – These system requirements are only applicable if the HdL system will be deployed 
directly on the County’s equipment.  If the County opts to utilize HdL’s hosting services, see the hosting 
services section for system requirements. 

1.6.1. On site deployment – The software and database will be installed on the County’s network on 
hardware supplied by the County.  Any specifications provided below indicate minimum 
requirements.  It is the County’s responsibility to ensure that any hardware used to host the 
software/database or run the client application meets the specifications dictated by the operating 
system and any software/services hosted by the hardware.  For example, minimum operating system 
specifications will not be sufficient if the file server is also hosting the County’s email system. 

1.6.1.1. Application Server Specifications - The application server will host the HdL Prime web service, 
which serves as the HdL Prime business layer.  The HdL Prime web service uses the Microsoft 
Windows Server with IIS platform.  The following versions are supported: MS Windows Server 
2008 or later, with IIS v7.0 or later.  The application server should have at least 200 megabytes 
of space available. 

1.6.1.2. Database Server Specifications - The database server will host all application data.  The 
database server should be dedicated to server related functions.  Using a client’s PC as the 
database server in a multi-user environment is not supported.  HdL Software systems use the 
Microsoft SQL Server database platform.  The following versions are supported: MS SQL Server 
2008 R2 or later (SQL Express variants also supported).  Any server operating system supported 
by the selected version of SQL Server is supported as a database server; provided it meets the 

mailto:911@hdlcompanies.com


Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 5 

hardware specifications indicated by both the operating system and the version of SQL Server.  
The database server should have at least 50 gigabytes of space available to allow for the initial 
database and growth. 

1.6.1.3. Workstation Specifications - The software will be run on the client workstation.  HdL Prime is 
deployed to the workstation via a click once installer.  The Crystal Reports and .NET 4.x 
runtimes will also need to be installed on the workstation.  The following hardware 
recommendations are based on user feedback regarding performance levels: Intel Core i3 or 
equivalent CPU, 4+GB Memory, 1280x1024 screen resolution, MS Windows 7/8/10 operating 
system. 

1.6.1.4. Network Specifications - The software communicates via web services and is designed to 
operate efficiently over the network.  High-speed local area network connections are always 
helpful, but Prime will also run without difficulty over slower WAN connections such as T1 or 
mobile broadband. 

1.6.1.5. Printer Specifications - The software is designed to work with laser printers.  A PCL compliant 
laser printer is recommended.  Each make and model of printer has different drivers and 
therefore has slightly different results when printing.  We design forms/reports using HP 
LaserJet printers. 

2. Hosting Services – HdL’s hosting services offload the majority of IT concerns to HdL’s hosting team; including 

system upgrades, hardware and software maintenance, database management, and disaster recovery.  The 
County will be responsible for maintaining its workstations and a reliable internet connection.  HdL will handle 
the rest.  Website functionality will be hosted using a County specific sub-domain on HdL’s special purpose 
hdlgov.com domain. 
2.1. System Requirements 

2.1.1. Workstation Specifications – Workstations will access the software through a remote application 
session with HdL’s hosting service.  All workstations require 4+GB Memory, 1280x1024 screen 
resolution, and MS Windows 7/8/10 operating system. 

2.1.2. Network Specifications – HdL’s hosted service requires reliable, high speed internet connectivity.  
High-speed local area network connections are always helpful, but Prime will also run without 
difficulty over slower WAN connections such as T1 or mobile broadband. 

2.1.3. Printer Specifications - The software is designed to work with laser printers.  A PCL compliant laser 
printer is recommended.  Each make and model of printer has different drivers and therefore has 
slightly different results when printing.  We design forms/reports using HP LaserJet printers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 6 

EXHIBIT B - COMPENSATION 

 

1. Prime Software System 
 

One Time Project Costs 
 

Item Price Comments 

Prime Business License - Software License Fee $24,000.00 5 Named Users 

Prime Web Module Included Must use FIS Global payment gateway. No 
cost set-up 

Development of Jet Pay payment gateway 
integration if County does not select FIS Global as 
credit card payment gateway. 

$5,000.00 Technical specifications needed. Additional 
charges may or may not be necessary. 

Transient Occupancy Tax and Cannabis Tracking $5,500.00 Includes Implementation of fees/rates, 1 
basic renewal form for each 

Implementation $5,000.00 Project management, installation, 
configuration, report design, training, etc. 

Data Conversion 6,000.00 Up to 30hrs of data conversion work. 
Above 30hrs, time and material. 

Travel Expenses At Cost At Cost 

Training Costs – 1 day Included Included  

Additional days available at $2000/day 

TOTAL  $45,500.00 Total one-time costs 

 
 

Recurring Costs 

Item Price Comments 

Annual Software Use Fee $6,300.00 Due at Prime core system “Go Live”. 
Renewed annually + CPI 

HdL Hosting Services  $5,160.00/Year 15 total remote users. Billed Annually. 
Additional Users @$15.00 each/month 

 
 

1.1. Software License Fee - The license fee includes the use of the software by the specified number of users, 
software user manual in digital format, and all standard forms and reports.  Additional user licenses are 
available for $1,500 license fee plus $400 annual software use fee. 

1.2. Annual Software Use Fee - The software use fee is billed annually and provides for ongoing customer 
support and updates to the software.  The software use fee shall be adjusted at the beginning of each 
calendar year by the change in the Consumer Price Index – West Urban (CPI-WU) as reported by the Bureau 
of Labor Statistics. Each CPI adjustment will not be less than two percent (2%) or greater than ten percent 
(10%).  The software use fee shall also be adjusted to include any amounts paid for any County licenses or 
permits which were required for this service. 

1.3. Implementation - The implementation fee covers all efforts involved for installation and configuration of 
the software.  This includes one session of pre-installation and process evaluation, one session of “go live” 
training, installation support, design and programming of standard forms and reports, and configuration 
of the software. 



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 7 

1.4. Data Conversion – Data will be converted from the County provided source files.  Includes one (1) 
conversion when migrating from an HdL system, and two (2) conversions when migrating from another 
vendor’s system.  Additional conversions of the same source data can be performed, upon request, at a 
cost of $2,500 per conversion.  The source files must be provided in the same format for all conversions, 
otherwise custom programming costs will apply in order to accommodate the varying data formats.  Data 
conversion includes up to 30 hours of developer time.  Any work above 30 hours will be charged at the 
current developer hourly rate. 

1.5. Travel Expenses - Travel and lodging expenses are billed at cost and apply to all meetings; including 
process, pre-installation, installation, training, and support.  HdL is dedicated to conserving public funds 
and ensures any travel costs are indeed required and reasonable. 

1.6. Parcel Data - HdL Prime includes comprehensive land management functionality.  There are three ways to 
acquire the parcel data. 

1.6.1. If the County is a client for HdL property tax services, the parcel data will be provided at no cost. 
1.6.2. If the County is not a client for HdL property tax services, the parcel data may be purchased from 

HdL. 
1.6.3. If the County wishes to use any other source of parcel data, HdL can work with the County to create 

a re-useable import utility.  The development of this utility will be billed on a time and material 
basis.  Once the source data has been reviewed, a statement of work will be provided including a 
cost estimate. 

1.7. Customizing Services - The software is a table-driven system and has been developed to meet almost all 
of the needs of a County.  However, should the need occur, HdL is available to provide custom 
enhancements to the software on a pre-determined time and material basis.  No work shall be performed 
without prior written approval of the County.  

1.8. Payment Schedule – Compensation for the contract amount shall be as follows: 
1.8.1. One-time project costs and the first year Software Use Fee.  60% shall be due and payable within 

30 days of the effective date of the Agreement.  30% within 60 days of the effective date of the 
Agreement.  10% within 30 days of full system delivery or first production use of the system, 
whichever comes first. 

1.8.2. Travel Expenses.  Travel and lodging expenses are billed at cost as they are incurred.  Travel 
expenses shall be due and payable within 30 days of the billing date.   

1.8.3. Annual Software Use Fee.  The software use fee will be invoiced each year on the anniversary of 
the effective date of the Agreement and shall be due and payable within 30 days of the invoice 
date.  The software use fee billing cycle can be prorated as needed should the County desire an 
alternative billing cycle. 

 

2. Hosting Services - hosting services are billed annually in advance.  Includes software and data hosting and 

disaster recovery services.  Hosting fee may be revised with three (3) months advance notice to account for 
changes in market costs related to hosting, such as internet bandwidth, power, and related equipment or service 
costs.  The base fee provides for 3 named user connections to the system. 

 
Service Compensation 
Monthly Hosting (15 total named remote user 
connections) 

$5,160.00/Year 

Additional Named User Connections $15/month/user 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 8 

EXHIBIT C 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

A. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS, CONFIDENTIALITY. 
a. Software License.  If access to any HdL software systems are provided to County as part of this Agreement, HdL hereby 

provides a license to the County to use HdL’s software while the associated service is in effect through this Agreement.  
The software shall only be used by the County. The County shall not sublet, duplicate, modify, decompile, reverse 
engineer, disassemble, or attempt to derive the source code of said software.  The license granted hereunder shall not 
imply ownership by County of said software, rights of the County to sell said software, or rights to use said software 
for the benefits of others.  This license is not transferable. County shall not create any derivative work or product based 
on or derived from the Software or documentation or modify the Software or documentation without the prior written 
consent of HdL. In the event of a breach of this provision (And without limiting HdL’s remedies), said modification, 
derivative work or product based on the Software or documentation is hereby deemed assigned to HdL. Upon 
termination, the software license shall expire, all copies of the software shall be removed from the County’s computers 
and network and all digital copies deleted or otherwise destroyed. 

b. Agency Data.  HdL acknowledges that the data provided by the County (“Agency Data”) during the course of this 
Agreement is the property of the County.  County authorizes HdL to access, import, process and generate reports from 
the Agency Data with its various proprietary systems.  No confidential or otherwise sensitive information will be 
released.  If appropriate, at the termination of this Agreement the Agency Data will be made available to the County 
in a format acceptable to both the County and HdL. 

c. Consultant Proprietary Information.  As used herein, the term “proprietary information” means any information which 
relates to Consultant’s software systems, audit processes or related services, techniques, or general business 
processes.  County shall hold in confidence and shall not disclose to any other party any Consultant proprietary 
information in connection with this Agreement, or otherwise learned or obtained from the Consultant in connection 
with this Agreement.  The obligations imposed by this Paragraph shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement.  The terms of this section shall not apply to any information that is public information. 

B. OPTIONAL SERVICES.  Optional services beyond the scope of this Agreement are available at HdL’s hourly rates in effect at 
the time service is requested.  HdL will provide County a Statement of Work specifying the scope, timeline, and cost for the 
requested service.  Depending on the personnel assigned to perform the work, HdL’s standard hourly rates range between 
$195.00 and $325.00 per hour. 

C. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES.  HdL will notify the County of any miscellaneous expenses and request authorization to 
proceed. HdL will not be reimbursed for any miscellaneous expenses unless authorized by the County. Miscellaneous 
expenses may include travel, lodging and meal expenses, and other expenses which are above and beyond the ordinary 
expenses associated with performance of this Agreement. 

D. PRICING ADJUSTMENTS.  All pricing listed in this Agreement will be honored during initial implementation of the services.  
Any additional/optional services needed after services are active will be provided using the pricing currently established at 
the time the service is requested. 

E. LICENSE, PERMITS, FEES AND ASSESSMENTS.  HdL shall obtain such licenses, permits and approvals (collectively the 
“Permits”) as may be required by law for the performance of the services required by this Agreement.  County shall assist 
HdL in obtaining such Permits, and County shall absorb all fees, assessments and taxes which are necessary for any Permits 
required to be issued by County.  If County requires payment for such Permits, the associated costs will be included with the 
next invoice. 

F. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  HdL shall maintain the policies set out below, and in amounts of coverage not less than those 
indicated herein.  Additionally, where required by County, HdL shall name the County as an additional insured and provide 
a Certificate of Insurance. 
a. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability - In accordance with applicable law. 
b. Comprehensive General Liability - Bodily injury liability in the amount of $1,000,000 for each person in any one 

accident, and $1,000,000 for injuries sustained by two or more persons in any one accident.  Property damage liability 
in the amount of $1,000,000 for each accident, and $2,000,000 aggregate for each year of the policy period. 

c. Comprehensive Automobile Liability - Bodily injury liability coverage of $1,000,000 for each accident. 
d. Errors and Omissions - In addition to any other insurance required by this Agreement, HdL shall provide and maintain, 

during the term of this Agreement, professional liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 as evidenced by a 
Certificate of Insurance. 

G. TERMINATION.  This Agreement, or individual services provided by this Agreement, may be terminated as follows: 
a. Software – Software services may be terminated by either party upon written notice at least 90 days prior to the end 

of the established annual billing cycle.  Software services are provided on an annual basis.  No credit will be provided 
for any unused portion of the annual term.  Upon termination, the software license shall expire and (a) County will 
immediately remove the software from computers, servers and network, and destroy or erase all copies of the 
software and any Proprietary Information and confirm destruction of same by signing and returning to HdL an 
“Affidavit of Destruction” acceptable to HdL, and (b) upon County’s request, HdL will assist in extracting the County 
data in a format acceptable to both the County and HdL. 



Agreement for HdL Services 
County of Inyo County, CA December 5, 2019 

HdL Software, LLC 9 

b. Services - County may discontinue a service by sending a letter of intent to HdL at least 90 days prior to desired last 
date of service. 

H. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  HdL shall perform the services hereunder as an independent contractor.  No agent, 
representative or employee of HdL shall be considered an employee of the County. 

I. NON-ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in part by HdL or the County without the written 
consent of the other party. 

J. GOVERNING LAW.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of the parties 
to this Agreement and shall also govern the interpretation of this Agreement. 

K. COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT. It is intended that any other public agency (e.g. County, county, district, public authority, public 
agency, municipality, or other political subdivision of California) located in the State of California shall have an option to 
procure identical services as set forth in this Agreement. The County of Inyo shall incur no responsibility, financial or 
otherwise, in connection with orders for services issued by another public agency. The participating public agency shall 
accept responsibility for securing services or making payments to the vendor. 

L. INDEMNIFICATION.  HdL shall indemnify and hold harmless County and its officers, officials and employees from any liability 
for damage or claims for personal injury, including death, as well as from claims for breach of confidentiality or property 
damage, including attorney fees, which may arise out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or 
in part by any negligent act or omission of HdL, its officers, agents and employees under this Agreement. County shall 
indemnify and hold harmless HdL, its officers, agents and employees, from any liability for damage or claims for personal 
injury, including death, as well as from claims for breach of confidentiality or property damage which may arise from County’s 
negligent acts, errors or omissions under this Agreement.  

 

 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Water Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Two Applicants to fill Vacancies on the Inyo County Water Commission 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board consider the Letters of Interest received for appointment to the Water Commission and appoint 
two Water Commissioners with terms ending December 31, 2023.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Water Commission currently has one vacancy and one member whose term expires December 
31, 2019.  The Clerk of the Board has advertised these vacancies in accordance with County policy. Mr. 
Nathaniel Gratz has submitted a Letter of Interest seeking reappointment to the Commission to fill a four (4) year 
term of office ending December 31, 2023.  Additional requests for appointment (attached) were received from 
Mark Nechodom and Holly Alpert. 

In accordance with County Policy, if the number of requests for appointment exceeds the number of vacancies, 
the department head, or his/her designee, responsible for overseeing the committee/commission will invite the 
applicants to submit a more robust application and/or resume that will be presented to the Board of Supervisors 
as part of its deliberation process. The department head, or his/her designee, will also invite the applicants to 
appear at the meeting where the Board of Supervisors will be making the appointments to the 
commission/committee, at which time the applicants should be prepared to answer questions as the Board 
considers each candidate’s qualifications.

Letters to the applicants inviting them to submit additional information or attend the meeting in person were sent 
on December 3.  All information received from the applicants is attached.   

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Per Resolution 99-43 adopted July 27, 1999, Sec B - The Inyo County Water Commission shall be residents of 
Inyo County.  Members of the commission need not have particular professional training, skills or experience, but 
commission members should have knowledge of the problems and issues arising from the extraction and use of 
the water resources of the Owens Valley and Inyo County.  Sec C - This Board shall appoint members of the Inyo 
County Water Commission.  Except as provided below, members of the Commission shall serve for a four-year 
term.  In selecting members of the commission, this Board shall attempt to appoint applicants who reside 
throughout the Owens Valley and Inyo County.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not appoint a Commissioner at this time, and re-advertise to fill the vacancies.

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
Water Commission stipends and travel expenses are paid from the Water Department budget (024102)
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Nate Gratz - Water Commission
2. Mark Nechodom - Water Commission
3. Holly Alpert - Water Commission
4. Nate Gratz - Letter 2
5. Holly Alpert - Letter 2 (and CV)
 
APPROVALS:
Laura Piper Created/Initiated - 12/3/2019
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 12/3/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/4/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/4/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/4/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/4/2019
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 12/6/2019



Darcy Ellis

From:
Sent:
lo:
Subject:

NATHAN I EL GRATZ < nategratzl 7@gmail,com >

Tuesday, November 26,2019 7:07 PM

Darcy Ellis

INYO COUNTY WATER COMMISSION

Dear Inyo County Board of Supervisors,

I would like to be reappointed and keep my seat on the Inyo County Water Commission to complete term
ending December 31, 2023.

I have enjoyed being part of the commission for the last two years. I would like to continue to serve our county
and community.

Sincerely,

Nathaniel Gratz

1



Mark Nechodom, PhD
82 Virginia St.

Bishop, CA 93514

916-591.-1.444 | Mark@Nechodom.com

0e/20/2018
..:1 -:'_-

. 1-. j

Inyo County Board of Supervisors

P.O. Box N
Independence, CA 93526

Dear Members of the Board,

I am interested in an appointment to the Inyo County Water Commission.

My career has spanned teaching in academia, research and publication in government
science organizations, and serving in senior executive positions in state and federal

agencies. I have served two presidents and two governors in senior positions, and have a

seasoned sense of how science, policy and politics intertwine.

My direct experience with water policy in the western states comes through three different
pathways. First, and most recently, as Director of the California Department of
Conservation, I had oversight and decision-making responsibilities in oil and gas regulation,
mine reclamation, and farmland conservation. In this position, I interacied regularly with
the State Water Resources Control Board and several of the Regional Water Quality Control
Boards. Both water supply and water quality protection were regular topics of concern.

During my tenure, my professional and legal staff and I worked closely with Senator

Pavley, SWRCB Chair Marcus and her staff on key provisions of the Sustainable

Groundwater Management Act of 2014.

Second, as both a senior advisor to USDA Secretary Vilsack and Director of the new USDA
Office of Environmental Markets, I worked across the counky and internationally on

scientific methodologies and policy changes to bring public and private finance to green

infrastructure approaches for water conservation and pollution control. In several cases, we

supported key innovations in the development of TMDLs that included environmental
markets for water quality trading programs. In coordination with the Environmental Law

ht
5*
s -*l-!

dta.F
:5 f'!-tr-J ltt

il
r^.J
L-J +ri

:5J -:'
fltt

-{: t"
" :'-?

ri]



Institute and several universities, we evaluated over 65 different water trading programs in
the US and Latin America. At the request of Congress, USDA brought proposals for changes

in federal law and policy that would support g::eater private capital investment in green

infrastructure programs.

Finally, early in my academic career, I developed and taught courses in coordination with
King Hall School of Law at UC Davis on western water law and policy. I further led

research on US-Mexico cross-border issues with the International Boundary and Waters

Commission in California, Arizona and New Mexico.

While much of my scientific and political career has covered a broad arcay of environmental
and conservation issues, water continues to be a keen interest of mine. Having recently

retired from government service and moved to the Eastern Sierra, I wish to continue to be of
service in the public sector. A position on the Commission would allow me to both learn

about and contribute to our collective water futures in the Owens Valley and Inyo County.

I look forward to following up with the Board to see how I might best serve the County
Please feel free to contact me by email and/or phone at your convenience.

Sincerely,

M a,t b N e,chnd,ottu ?hD

2



Mark Nechodoffi, PhD
mark@ nechodom.com | 916-597-7444

Senior-Level Environmental Executive
Experienced executive team leader with practical expertise in all facets of organizational management, public policy development
and implementation. CEO-Ievel understanding of strategic organizational investment and change. Science-oriented mastery in public
policy and scientific communication of science across a wide array of sectors and demographics. Skilled collaborator across private,
public, non-profit, and government organizations to achieve strategic objectives and innovative change. lnstrumental in streamlining
and improving systems, processes, and fundraising to achieve organizational goals. Experienced team leader in NEPA, CEQA and

environmental documentation.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Cerro Coso Community College, Bishop, CA

Adjunct Professor, Social Sciences
Serving as a part-time instructor of political science and history within the Kern Community College District

I Teach courses in American Government, US History and other social sciences as needed.

o Serve on curriculum development and service committees within the Community College District

2019-present

Montana Department of Agriculture, Helena, MT 2017 - 20t9
Ad mi nistrator (retired)
Second in command at the Montana Department of Agriculture:

I Served as the Director's representative in policy and judicial matters before the MT Department of Agriculture and before
the Montana State Legislature.

o Promoted Montana's world renown in wheat, barley and pulse crop production and maintaining Montana's international
prominence as a commodity-producing state.

I Supported rapid growth in Montana's Organic Agriculture production and leading significant programmatic development in

Food Safety.

a Led three bureaus in overseeing over 20 regulatory and compliance programs, including pesticides, commodity exchanges,
feed and fertilizer regulations, analytical laboratory operations, noxious weed management, and nursery and apiary
registration and inspection.

a Supported the Director in development of legislation, policy and rulemaking for effective and lefficient program
implementation; executing the Director's institutional changes to implement a 21st century agile-matrix organization;
focused on customer service and maximum program effectiveness to support the agriculture industry in Montana.

I Supported the development of new and emerging agricultural crops and enterprises, including hemp production, food
safety programs, organic agriculture and value-added processing.

Nechodom Associates, [LC, Los Angeles, San Francisco, Sacramento, and Washington, DC. 2015 - 2018
President
Energy, Climate and Conservation Consultancy:

r Provided expert consulting for environmental organizations, public land management agencies, government regulatory
agencies, agricultural production and supply chain enterprises, and major oil and gas corporate clients.

o Focused on positive policy change in a range of issues including sustainability, energy and transportation, climate change,
natural resources management, and land conservation.

o Developed and implemented strategic plans for water and energy infrastructure development, land-based climate
mitigation and greenhouse gas emissions reductions, sustainable agriculture, surface mining and reclamation standards,
and oil and gas regulation.

a Served multiple clients in California, Washington DC, several other states, Canada and Mexico.

California Department of Conservation, Office of the Governor, Sacramento, CA 2012 - 2015
Di rector (P olitico I o p poi nte e\

a Served as Governor Brown's appointee to lead the California Department of Conservation, including leadership of four
Divisions with more than 550 employees and an annual budget of S100 million.

o Provided strategic leadership for the department through major regulatory changes, strategic planning, administrative
restructuring, and program development.



Mark Nechodom, PhD

i Executed transformations in public health and environmental protection by leading significant changes in oil and gas

regulations, surface mining policies, renewable energy development, geotechnical planning, and farmland conservation.
a Worked in partnership with universities and National Laboratories to evaluate risks and develop policies associated with

hydraulic fracturing, advanced recovery of gas and oil, solar and wind energy, and greenhouse gas reductions.
o lnitiated the nation's first greenhouse gas mitigation program based on farmland conservation through the Strategic

Growth Council's "Sustainable Ag Lands Conservation" program.

US Department of Agriculture, Office of the Secretary, Washington, DC 2008 - 2072
Senior Advisor to the Secretary for Environmental Markets

a Led the development of policies and programs for environmental markets, while generating new opportunities for integrating
environmental market strategies into USDA programs at multiple levels.

o Supervised, coached, and mentored teams to reinforce USDA investment strategies in evolving regional environmental markets,

including climate change mitigation, water quality improvement, habitat conservation, and wetlands restoration.
o Provided expert counsel on investment strategies to the Chiefs of the US Forest Service and the Natural Resources Conservation

Service regarding the Farm Bill's annual S0 nillion investment in conservation programs.

r Achieved regulatory standards and targets for landowners through market-based solutions for water quality and nutrient
trading, carbon markets for greenhouse gas reductions, habitat mitigation for endangered species, and a broad range of
quantifiable environmental improvements.

US Department of Agriculture, Office of the Secretary, Washington, DC 2008 - 2010
Director, Olfice of Environmental Markets
o Established a new, nation-wide government agency to develop standardized metrics and market infrastructure for ecosystem

services, concentrating on policy and market designs for climate mitigation and a national greenhouse gas cap-and-trade
program.

a Served as liaison at senior levels with Federal departments and agencies, including the EPA, Departments of the lnterior, Energy,

Defense, Commerce, and Transportation. Worked directly with the White House Office of Management and Budget (OMB) and
the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ).

o Utilized market mechanisms and direct payments for ecosystem services to publish and present advanced approaches to
conservation, nationally and internationally (Brazil, Russia, Costa Rica, Mexico, etc.).

USDA Forest Service, Washington, DC 2003 - 2008
Climate Science Policy Advisor, Olfice ol the Chief of the llS Forest Service

o Advised high-level state officials and federal agency executives, and a variety of stakeholders on climate policy and legislation for
California, the western United States, and the US nationally.

t Partnered with agencies to create and execute policies to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions in support of California's 2006
California Global Warming Solutions Act and the development of California's cap-and-trade program.

o Represented USDA on the Forest Protocol development team for California's Air Resources Board, in support of Cap and Trade
offset protocols.

o Analyzed and summarized in multiple public presentations and conferences Federal and State carbon markets and greenhouse
gas emissions polices.

a Traveled globally (Latin America, Russia, Europe) representing US climate mitigation strategies, climate science research and

support for climate policies.

USDA Forest Service, Washington, DC and Davis, CA 2003 - 2008

Senior Resedrch Scientist, Pacific Southwest Reseorch Station, Sierra Nevadd Research Center
a Managed daily operations and supervised over 100 scientists and technicians analyzing ecological, social, and institutional

challenges associated with natural resources management.
I Established and managed the Socioeconomic and lnstitutional Research Section, focusing research on performance measures of

ecosystem services and environmental markets, with an emphasis on land-based greenhouse gas emission reductions.
a Led efforts of the California Energy Commission to utilize forest biomass for energy production, greenhouse gas reductions, and

wildfire mitigation by leading a 53.5 million "Life Cycle Analysis of Forest Biomass, Climate Effects, and Energy Modeling".

2



Mark Nechodom, PhD

a Earned the prestigious "Two Chiefs Award" from the US Forest Service and the USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service for
leadership of the "Alder Springs Fuels Reduction and Carbon Mitigation" study, which established greenhouse gas mitigation
protocols for fuel treatments in 3wildfire prone forests in the western United States.

r Led the Lake Tahoe Watershed Study social sciences team over several years in the Lake Tahoe Basin.

o Served as lead social scientist in the formation of the California Biodiversity Council (1994-1996) and the establishment of the
Sierra Nevada Framework for Cooperation and Collaboration (1998-2002).

EDUCATION

3

Ph.D., Political Science, University of California, Santa Cruz, CA

Bachelor of Arts, Political and Social Thought, World College West, San Rafael, CA

I

SERVICE & SKITLS

Board Member: Amargosa Conservancy
Member: Society of American Foresters; American Political Science Association; Ecological Society of America.
Specialist, Army National Guard, Armored Division (Honorable Discharge).
Volunteer Service: Habitat for Humanity; Environmental Traveling Companions (Outdoor activities for handicapped); public
health and rural development programs in Mexico and Latin America.
Visiting Scholar: University of Montana, Missoula and University of California, Davis (Environmental Policy)
Languages: Fluent in Spanish.



Darcy Ellis

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Attachments:
Subject:

holly.alpert@gmail.com
Wednesday, November 27,2019 9:09 AM
Darcy Ellis

Aaron Steinwand; Laura Piper

Application for lnyo County Water Commission
Alpert_lnyoCountyWaterCommission_requestforAppt_201 91 1 27 .pdf;
Al pert_CV_Novembe120 1 9.pdf

Dear Darcy,

Please find attached two documents comprising my application for the Board of Supervisors to consider for an
appointment to the lnyo County Water Commission.

Thanks, and hope you have a warm and happyThanksgiving.

Holly

Holly Alpert, Ph.D.

760-709-2212

Program Director
lnyo-Mono IRWM Program

1



November 24,2019

lnyo County Boord of Supervisors
PO Box N
lndependence. CA 93526

dellis@invocounlv.us

Deor lnyo County Supervisors:

I om pleosed io be submilting my opplicoiion to be oppoinled to the lnyo Counly Woter
Commission. I hove been sludying ond working on woter issues in the eostern Sieno since 2003
ond om eoger lo toke the next step in my involvemenl in the woter community.

I begon coming to the oreo during my first yeor of groduote schoolto conlribute to my odvisor's
reseorch on climote chonge impocls to ecosyslems. As lspent lime here. I begon to leorn
oboul ihe history of wqter exports in the Owens Volley ond Mono Bosin ond quickly become
foscinoted. I dedicoied o chopter of my dissertotion lo exomining potenliol impocls of oltered
hydrology to lhe surfoce woter supplies of Mommolh Community Woier Disirict.

As lwos entering my lost yeor of groduole school in 2008, lhe lnyo-Mono lniegroted Regionol
Woler Monogement Progrom (IRWMP) wos beginning. They were recruiting for o Progrom
Assistonl, ond I sow the position os on opporlunity lo toke o firsl step in o coreer dedicoted to
woter resources in lhe eostern Sierro. Twelve yeors loler, I om now the Progrom for ihe lnyo-
Mono IRWMP. Over I I yeors, we hove broughi over $4.5 million in progrommotic ond project
gronl money to ihe region to support resilieni woter systems ond heolthy ecosystems.

Through my ocodemic coreer ond lhe IRWM Progrom. I hove endeovored to tqke o bolonced
ond unbiosed opprooch to woier issues, trying to understond oll viewpoints ond recognizing lhot
mony issues hove more lhon two sides. I hove worked hord to form ond moinloin strong working
relotionships wiih woier stokeholders throughout the eostern Sierro, ond I believe these
relolionships would be beneficiol lo my porticipotion on lhe woter commission.

Finolly, I om fully committed lo the public outreoch ond educolion ospects of the commission's
responsibililies ond look forword 1o deeper engogement wilh stokeholders on Owens Volley
woter issues.

I thonk you for your considerotion of my opplicotion

Sincerely,

lJ,-tt"y {LQ:"e

Holly Alpert, Ph.D.
3577 Mojestic Woy
Bishop, CA 93514
760-709-2212
hollv.olpert@qmoil.com



Holly Alperl, Ph.D.
3577 Mojestic Woy
Bishop, CA 93514

760.709.2212
holly.olpert@gmoil.com

Educotion

Universiiy of Coliforniq, Sqnlq Cruz
Ph.D., Environmenlol Studies (2009)

r Dissertotion Title: Climote Chonge lmplicotions for Conifer Disiribulion ond Woter
Resources Monogemeni in the Eosiern Sierro Nevodo, Colifornio

Wellesley College, Wellesley, MA
Bochelor ol Arts (1997)

. Mojors: EnvironmentolScience ond Americon Studies

. Groduoled cum loude; octivities included: theoire (directing, writing, technicol work);
Student Council to the Boord of Trustees.

. Conducled tree demogrophy reseorch within compus' forest potches resulting in
monogement recommendolions for college's londscope ond grounds deportment.

r Aworded Ethel L. Hersey Prize in Americon Studies for o ploy obout women ond AIDS.
o lnducted into Sigmo Xi, the Scientific Reseorch Society.

Fmnlovmeni

lnyo-Mono lnlegroled RegionolWoter Monogemenl Progrom, Eoslern Sieno, CA
Augusl2008 - presenl

Progrom Direclor (July 2016 - presenf/
. Coordinote oll oclivities of lnyo-Mono Regionol Woter Monogement Group
. Represent lnyo-Mono IRWM Progrom of locol. regionol, ond siote meetings ond

conferences
Seek funding for high-priority projects

r Ensure complionce with stote rules ond regulolions regording IRWM
. Perform outreoch ond correspondence with locol. regionol, ond stoie stokeholders ond

ogencies, including tribes ond disodvontoged communities
. Monoge stoie gronts

Progrom Monoger (July 2016 -presenf/
. Responsible for monoging doy-to-doy operotions of IRWM Progrom, including

overseeing stoff
. Work wiih woter system monogers to secure funding ond technicol resources for priority

projecls
. Responsible for incorporoting climote chonge informotion ond plonning into lnyo-Mono

IRWM PIon
. Leod gront wriling efforts for Proposition 84 Plonning ond lmplementotion gronts,

securing $2.2 million in gronl funding for lhe region
. Serve os Project Monoger for CA Proposition 84 Rounds I ond 2 Plonning Gront ond

Disodvonloged Communities Gronl; oversee ollwork of these gronls
. Conduct public ond torgeled outreoch meelings ond serve os primory point person for

IRWM Progrom

Project Assistonf (August 2008 - Februory 201 I )

. Assisled in coordinotion ond writing of Phose I lntegroted Regionol Woter Monogement
Plon for eostern Sierro region

. Served os point person for communicolion with 50+ stokeholders

llPoge



Holly Alpert, Ph.D.
. Orgonized monthly meetings for full slokeholder group ond steering committee
r Prepored outreoch moteriols ond conduct ouireoch lo new stokeholders

Colifolnio Rutql Woler Associolion, Socromento, CA
June 2016 - presenl

lntegroted Regiono/ Water Monogement Progrom Coordinotor
. Conduct oulreoch to IRWM regions throughout CA
r Monoge gronis ond oversee work for two disodvontoged community involvemeni

projecls in eoslern CA ond southern CA

Devils Poslpile NqlionqlMonumenl, Mommolh [okes, CA
Augusl 2009 - Seplember 2010

Eco/ogisf; Biologicol Sciences Technicion
. Responsible for developing noturol resources progrom, including reseorch,

doto/informotion monogemenl, ond colloboroiion wilh reseorch portners
. Assisted wilh writing of first-ever Generol Monogement Plon ond Resources Slewordship

Strotegy
o Assisled in coordinotion of cold-oir pooling projeci lo ossess possible impocts of climole

chonge on the Monumenl
. Supervised summer climote chonge intern

University of Coliforniq Sqnlq Cruz, Sonlo Cruz, CA
Jonuory 2004 - December 2008

Groduote Student Reseorcher
. Exomined ecologicol impocts of seowoter ond brockish woter desolinotion through o

CA Proposition 50 gront to Professor Brent Hoddod, which included working with
porlners from Strolus Consulting

. Exomined impocts of snow depth chonge os o proxy for projecled climotic chonges on
vegetotion communities in eostern Colifornio

Eorlhwolch Inslilute, Mommoth Lokes, CA
Summer 2004,2005,2006

Residen f /Reseorch Assisfon f
o Assisted project leoder Dr. Michoel Loik in hosting groups of exceptionol high school

students to porticipote in reseorch oi siudy siies in eostern Colifornio

Oregon Humone Sociely, Porllond, OR

Moy 2001 - May 2002
Deve/opmeni Assistont
. Monoged 40,000+-donor dotobose; recorded doily donotions ond coordinoted tribute

gift progrom; composed thonk-you letters to donors; produced other correspondence
os directed; served os o lioison beiween orgonizotion ond donors

Recreqlionol Equipmeni, lnc.,Iigord, OR, ond Frominghom, MA
June l?97 - Moy 2003

Posilions he/d: Cusfomer Service Specio/isf, Specio/fy Shop Monoger, Speciolty Shop
C oordrnotor, Soles Specio/isf. Of f ic e Speciolisf

Responsibiliiies included:
. Assisting cuslomers in returns, ordering process, ond other inquiries
. Meeting soles gools in Outdoorweor speciolty shop; coordinoling ond delivering new

troining progroms to stoff; focilitoting leomwork omong oll oreos of the store; leoding
group meetings; coordinoting doy-lo-doy operotions of lhe store

2lPoge



a

Holly Alperl, Ph.D.
Scheduling l5-30 stoff on bi-weekly bosis; writing ond delivering performonce reviews;
interviewing, hiring. ond troining new employees; coordinoting doily operotions of one
deportment
Providing excellent cuslomer service in the Bicycling, Poddling, Ski, Climbing, ond
Comping deportmenls
Assisting in Grond Opening of Frominghom, Moss. locotion;implementing severol office
syslems; bonking ond oudiling of eoch doy's soles

a

Teochino

Universiiy of Coliforniq, Sqnlq Cruz, Sonlq Cruz, CA
Teoching Assistonl, 2004-2006
Plont Physiologicol Ecology. Politicol Economy ond lhe Environment, Ecology, ond Physicol ond
Chemicol Environmenl

Guesl leclures
UC Dovis: Environmentol Science & Monogement l2l (Woter Science ond Monogement)

r December 20,l3: lnyo-Mono lntegroted Regionol Woter Monogement Progrom
UC Sonto Cruz: EnvironmentolStudies 808 (Ecologicol Forecost for Globol Worming)

. Foll2004: Climote Chonge lmpocts on Freshwoler, Morine Syslems, ond Agriculiure

. Foll2005: Climole Chonge lmpocts on Agricullure ond Food Security
UC Sonto Cruz: Environmentol Sludies 162 (Plont Physiologicol Ecology)

. Winter 2006: Seed ond Seedling Ecology

Peer-Reviewed Publicoiions

a

a

Deltinger, Michoel, Holly Alpert. John Bottles, Jonothon Kusel, Hugh Sofford, Dorion
Fougeres, Clorke Knight. Louren Miller, Soroh Sowyer. 2018. Sierro Nevodo Summory Report.
Colifornio's Fourth Climole Chonge Assessment. Publicotion number:SUM-CCCA4-2018-
004.
Loik ME, Griffith AB. Alpert H, Concilio AL, Wode CE, Mortinson SJ. 2015. lmpoct of intro- vs.

inter-onnuol snow depth voriotion on woler relotions ond photosynthesis for lwo Greol
B osin Desert sh ru bs. Oeco/ogio I O. I 007/s004 42-0 I 5-3224-7
Loik, Michoel E., Alden B. Griffiih, Holly Alperl. 2013. lmpocts of long-term snow climole
chonge on o high-elevotion cold desert shrublond, Colifornio, USA. P/ont Ecology 214(2):
255-266.
Alperl, H., M.E. Loik. 2013. Pinus jeffreyiestoblishment olong o foresl-shrub ecotone in
eostern Colifornio, USA. Journolof Arid Environments90 12-21.
Loik ME, Alperl H, Griffith AB. 2010. Climote chonge ond snow depth impccis on vegetotion
of the Greot Bosin Desert-Sierro Nevodo ecotone. Poges 135-155 in Dollmeier F, Fenech A,
Moclver D, Szoro R, eds. Climote chonge, biodiversity, ond sustoinobility in lhe Americos.
Woshington, D.C.: Smithsonion lnsliiulion Scholorly Press.

Griffith, A.8.. H. Alperl. M.E. Loik. 2009. Predicting shrub ecophysiology in the Greot Bosin
Deseri using spectrol indices. Journol of Arid Environments 7 4(31: 3l 5-326.
Potrick, Liso, Jessico Coble, Dqniel Polls, Donielle lgnoce, Greg Bonon-Gofford, Alden
Griffith, Holly Alperl, Noiosjo Von Gestel, Troesho Robertson. Trovis E. Huxmon, John Zok,
Michoel E, Loik, Dovid Tissue. 2007. Effects of on increose in summer precipitotion on leof,
soil, ond ecosyslem fluxes of COz ond HzO in o sotol grosslond in Big Bend Notionol Pork.
Texos. Oeco/ogio l5l(4): 704-718.
"Corbon Cycle" - o conlributed orticle in Encyclopedio of Environment ond Sociefy, Soge

Publicotions.

a

a

a

a

3lPoge



Holly Alperl, Ph.D.
Service/Volunteer

Amorgoso Conservoncy
. Boord of directors, 2013 - 2019
. President, 2015 - 2019
. Secretory,2013-2015

Humone Sociely Boulder Volley, Boulder, CO
. Weekly volunteer cot kennel ossistont, helping to sociolize cots qnd reody ihem for

odoption, 2015 - 2O1B

Colifornio Deporlmenl of Woler Resources Climole Chonge TechnicolAdvisory Group
. 2012-2015: odvise slole woler monogers on issues reloled to climote chonge ond

locol/regionol woter plonning
. Co-ouihor of report "Perspecfives ond Guidonce for Climote Chonge Anolysis"

Coliforniq Nqlive Plont Society
. Vice President ond Progrom Choir. 2011-2014
. Served on Mory DeDecker gront progrom committee (Choir for one yeor)

Sierq Clqssic Theqlre
. Boord Member, 2OO7 -2011. Technicol odvisor; directing, octing. sei building, lighting design
. Directed ond coordinoled onnuol murder myslery dinnerfundroiser, 2007-2014

Siero Nevodo Alliqnce Woler qnd Climqle Chonge Compoign Advisory Commillee
. 2009-2011

Advisory Commitlee, Associolion of Monlerey Boy Areo Governments Proposilion 50
Desolinolion Projecl

. Quorlerly Meeiings, 2006-2007
Exponding Your Horizons in Science ond Molh

. UC Sonto Cruz, Morch 2006

. Conference for Brh - l2th grode girls
o Presenier: Will Redwood Trees Survive Globol Worming?

Gtoduole Sludent Represenlolive on Conservqlion Biologisl Seqrch Commitlee
. Environmentol Siudies Deportment UC Sonto Crvz,2005-2006

4lPoge





November 24, 2019 
 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
PO Box N 
Independence, CA  93526 
dellis@inyocounty.us 
 
Dear Inyo County Supervisors: 
 
I am pleased to be submitting my application to be appointed to the Inyo County Water 
Commission.  I have been studying and working on water issues in the eastern Sierra since 2003 
and am eager to take the next step in my involvement in the water community. 
 
I began coming to the area during my first year of graduate school to contribute to my advisor’s 
research on climate change impacts to ecosystems.  As I spent time here, I began to learn 
about the history of water exports in the Owens Valley and Mono Basin and quickly became 
fascinated.  I dedicated a chapter of my dissertation to examining potential impacts of altered 
hydrology to the surface water supplies of Mammoth Community Water District.   
 
As I was entering my last year of graduate school in 2008, the Inyo-Mono Integrated Regional 
Water Management Program (IRWMP) was beginning.  They were recruiting for a Program 
Assistant, and I saw the position as an opportunity to take a first step in a career dedicated to 
water resources in the eastern Sierra.  Twelve years later, I am now the Program for the Inyo-
Mono IRWMP.  Over 11 years, we have brought over $4.5 million in programmatic and project 
grant money to the region to support resilient water systems and healthy ecosystems.   
 
Through my academic career and the IRWM Program, I have endeavored to take a balanced 
and unbiased approach to water issues, trying to understand all viewpoints and recognizing that 
many issues have more than two sides.  I have worked hard to form and maintain strong working 
relationships with water stakeholders throughout the eastern Sierra, and I believe these 
relationships would be beneficial to my participation on the water commission.   
 
Finally, I am fully committed to the public outreach and education aspects of the commission’s 
responsibilities and look forward to deeper engagement with stakeholders on Owens Valley 
water issues. 
 
I thank you for your consideration of my application. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Holly Alpert, Ph.D. 
3577 Majestic Way 
Bishop, CA  93514 
760-709-2212 
holly.alpert@gmail.com  
 

mailto:dellis@inyocounty.us
mailto:holly.alpert@gmail.com


It is not likely I will be able to attend the December 17 Board of Supervisors meeting and the 
consideration of Water Commission applicants; I am slated to be in southern California for a 
meeting for work.  As such, I want to provide some additional information about my interest in 
serving on the Inyo County Water Commission:  
 
I am looking for a way to deepen my engagement in water issues in the Owens Valley.  Even 
though water is my career, serving on the Water Commission would be a different kind of 
involvement in the water community.  As a relative newcomer to the Owens Valley (I have lived 
in Bishop for almost two years; previously, I lived in Mammoth Lakes), I am interested in learning 
more about implementation of the Long Term Water Agreement (LTWA).  During graduate 
school, I interviewed many people in the Owens Valley to gain an understanding of the history 
and current flash points, and through the IRWM Program, I have been working with Owens 
Valley experts for more than a decade.  As a result, I feel my knowledge is broad, but serving on 
the Water Commission would allow me to dive deeper into the issues.  I would also look forward 
to an opportunity to engage more with City of Los Angeles staff and representatives.  
Throughout my studies and my work, I have tried hard to understand the many perspectives on 
Owens Valley water issues, and while I understand the Water Commission’s mission is to advise 
the Board of Supervisors on the implementation of the LTWA, I feel my ability to have a balanced 
perspective would be an asset to the Commission.  Above all else, relationships are paramount, 
and over 16 years of working on Eastern Sierra water issues, I have relationships in place with 
many of the key water-related stakeholders in the region.   
 
I appreciate your consideration of my application. 



Holly Alpert, Ph.D. 

1 | P a g e  
 

3577 Majestic Way 
Bishop, CA  93514 

760.709.2212 
holly.alpert@gmail.com 

 

Education             
 

University of California, Santa Cruz  
Ph.D., Environmental Studies (2009)  

• Dissertation Title:  Climate Change Implications for Conifer Distribution and Water 
Resources Management in the Eastern Sierra Nevada, California 
 

Wellesley College, Wellesley, MA  
Bachelor of Arts, Environmental Science and American Studies (1997) 

• Graduated cum laude; activities included:  theatre (directing, writing, technical work); 
Student Council to the Board of Trustees. 

• Conducted tree demography research within campus’ forest patches resulting in 
management recommendations for college’s landscape and grounds department. 

• Awarded Ethel L. Hersey Prize in American Studies for a play about women and AIDS. 
• Inducted into Sigma Xi, the Scientific Research Society. 

 

Employment             
 

Inyo-Mono Integrated Regional Water Management Program, Eastern Sierra, CA 
August 2008 – present 

Program Director (July 2016 – present) 
• Coordinate all activities of Inyo-Mono Regional Water Management Group 
• Represent Inyo-Mono IRWM Program at local, regional, and state meetings and 

conferences 
• Seek funding for high-priority projects 
• Ensure compliance with state rules and regulations regarding IRWM 
• Perform outreach and correspondence with local, regional, and state stakeholders and 

agencies, including tribes and disadvantaged communities 
• Manage state grants 
 
Program Manager (February 2011 – July 2016) 
• Responsible for managing day-to-day operations of IRWM Program, including 

overseeing staff 
• Worked with water system managers to secure funding and technical resources for 

priority projects 
• Responsible for incorporating climate change information and planning into Inyo-Mono 

IRWM Plan 
• Lead grant writing efforts for Proposition 84 Planning and Implementation grants, 

securing $2.2 million in grant funding for the region 
• Served as Project Manager for CA Proposition 84 Rounds 1 and 2 Planning Grant and 

Disadvantaged Communities Grant; oversee all work of these grants 
• Conducted public and targeted outreach meetings and served as primary point 

person for IRWM Program 
 

Project Assistant (August 2008 – February 2011) 
• Assisted in coordination and writing of Phase I Integrated Regional Water Management 

Plan for eastern Sierra region 
• Served as point person for communication with 50+ stakeholders 
• Organized monthly meetings for full stakeholder group and steering committee 



Holly Alpert, Ph.D. 

2 | P a g e  
 

• Prepared outreach materials and conduct outreach to new stakeholders 
 
California Rural Water Association, Sacramento, CA 
June 2016 – present 

Integrated Regional Water Management Program Coordinator 
• Conduct outreach to IRWM regions throughout CA 
• Manage grants and oversee work for two disadvantaged community involvement 

projects in eastern CA and southern CA 
 

Devils Postpile National Monument, Mammoth Lakes, CA 
August 2009 – September 2010 

Ecologist; Biological Sciences Technician 
• Responsible for developing natural resources program, including research, 

data/information management, and collaboration with research partners 
• Assisted with writing of first-ever General Management Plan and Resources Stewardship 

Strategy 
• Assisted in coordination of cold-air pooling project to assess possible impacts of climate 

change on the Monument 
• Supervised summer climate change intern 

 
University of California Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz, CA 
January 2004 – December 2008 

Graduate Student Researcher 
• Examined ecological impacts of seawater and brackish water desalination through a 

CA Proposition 50 grant to Professor Brent Haddad, which included working with 
partners from Stratus Consulting 

• Examined impacts of snow depth change as a proxy for projected climatic changes on 
vegetation communities in eastern California 

 
Earthwatch Institute, Mammoth Lakes, CA 
Summer 2004, 2005, 2006 

Resident/Research Assistant 
• Assisted project leader Dr. Michael Loik in hosting groups of exceptional high school 

students to participate in research at study sites in eastern California 
 
Oregon Humane Society, Portland, OR 
May 2001 – May 2002 

Development Assistant 
• Managed 40,000+-donor database; recorded daily donations and coordinated tribute 

gift program; composed thank-you letters to donors; produced other correspondence 
as directed; served as a liaison between organization and donors 

 
Recreational Equipment, Inc., Tigard, OR, and Framingham, MA 
June 1997 – May 2003 

Positions held:  Customer Service Specialist, Specialty Shop Manager, Specialty Shop 
Coordinator, Sales Specialist, Office Specialist 

 Responsibilities included: 
• Assisting customers in returns, ordering process, and other inquiries 
• Meeting sales goals in Outdoorwear specialty shop; coordinating and delivering new 

training programs to staff; facilitating teamwork among all areas of the store; leading 
group meetings; coordinating day-to-day operations of the store 



Holly Alpert, Ph.D. 

3 | P a g e  
 

• Scheduling 15-30 staff on bi-weekly basis; writing and delivering performance reviews; 
interviewing, hiring, and training new employees; coordinating daily operations of one 
department 

• Providing excellent customer service in the Bicycling, Paddling, Ski, Climbing, and 
Camping departments 

• Assisting in Grand Opening of Framingham, Mass. location; implementing several office 
systems; banking and auditing of each day’s sales 

 

Teaching             
    

University of California, Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz, CA 
Teaching Assistant, 2004-2006   
Plant Physiological Ecology, Political Economy and the Environment, Ecology, and Physical and 
Chemical Environment  

 
Guest Lectures 
UC Davis:  Environmental Science & Management 121 (Water Science and Management) 

• December 2013:  Inyo-Mono Integrated Regional Water Management Program 
UC Santa Cruz:  Environmental Studies 80B (Ecological Forecast for Global Warming) 

• Fall 2004:  Climate Change Impacts on Freshwater, Marine Systems, and Agriculture 
• Fall 2005:  Climate Change Impacts on Agriculture and Food Security 

UC Santa Cruz:  Environmental Studies 162 (Plant Physiological Ecology) 
• Winter 2006:  Seed and Seedling Ecology 

 

Peer-Reviewed Publications          
    

• Dettinger, Michael, Holly Alpert, John Battles, Jonathan Kusel, Hugh Safford, Dorian 
Fougeres, Clarke Knight, Lauren Miller, Sarah Sawyer. 2018. Sierra Nevada Summary Report. 
California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment. Publication number: SUM-CCCA4-2018-
004. 

• Loik ME, Griffith AB, Alpert H, Concilio AL, Wade CE, Martinson SJ.  2015.  Impact of intra- vs. 
inter-annual snow depth variation on water relations and photosynthesis for two Great 
Basin Desert shrubs. Oecologia 10.1007/s00442-015-3224-7 

• Loik, Michael E., Alden B. Griffith, Holly Alpert.  2013.  Impacts of long-term snow climate 
change on a high-elevation cold desert shrubland, California, USA.  Plant Ecology 214(2):  
255-266. 

• Alpert, H., M.E. Loik.  2013.  Pinus jeffreyi establishment along a forest-shrub ecotone in 
eastern California, USA.  Journal of Arid Environments 90:  12-21. 

• Loik ME, Alpert H, Griffith AB. 2010. Climate change and snow depth impacts on vegetation 
at the Great Basin Desert-Sierra Nevada ecotone. Pages 135-155 in Dallmeier F, Fenech A, 
MacIver D, Szaro R, eds. Climate change, biodiversity, and sustainability in the Americas. 
Washington, D.C.: Smithsonian Institution Scholarly Press. 

• Griffith, A.B., H. Alpert, M.E. Loik.  2009.  Predicting shrub ecophysiology in the Great Basin 
Desert using spectral indices.  Journal of Arid Environments 74(3):  315-326.   

• Patrick, Lisa, Jessica Cable, Daniel Potts, Danielle Ignace, Greg Barron-Gafford, Alden 
Griffith, Holly Alpert, Natasja Van Gestel, Traesha Robertson, Travis E. Huxman, John Zak, 
Michael E. Loik, David Tissue.  2007.  Effects of an increase in summer precipitation on leaf, 
soil, and ecosystem fluxes of CO2 and H20 in a sotol grassland in Big Bend National Park, 
Texas.  Oecologia 151(4):  704-718. 

•  “Carbon Cycle” – a contributed article in Encyclopedia of Environment and Society, Sage 
Publications. 

 

 
 



Holly Alpert, Ph.D. 

4 | P a g e  
 

Service/Volunteer                     
 

Amargosa Conservancy 
• Board of directors, 2013 - 2019 
• President, 2015 - 2019 
• Secretary, 2013-2015 

Humane Society Boulder Valley, Boulder, CO 
• Weekly volunteer cat kennel assistant, helping to socialize cats and ready them for 

adoption, 2015 - 2018 
California Department of Water Resources Climate Change Technical Advisory Group 

• 2012-2015; advised state water managers on issues related to climate change and 
local/regional water planning 

• Co-author of report “Perspectives and Guidance for Climate Change Analysis” 
California Native Plant Society 

• Vice President and Program Chair, 2011-2014 
• Served on Mary DeDecker grant program committee (Chair for one year) 

Sierra Classic Theatre 
• Board Member, 2007 – 2011  
• Technical advisor; directing, acting, set building, lighting design 
• Directed and coordinated annual murder mystery dinner fundraiser, 2007-2014 

Sierra Nevada Alliance Water and Climate Change Campaign Advisory Committee 
• 2009-2011 

Advisory Committee, Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments Proposition 50 
Desalination Project  

• Quarterly Meetings, 2006-2007 
Expanding Your Horizons in Science and Math   

• UC Santa Cruz, March 2006 
• Conference for 8th – 12th grade girls 
• Presenter:  Will Redwood Trees Survive Global Warming? 

Graduate Student Representative on Conservation Biologist Search Committee 
• Environmental Studies Department UC Santa Cruz, 2005-2006 

 



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment to Fish and Wildlife Commission 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board consider three (3) Letters of Interest received for one (1) vacancy on the Inyo County Fish and 
Wildlife Commission, and appoint one of those individuals to an unexpired four-year term ending October 6, 
2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board is the appointing authority for the Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Commission. In September, longtime 
member Joe Pecsi announced his retirement effective November 1. 

A Notice of Vacancy was published October 17 -- the earliest publication date allowed per the Board's 
appointment policy, which does not allow an unexpected vacancy (as the result of a resignation, for example) to 
be advertised any sooner than 20 days before it occurs. 

Three letters of interest were received by the end of the application period on October 30, from Mr. Toby 
Dickinson, Mr. Daniel McIntosh, and Mr. Warren Allsup, who is currently serving as an alternate on the 
Commission after being appointed by your Board on October 15 after an earlier recruitment.

Your Board's appointment policy states that in instances where a recruitment results in more candidates than 
positions available, those candidates are to be extended the opportunity to submit additional information about 
themselves that may help your Board in making its decision. Mr. Dickinson, Mr. McIntosh, and Mr. Allsup were 
notified of this policy at the close of the application period and invited to submit additional information. Mr. 
McIntosh submitted a second letter and the other two declined. All four letters are attached. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not appoint any of the applicants and re-open the recruitment for the Fish and 
Wildlife Commission, but this is not recommended.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
FINANCING:
There is no fiscal impact to the County associated with this appointment, other than the costs to advertise the 
Notice of Vacancy.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Notice of Vacancy - Fish and Wildlife Commission
2. Toby Dickinson-F&W Comm.
3. Warren Allsup-F&W Comm.
4. Daniel McIntosh-F&G Comm. (Letter 1)
5. Daniel McIntosh-F&W Comm. (Letter 2)
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/3/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 12/10/2019



PROOF OF PUBLICATION
(2015.5 C.C.P.)

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
COUNTY OF INYO

I am a citizen of the United States
and a resident of the County aforesaid.
I am over the age of eighteen years,

And not a party to or interested in the
above-entitled matter. I am the principal
clerk of the printer of the

The lnyo Register

County of lnyo
The lnyo Register has been adjudged a
newspaper of general circulation by the
Superior Court of the County of lnyo,
State of California, under date of
Oct. 5, 1953, Case Number 5414;
that the notice, of which the annexed
is a printed copy (set in type not
smaller than non-pareil), has been
published in each regular and entire
issue of said newspaper and not in
any supplement thereof, on the
following
date, to with:

October 17th
ln the year of 2019

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury
that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated at Bishop, California, on this
17th Day of October,2019

This space is for County Clerk's Filing Stamp

roof of Publication of
Public Notice

NOTICE OF VACANCY
INYO FISH & WILDLIFE

COMMISSION

NOTICE IS HEREBY-GIVEN
iii'in'" rnv" countY Board ot

i;;;iJt6 is accePtins aPPli'

""iion. 
to fill one (1) vacancY

"n 
in" lnYo Fish & Wildlile

6o.t-itii6n' one unexPired

i;;-;; term lor a resular

;;G; endins october 6'

2021.

I J",i 3'", 
"ll" 

'Fi,f ' Jl'i': ili i]3

6"r"rni.ii6n' Please submit

Jo'ui'tequ".t toi aPPointment to

in'J ci"ir ol the Board or su-

.L-*LorJat P.o' Drawer N' ln-

[Iou"O"n."' CA 93526 or del-

iil6]nuoJouittv.us' ln order for

"i":r'iJii".i 
t"r appointment to

ir" 
"onsidered, 

it must be re-

W:"."*ru:;;1"*3a1%tiT
(lB 10.17.2019 #19101 1 )

Signature



Darcy Ellis

From
Sent:
To:

Toby Dickinson <tdicki nsonl @suddenlink'net>

Wednesday, October 23,2019 9:44 PM

Darcy Ellis

Re: Application Letter Follow-uPSubject:

Board of Supervisors lnyo CountY

lndependence, CA

Vacancy on the Fish and Wildlife Commission:

My name is Toby Dickinson. I have lived in lnyo County since 1986. At that time I was appointed Chief

probation officer by the Honorable Don Chapman. one of my duties as Chief was to handle Fish and

wildlife(Fish and Game)violations committed by minors within my jurisdiction. This gave me the opportunity

to speak with many Wardens and other law enforcement officers. lt gave me a real look at that aspect of Fish

and Wildlife. Obviously there are multitude of laws, codes, regulations, new proposals and legislation which

must be dealt with.

I have had the opportunity to speak with Joe Pecsi on many occasions in an attempt to keep abreast of these

new attitudes and philosophy's coming from the State of California. lnyo/Mono Counties play major roles in

setting new regulations and guidelines for the State. lt is my hope to sit on the Fish and Wildlife Commission

to help direct and protect this beautiful area.

Thank You,

Toby Dickinson
Retired CPO lnyo CountY



FC+":i:'r': rf: .!
fi€;.- - r .ia.!.

o



Daniel A. Mclntosh
123 Olivia Lane, Big Pi ne, CA 93513' 7 60-920-8997. damcintosh 12@yahoo.com

October 24th,20L9

lnyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O. Box Drawer N
lndependence, CA 93526

Supervisors,

Please accept my request for appointment to the lnyo Fish & Wildlife Commission.
I was born and raised in the Owens Valley and have very strong ties accordingly. I am currently
employed with SCE and live in Big Pine. I am married with two children. Our hobbies include
hunting, fishing, or anything outdoors. I look forward to being involved with the
recommendation processes regarding wildlife resources within our county.

Your consideration of my request is gratefully appreciated

Sincerely,

DanielA. Mclntosh

lrl
-" lF

-_. 1..,:l

ds AJ
FA ii+

L; iJ:T

:3. tf"

t tfr{;} t!



Daniel A. Mclntosh
123 Olivia Lane, Big Pine, CA 93513 . 760-920-899L . damcintosh12@yahoo.com

November L2lh,20L9

lnyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O. Box Drawer N
lndependence, CA 93526

Supervisors,

': i 'irr +il*

" 
f:::J - ,'-

4€

<i

-"?
.+,nv r
ti*'

ill

l li

E'
{i}

Please accept my further request for appointment to the lnyo Fish & Wildlife Commissf6h.

I was born and raised in the Owens Valley and have very strong ties accordingly. After
graduatingfrom BUHS in 1998, lattended UNR in Reno, NVwhere lattained a bachelor's
degree in education. lmmediately out of college I was offered a job at Mammoth Pacific

Geothermal where I worked as a Power Plant Operator for 6 years. I am now employed with
SCE (for the last 10 years) as a Hydro Station System Operator. I have been married for almost
1-5 years to my beautiful wife Ruth. We own a home in Big Pine (since 2006) where we are

currently raising twin boys. Our hobbies include hunting, fishing, Little League, or anything
outdoors.
Overthe last 15 years I have been a localcommittee member of the Mule Deer Foundation and

California Deer Association, where we organized annual fundraising banquets.
I look forward to being more active in the community and being involved with the
recommendation processes regarding wildlife resources within our beloved county.

Your consideration of my request is gratefully appreciated

Sincerely,

DanielA. Mclntosh



County of Inyo

County Counsel/County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve proposed Resolution No. 2019-61, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo, State of California, Approving and Directing Execution of a Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement Relating to the California Municipal Finance Authority, Approving the Obtaining of a Loan by the 
Authority for the Purpose of Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition, Construction and Improvement of Certain 
Facilities for the Benefit of Wolverine/Inyo LLC, and Approving the First Amendment to Build to Suit Lease 
Agreement," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. (This resolution will facilitate financing for the County's future 
consolidated office building, which is being built by a private developer {Wolverine/Inyo LLC}. The County is not 
itself loaning money or assuming any obligations with respect to the financing; rather its "approval" is merely 
authorizing the Authority to proceed with the loan. The Authority requires the County to be a member of the JPA 
at the time the loan is made. There is no cost or obligation to the County in joining the JPA; on the contrary, the 
County may receive a portion of the Authority's fees {estimated at $8,000-10,000}. And the County can withdraw 
from the JPA at any time after the loan is made. The Resolution also authorizes certain amendments of the 
existing lease agreement, which are necessary and consistent with the proposed financing.)
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In January of this year, the County entered into a "Build to Suit Lease Agreement" with Wolverine/Inyo LLC (the 
"Landlord") for the Inyo County Consolidated Office Building, to be built by the Landlord in Bishop (between 
Bishop Ford and Grocery Outlet) and then leased to the County for a period of years after which the County 
would become the property owner.  The County is not required to obtain, or assist in obtaining, financing for the 
Landlord.  A copy of the lease is attached.

With the foregoing in mind, the Landlord has proposed and wishes to obtain financing (in an amount not to 
exceed $15 Million) through the California Municipal Finance Authority (CMFA), a joint powers agency.  CMFA 
would act as a conduit, borrowing money from Western Alliance Business Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Western Alliance Bank, an Arizona company, and then loaning that money to the Landlord.  The County would 
conceivably pay its rent (once it occupies the building) to that bank.  There is no cost, obligation, or risk to the 
County from such a financing mechanism. But CMFA requires that the County join the CMFA JPA and "approve" 
CMFA's loan, because CMFA as a policy matter is only interested in participating in projects that benefit and/or 
have the support of at least one of its members.  There is no cost, obligation, or risk to the County in joining the 
CMFA JPA, and the County can thereafter withdraw at any time after the loan is made.

The CMFA was created on January 1, 2004, pursuant to a joint exercise of powers agreement to promote 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

economic, cultural and community development, through the financing of economic development and charitable 
activities throughout California.  To date, over 300 California municipalities have become members of CMFA.  
The current list of member agencies is attached as an exhibit and includes 34 other California counties.

The CMFA was formed to assist local governments, non-profit organizations and businesses with financing 
aimed at improving the standard of living in California.  The CMFA’s representatives and its Board of Directors 
have considerable experience in financing.  The Board of Directors of the California Foundation for Stronger 
Communities, a California non-profit public benefit corporation and 501(c)(3) charity (the “Foundation”), acts as 
the Board of Directors for the CMFA.  Through its conduit financial activities, the CMFA shares a portion of the 
fees it receives with its member communities and donates a portion of these fees to the Foundation for the 
support of local charities.  With respect to the County of Inyo, it is expected that that a portion of the transaction 
fee will be granted by the CMFA to the general fund of the County.  Such grant may be used for any lawful 
purpose of the County.  The amount that the County is expected to receive is estimated at $8,000-10,000.

The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement provides that the CMFA is a public entity, separate and apart from each 
member executing such agreement.  The debts, liabilities and obligations of the CMFA do not constitute debts, 
liabilities or obligations of the members executing such agreement. 

The loan to be made by the CMFA for the Project will be the sole responsibility of the Borrower, and the County 
will have no financial, legal, moral obligation, liability or responsibility for the Project or the repayment of the loan 
for the financing of the Project.  All financing documents with respect to the transaction will contain clear 
disclaimers that the loans are not obligations of the County or the State of California, but are to be paid for solely 
from funds provided by the Borrower.

There are no costs associated with membership in the CMFA and the County will in no way become exposed to 
any financial liability by reason of its membership in the CMFA.  In addition, participation by the County in the 
CMFA will not impact the County’s appropriations limits and will not constitute any type of indebtedness by the 
County.  Outside of adopting the required resolution and executing the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of 
the CMFA, no other participation or activity of the County or the County Council with respect to the financing will 
be required.

The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement expressly provides that any member may withdraw from such 
agreement upon written notice to the Board of Directors of the CMFA.  In the case of the proposed bond 
financing for the Borrower, the County following its execution of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, could, 
at any time following the issuance of the Bonds, withdraw from the CMFA by providing written notice to the Board 
of Directors of the CMFA.  A representative of CMFA will be available by phone during the Board meeting to 
answer any questions the Board may have.

At this time, the Landlord has also requested to amend certain provisions of the lease agreement, both as a 
matter of "housekeeping," and in order to reflect and conform to this financing.  Specifically, the proposed lease 
amendment would provide updated exhibits such as the property description and site plan, and clarify the form of 
the "estoppel certificate" and subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement (SNDA), which are 
standard lease provisions, and fix one typo.  It would add a requirement to provide the Landlord's lender with 
financial information.  It would also clarify the future basic rent amount resulting from the financing (which is 
within the existing range of the lease agreement, albeit at the maximum amount permitted by the lease 
agreement). 

Note: the documents included in the agenda packet are the most recent versions sent and requested by the 
Landlord as of the agenda packet deadline.  Two exhibits of the lease amendment -- C (property description) and 
D (site plan) -- were not received by the agenda deadline.  Final versions of these documents may change and, if 
so, will be brought to the Board meeting.   

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

In January of this year, the County entered into a "Build to Suit Lease Agreement" with Wolverine/Inyo LLC (the 
"Landlord") for the Inyo County Consolidated Office Building, to be built by the Landlord in Bishop (between 
Bishop Ford and Grocery Outlet) and then leased to the County for a period of years after which the County 
would become the property owner.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decline to take any of the requested actions.  At a minimum, that would cause the Landlord to 
seek new and different financing at a potentially higher cost, which could in turn increase the County's rental 
costs, and would also delay the Landlord's construction of the building.  It would also negatively affect the 
Landlord's current contractual obligations to acquire the site by the end of 2019, and its timetable for submitting 
building permit plans before a new building code takes effect January 1st.  It could have other unintended 
negative consequences for the Landlord, the County, and successful completion of the project, and is not 
recommended.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Administrator
County Auditor-Controller
 
FINANCING:
There is no cost or financial obligation or risk to the County from taking any or the requested actions. The County 
may also receive from CMFA a portion of its fees for the transaction; estimated to result in the County receiving 
$8,000 to $10,000.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. INYO - Fully Executed Lease - 1.18.19
2. CMFA JPA Agreement- County of Inyo
3. CMFA Membership List (2)
4. COB Resolution
5. COB Lease Amendment
6. Estoppel Certificate 10752171-v2
7. Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement re 1360 North Main Street Bishop CA 

10751595-v2
 
APPROVALS:
Marshall Rudolph Created/Initiated - 12/13/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/13/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/13/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/13/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/13/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 12/13/2019





















































































































































































































































 
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

RELATING TO THE CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, dated as of January 1, 2004, among the parties executing this 
Agreement (all such parties, except those which have withdrawn as provided herein, are referred 
to as the “Members” and those parties initially executing this Agreement are referred to as the 
“Initial Members”): 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California Government Code 
(in effect as of the date hereof and as the same may from time to time be amended or supplemented, 
the “Joint Exercise of Powers Act”), two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly 
exercise any power common to the contracting parties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of the Members is a “public agency” as that term is defined in Section 
6500 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of the Members is empowered by law to promote economic, cultural and 
community development, including, without limitation, the promotion of opportunities for the 
creation or retention of employment, the stimulation of economic activity, the increase of the tax 
base, and the promotion of opportunities for education, cultural improvement and public health, 
safety and general welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of the Members may accomplish the purposes and objectives described 
in the preceding preamble by various means, including through making grants, loans or providing 
other financial assistance to governmental and  nonprofit organizations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each Member is also empowered by law to acquire and dispose of real 
property for a public purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Act authorizes the Members to create a joint 
exercise of powers entity with the authority to exercise any powers common to the Members, as 
specified in this Agreement and to exercise the additional powers granted to it in the Joint Exercise 
of Powers Act and any other applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public entity established pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act is 
empowered to issue or execute bonds, notes, commercial paper or any other evidences of 
indebtedness, including leases or installment sale agreements or certificates of participation therein 
(herein “Bonds”), and to otherwise undertake financing programs under the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Act or other applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California to accomplish its 
public purposes; and  
 



 WHEREAS, the Members have determined to specifically authorize a public entity 
authorized pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act to issue Bonds pursuant to the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act or other applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Members to use a public entity established pursuant to 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act to undertake the financing and/or refinancing of projects of any 
nature, including, but not limited to, capital or working capital projects, insurance, liability or 
retirement programs or facilitating Members use of existing or new financial instruments and 
mechanisms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is further the intention of the Members that the projects undertaken will 
result in significant public benefits to the inhabitants of the jurisdictions of the Members; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by this Agreement, each Member desires to create and establish the 
“California Municipal Finance Authority” for the purposes set forth herein and to exercise the 
powers provided herein;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Members, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
agreements herein contained, do agree as follows: 
 

Section 1.  Purpose. 

This Agreement is made pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act.  
The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a public entity for the joint exercise of powers 
common to the Members and for the exercise of additional powers given to a joint powers entity 
under the Joint Powers Act or any other applicable law, including, but not limited to, the issuance 
of Bonds for any purpose or activity permitted under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act or any other 
applicable law.  Such purpose will be accomplished and said power exercised in the manner 
hereinafter set forth. 
  

Section 2. Term. 

This Agreement shall become effective in accordance with Section 17 as of the date hereof 
and shall continue in full force and effect until such time as it is terminated in writing by all the 
Members; provided, however, that this Agreement shall not terminate or be terminated until all 
Bonds issued or caused to be issued by the Authority (defined below) shall no longer be 
outstanding under the terms of the indenture, trust agreement or other instrument pursuant to which 
such Bonds are issued, or unless a successor to the Authority assumes all of the Authority’s debts, 
liabilities and obligastions. 

 
Section 3. Authority. 

A. CREATION AND POWERS OF AUTHORITY. 

Pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, there is hereby created a public entity 
to be known as the “California Municipal Finance Authority” (the “Authority”), and said 



Authority shall be a public entity separate and apart from the Members.  Its debts, liabilities 
and obligations do not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of any Members.  

 
B. BOARD. 

The Authority shall be administered by the Board of Directors (the “Board,” or the 
“Directors” and each a “Director”) of the California Foundation for Stronger Communities, 
a nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the laws of the State of California 
(the “Foundation”), with each such Director serving in his or her individual capacity as a 
Director of the Board.  The Board shall be the administering agency of this Agreement and, 
as such, shall be vested with the powers set forth herein, and shall administer this 
Agreement in accordance with the purposes and functions provided herein.  The number 
of Directors, the appointment of Directors, alternates and successors, their respective terms 
of office, and all other provisions relating to the qualification and office of the Directors 
shall be as provided in the Articles and Bylaws of the Foundation, or by resolution of the 
Board adopted in accordance with the Bylaws of the Foundation. 

 
All references in this Agreement to any Director shall be deemed to refer to and 

include the applicable alternate Director, if any, when so acting in place of a regularly 
appointed Director. 

 
Directors may receive reasonable compensation for serving as such, and shall be 

entitled to reimbursement for any expenses actually incurred in connection with serving as 
a Director, if the Board shall determine that such expenses shall be reimbursed and there 
are unencumbered funds available for such purpose. 

 
The Foundation may be removed as administering agent hereunder and replaced at 

any time by amendment of this Agreement approved as provided in Section 16; provided 
that a successor administering agent of this Agreement has been appointed and accepted 
its duties and responsibilities under this Agreement. 

 
C. OFFICERS; DUTIES; OFFICIAL BONDS. 

The officers of the Authority shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary and 
Treasurer (defined below).  The Board, in its capacity as administering agent of this 
Agreement, shall elect a Chair, a Vice-Chair, and a Secretary of the Authority from among 
Directors to serve until such officer is re-elected or a successor to such office is elected by 
the Board.  The Board shall appoint one or more of its officers or employees to serve as 
treasurer, auditor, and controller of the Authority (the “Treasurer”) pursuant to Section 
6505.6 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act to serve until such officer is re-elected or a 
successor to such office is elected by the Board. 

 
Subject to the applicable provisions of any resolution, indenture, trust agreement or 

other instrument or proceeding authorizing or securing Bonds (each such resolution, 
indenture, trust agreement, instrument and proceeding being herein referred to as an 
“Indenture”) providing for a trustee or other fiscal agent, and except as may otherwise be 
specified by resolution of the Board, the Treasurer is designated as the depositary of the 



Authority to have custody of all money of the Authority, from whatever source derived and 
shall have the powers, duties and responsibilities specified in Sections 6505, 6505.5 and 
6509.5 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act. 

 
The Treasurer of the Authority is designated as the public officer or person who has 

charge of, handles, or has access to any property of the Authority, and such officer shall 
file an official bond with the Secretary of the Authority in the amount specified by 
resolution of the Board but in no event less than $1,000. 

 
The Board shall have the power to appoint such other officers and employees as it 

may deem necessary and to retain independent counsel, consultants and accountants. 
 
The Board shall have the power, by resolution, to the extent permitted by the Joint 

Exercise of Power Act or any other applicable law, to delegate any of its functions to one 
or more of the Directors or officers, employees or agents of the Authority and to cause any 
of said Directors, officers, employees or agents to take any actions and execute any 
documents or instruments for and in the name and on behalf of the Board or the Authority. 

 
D. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD. 

(1)  Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 

All meetings of the Board, including, without limitation, regular, 
adjourned regular, special, and adjourned special meetings shall be called, 
noticed, held and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act (commencing with Section 54950 of the Government Code 
of the State of California), or any successor legislation hereinafter enacted 
(the “Brown Act”). 

 
(2)  Regular Meetings. 

 
The Board shall provide for its regular meetings; provided, however, 

it shall hold at least one regular meeting each year.  The date, hour and place 
of the holding of the regular meetings shall be fixed by resolution of the 
Board.  To the extent permitted by the Brown Act, such meetings may be 
held by telephone conference. 

 
(3)  Special Meetings. 

 
Special meetings of the Board may be called in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 54956 of the Government Code of the State of 
California.  To the extent permitted by the Brown Act, such meetings may 
be held by telephone conference. 

 



(4)  Minutes. 
 

The Secretary of the Authority shall cause to be kept minutes of the 
regular, adjourned regular, special, and adjourned special meetings of the 
Board and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy of the 
minutes to be forwarded to each Director. 

 
(5)  Quorum. 

 
A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 

of business.  No action may be taken by the Board except upon the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors constituting a quorum, except 
that less than a quorum may adjourn a meeting to another time and place. 
 

E. RULES AND REGULATIONS. 

The Authority may adopt, from time to time, by resolution of the Board such rules 
and regulations for the conduct of its meetings and affairs as may be required. 

 
Section 4. Powers. 

The Authority shall have the power, in its own name, to exercise the common powers of 
the Members and to exercise all additional powers given to a joint powers entity under any of the 
laws of the State of California, including, but not limited to, the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, for 
any purpose authorized under this Agreement.  Such powers shall include the common powers 
specified in this Agreement and may be exercised in the manner and according to the method 
provided in this Agreement.  The Authority is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the 
exercise of such power, including, but not limited to, any of all of the following: to make and enter 
into contracts; to employ agents and employees; to acquire, construct, provide for maintenance 
and operation of, or maintain and operate, any buildings, works or improvements; to acquire, hold 
or dispose of property wherever located; to incur debts, liabilities or obligations; to receive gifts, 
contributions and donations of property, funds, services, and other forms of assistance from person, 
firms, corporations and any governmental entity; to sue and be sued in its own name; to make 
grants, loans or provide other financial assistance to governmental and nonprofit organizations 
(e.g., the Members or the Foundation) to accomplish any of its purposes; and generally to do any 
and all things necessary or convenient to accomplish its purposes.   

 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Authority may issue or cause to be 

issued Bonds, and pledge any property or revenues as security to the extent permitted under the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Act, or any other applicable provision of law; provided, however, the 
Authority shall not issue Bonds with respect to any project located in the jurisdiction of one or 
more Members unless the governing body of any such Member, or its duly authorized 
representative, shall approve, conditionally or unconditionally, the project, including the issuance 
of Bonds therefor.  Such approval may be evidenced by resolution, certificate, order, report or such 
other means of written approval of such project as may be selected by the Member (or its 
authorized representative) whose approval is required.  No such approval shall be required in 



connection with Bonds that refund Bonds previously issued by the Authority and approved by the 
governing board of a Member. 

 
The manner in which the Authority shall exercise its powers and perform its duties is and 

shall be subject to the restrictions upon the manner in which a California general law city could 
exercise such powers and perform such duties.  The manner in which the Authority shall exercise 
its powers and perform its duties shall not be subject to any restrictions applicable to the manner 
in which any other public agency could exercise such powers or perform such duties, whether such 
agency is a party to this Agreement or not. 

 
Section 5. Fiscal Year. 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Fiscal Year” shall mean the fiscal year as 
established from time to time by resolution of the Board, being, at the date of this Agreement, the 
period from July 1 to and including the following June 30, except for the first Fiscal Year which 
shall be the period from the date of this Agreement to June 30, 2004. 

 
Section 6. Disposition of Assets. 

At the end of the term hereof or upon the earlier termination of this Agreement as set forth 
in Section 2, after payment of all expenses and liabilities of the Authority, all property of the 
Authority both real and personal shall automatically vest in the Members in the manner and amount 
determined by the Board in its sole discretion and shall thereafter remain the sole property of the 
Members; provided, however, that any surplus money on hand shall be returned in proportion to 
the contributions made by the Members. 

 
Section 7. Bonds. 

From time to time the Authority shall issue Bonds, in one or more series, for the purpose 
of exercising its powers and raising the funds necessary to carry out its purposes under this 
Agreement.   

 
The services of bond counsel, financing consultants and other consultants and advisors 

working on the projects and/or their financing shall be used by the Authority.  The expenses of the 
Board shall be paid from the proceeds of the Bonds or any other unencumbered funds of the 
Authority available for such purpose. 

 
Section 8. Bonds Only Limited and Special Obligations of Authority. 

The Bonds, together with the interest and premium, if any, thereon, shall not be deemed to 
constitute a debt of any Member or pledge of the faith and credit of the Members or the Authority.  
The Bonds shall be only special obligations of the Authority, and the Authority shall under no 
circumstances be obligated to pay the Bonds except from revenues and other funds pledged 
therefor.  Neither the Members nor the Authority shall be obligated to pay the principal of, 
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or other costs incidental thereto, except from the 
revenues and funds pledged therefor, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the 
Members nor the faith and credit of the Authority shall be pledged to the payment of the principal 



of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds nor shall the Members or the Authority in any manner 
be obligated to make any appropriation for such payment. 

 
No covenant or agreement contained in any Bond or related document shall be deemed to 

be a covenant or agreement of any Director, or any officer, employee or agent of the Authority in 
his or her individual capacity and neither the Board of the Authority nor any Director or officer 
thereof executing the Bonds shall be liable personally on any Bond or be subject to any personal 
liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of any Bonds. 
 

Section 9. Accounts and Reports. 

 All funds of the Authority shall be strictly accounted for.  The Authority shall establish and 
maintain such funds and accounts as may be required by good accounting practice and by any 
provision of any Indenture (to the extent such duties are not assigned to a trustee of Bonds).  The 
books and records of the Authority shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by each 
Member. 
 
 The Treasurer of the Authority shall cause an independent audit to be made of the books 
of accounts and financial records of the Authority by a certified public accountant or public 
accountant in compliance with the provisions of Section 6505 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act.  
In each case the minimum requirements of the audit shall be those prescribed by the State 
Controller for special districts under Section 26909 of the Government Code of the State of 
California and shall conform to generally accepted auditing standards.  When such an audit of 
accounts and records is made by a certified public accountant or public accountant, a report thereof 
shall be filed as a public record with each Member and also with the county auditor of each county 
in which a Member is located; provided, however, that to the extent permitted by law, the Authority 
may, instead of filing such report with each Member and such county auditor, elect to post such 
report as a public record electronically on a website designated by the Authority.  Such report if 
made shall be filed within 12 months of the end of the Fiscal Year or Years under examination.   
 
 The Treasurer is hereby directed to report in writing on the first day of July, October, 
January, and April of each year to the Board and the Members which report shall describe the 
amount of money held by the Treasurer for the Authority, the amount of receipts since the last 
such report, and the amount paid out since the last such report (which may exclude amounts held 
by a trustee or other fiduciary in connection with any Bonds to the extent that such trustee or other 
fiduciary provided regular reports covering such amounts.) 
 
 Any costs of the audit, including contracts with, or employment of, certified public 
accountants or public accountants in making an audit pursuant to this Section, shall be borne by 
the Authority and shall be a charge against any unencumbered funds of the Authority available for 
that purpose. 
 
 In any Fiscal Year the Board may, by resolution adopted by unanimous vote, replace the 
annual special audit with an audit covering a two-year period. 
 



Section 10. Funds. 

Subject to the applicable provisions of any Indenture, which  may provide for a trustee or 
other fiduciary to receive, have custody of and disburse Authority funds, the Treasurer of the 
Authority shall receive, have the custody of and disburse Authority funds pursuant to the 
accounting procedures developed under Sections 3.C and 9, and shall make the disbursements 
required by this Agreement or otherwise necessary to carry out any of the provisions of purposes 
of this Agreement. 

 
Section 11. Notices. 

Notices and other communications hereunder to the Members shall be sufficient if 
delivered to the clerk of the governing body of each Member; provided, however, that to the extent 
permitted by law, the Authority may, provide notices and other communications and postings 
electronically (including, without limitation, through email or by posting to a website). 

 
Section 12. Additional Members/Withdrawal of Members. 

Qualifying public agencies may be added as parties to this Agreement and become 
Members upon:  (1) the filing by such public agency with the Authority of an executed counterpart 
of this Agreement, together with a copy of the resolution of the governing body of such public 
agency approving this Agreement and the execution and delivery hereof; and (2) adoption of a 
resolution of the Board approving the addition of such public agency as a Member.  Upon 
satisfaction of such conditions, the Board shall file such executed counterpart of this Agreement 
as an amendment hereto, effective upon such filing. 

 
A Member may withdraw from this Agreement upon written notice to the Board; provided, 

however, that no such withdrawal shall result in the dissolution of the Authority so long as any 
Bonds remain outstanding.  Any such withdrawal shall be effective only upon receipt of the notice 
of withdrawal by the Board which shall acknowledge receipt of such notice of withdrawal in 
writing and shall file such notice as an amendment to this Agreement effective upon such filing. 

 
Section 13. Indemnification. 

To the full extent permitted by law, the Board may authorize indemnification by the 
Authority of any person who is or was a Director or an officer, employee of other agent of the 
Authority, and who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to a proceeding by reason 
of the fact that such person is or was such a Director or an officer, employee or other agent of the 
Authority, against expenses, including attorneys fees, judgments, fines, settlements and other 
amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding, if such person acted 
in good faith in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the 
Authority and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the conduct 
of such person was unlawful and, in the case of an action by or in the right of the Authority, acted 
with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position 
would use under similar circumstances. 

 



Section 14. Contributions  and Advances. 

Contributions or advances of public funds and of the use of personnel, equipment or 
property may be made to the Authority by the Members for any of the purposes of this Agreement.  
Payment of public funds may be made to defray the cost of any such contribution or advance. Any 
such advance may be made subject to repayment, and in such case shall be repaid, in the manner 
agreed upon by the Authority and the Member making such advance at the time of such advance.  
It is mutually understood and agreed to that no Member has any obligation to make advances or 
contributions to the Authority to provide for the costs and expenses of administration of the 
Authority, even though any Member may do so.  The Members understand and agree that a portion 
of the funds of the Authority that otherwise may be allocated or distributed to the Members may 
instead be used to make grants, loans or provide other financial assistance to governmental units 
and  nonprofit organizations (e.g., the Foundation) to accomplish any of the governmental unit’s 
or nonprofit organization's purposes. 

 
Section 15. Immunities. 

All of the privileges and immunities from liabilities, exemptions from laws, ordinances and 
rules, and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agents or employees of Members 
when performing their respective functions within the territorial limits of their respective public 
agencies, shall apply to the same degree and extent to the Directors, officers, employees, agents or 
other representatives of the Authority while engaged in the performance of any of their functions 
or duties under the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
Section 16. Amendments. 

Except as provided in Section 12 above, this Agreement shall not be amended, modified, 
or altered, unless the negative consent of each of the Members is obtained. To obtain the negative 
consent of each of the Members, the following negative consent procedure shall be followed:  
(a) the Authority  shall provide each Member with a notice at least sixty (60) days prior to the date 
such proposed amendment is to become effective explaining the nature of such proposed 
amendment and this negative consent procedure; (b) the Authority  shall provide each Member 
who did not respond a reminder notice with a notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date such 
proposed amendment is to become effective; and (c) if no Member objects to the proposed 
amendment in writing within sixty (60) days after the initial notice, the proposed amendment shall 
become effective with respect to all Members. 

 
Section 17. Effectiveness. 

This Agreement shall become effective and be in full force and effect and a legal, valid and 
binding obligation of each of the Members on the date that the Board shall have received from two 
of the Initial Members an executed counterpart of this Agreement, together with a certified copy 
of a resolution of the governing body of each such Initial Member approving this Agreement and 
the execution and delivery hereof. 

 



Section 18. Partial Invalidity. 

If any one or more of the terms, provisions, promises, covenants or conditions of this 
Agreement shall to any extent be adjudged invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable for any reason 
whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each and all of the remaining terms, provisions, 
promises, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and shall be 
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
Section 19. Successors. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors of 
the parties hereto.  Except to the extent expressly provided herein, no Member may assign any 
right or obligation hereunder without the consent of the other Members. 

 
Section 20. Miscellaneous. 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original 
and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not to be construed as 

modifying or governing the language in the section referred to. 
 
Wherever in this Agreement any consent or approval is required, the same shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 
 
This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of California. 
 
This Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement among the 

Members, which supercedes and merges all prior proposals, understandings, and other agreements, 
whether oral, written, or implied in conduct, between and among the Members relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Inyo has caused this Agreement to be 
executed and attested by its duly authorized representatives as of the ___ day of _____________, 
2019. 

 
Member: 
 
COUNTY OF INYO 
 
By    
Name: 
Title: 

 
ATTEST: 

 
__________________________________ 
 Clerk 
 
 



 

 

   

________________________________________________________________________ 
2111 Palomar Airport Road, Suite 320 • Carlsbad, CA 92011 • (760) 930-1221 • Fax (760) 683-3390 

 

MEMBERSHIP LIST 
 

12/11/2019 

 

Tax-Exempt Financing 

Throughout California 

CITIES & TOWNS 
 
Adelanto 
Alameda 
Albany 
Aliso Viejo 
American Canyon 
Anaheim 
Anderson 
Apple Valley 
Arvin 
Auburn 
Avenal 
Azusa 
Bakersfield 
Beaumont 
Bell 
Bellflower 
Bell Gardens 
Berkeley 
Big Bear Lake 
Blythe 
Brea 
Brentwood 
Buena Park 
Burbank 
Calexico 
California City 
Calipatria 
Calistoga  
Camarillo 
Campbell 
Canyon Lake 
Capitola 
Carlsbad 
Carson 
Cathedral City 
Chico 
Chino 
Chino Hills 
Chula Vista 
Citrus Heights 
Claremont 
Cloverdale 
Clovis 
 

 
 
Coachella 
Coalinga 
Colton 
Commerce 
Corona 
Corcoran 
Costa Mesa 
Culver City 
Daly City 
Danville 
Davis 
Dinuba 
Duarte 
Dublin 
El Cajon 
El Centro 
El Cerrito 
El Monte 
El Segundo 
Elk Grove 
Encinitas 
Escondido 
Eureka 
Fairfax 
Fairfield 
Farmersville 
Fillmore 
Firebaugh 
Folsom 
Fontana 
Fort Bragg 
Fortuna 
Fowler 
Fremont 
Fresno 
Gardena 
Garden Grove 
Gilroy 
Glendora 
Glendale 
Goleta 
Grass Valley 
Greenfield 
 

 
 
Hanford 
Hawthorne 
Hayward 
Huntington Beach 
Huntington Park 
Huron 
Imperial Beach 
Indian Wells 
Indio 
Industry 
Inglewood 
Ione 
Irvine 
Jurupa Valley 
Kerman 
La Mesa 
La Mirada 
La Puente 
La Quinta 
La Verne 
Lake Forest 
Lakeport 
Lancaster 
Lemoore 
Lathrop 
Lincoln 
Live Oak 
Long Beach 
Los Angeles 
Lynwood 
Madera 
Marina 
Manteca 
Marysville 
McFarland 
Menlo Park 
Mendota 
Menifee 
Merced 
Mill Valley 
Milpitas 
Mission Viejo 
Modesto 
 

 
 
Montclair 
Moreno Valley 
Morgan Hill 
Mountain View 
Napa 
National City 
Nevada City 
Newark 
Newport Beach 
Oakdale 
Oakland 
Oakley 
Oceanside 
Orange 
Orange Cove 
Oxnard 
Palm Desert 
Palm Springs 
Palmdale 
Palo Alto 
Paradise 
Parlier 
Pasadena 
Paterson 
Petaluma 
Pismo Beach 
Pittsburg 
Pleasant Hill 
Pleasanton 
Plymouth 
Pomona 
Porterville 
Poway 
Rancho Cordova 
Rancho Cucamonga 
Rancho Mirage 
Rancho Santa Margarita 
Red Bluff 
Redding 
Redlands 
Redwood City 
Reedley 
Rialto 
 



 

 

   

________________________________________________________________________ 
2111 Palomar Airport Road, Suite 320 • Carlsbad, CA 92011 • (760) 930-1221 • Fax (760) 683-3390 

 

MEMBERSHIP LIST 
 

12/11/2019 

 

Tax-Exempt Financing 

Throughout California 

Richmond 
Riverbank 
Riverside 
Rocklin 
Rohnert Park  
Roseville 
Salinas 
Sacramento 
San Bernardino 
San Buenaventura  
San Clemente 
San Diego 
San Francisco 
San Jacinto 
San Joaquin 
San Jose 
San Leandro 
San Luis Obispo 
San Marcos 
San Rafael 
San Ramon 
Sanger 

Santa Ana 
Santa Barbara 
Santa Clarita 
Santa Cruz 
Santa Fe Springs 
Santa Maria 
Santa Monica 
Santa Paula 
Santa Rosa 
Santee 
Saratoga 
Sausalito 
Seaside 
Selma 
Shafter 
Simi Valley 
Solana Beach 
South Gate 
South Lake Tahoe 
South San Francisco 
Stanton 
St. Helena 

Stockton 
Sunnyvale 
Taft 
Thousand Oaks 
Torrance 
Tustin 
Twentynine Palms 
Ukiah 
Union City 
Upland 
Vacaville          
Vallejo 
Vernon 
Victorville 
Vista 
Walnut 
Walnut Creek 
Wasco 
Watsonville 
West Hollywood 
West Covina 
West Sacramento 

Westlake Village 
Whittier 
Wildomar 
Willows 
Windsor 
Winters 
Woodland 
Yountville 
Yuba City 
Yucca Valley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

   

________________________________________________________________________ 
2111 Palomar Airport Road, Suite 320 • Carlsbad, CA 92011 • (760) 930-1221 • Fax (760) 683-3390 

 

MEMBERSHIP LIST 
 

12/11/2019 

 

Tax-Exempt Financing 

Throughout California 

 
 

COUNTIES 
 
Alameda 
Contra Costa 
El Dorado 
Fresno 
Imperial 
Kern 
Kings 
Lake 
Marin 
Mendocino 
Merced 
Monterey 
Orange 
Placer 
Riverside 
Sacramento 
San Bernardino 
San Diego 
San Francisco 
San Joaquin 
San Luis Obispo  
San Mateo 
Santa Barbara 
Santa Clara 
Santa Cruz 
Shasta 
Solano 
Sonoma 
Stanislaus 
Tulare 
Tuolumne 
Ventura 
Yolo 
Yuba 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 
Adelanto Elementary School District 
Antelope Valley – East Kern Water Agency 
Camrosa Water 
Cucamonga Valley Water  
East Valley Water 
Humboldt Community Services  
Lammersville Joint Unified School 
Marin Municipal Water 
Mayers Memorial Hospital 
Nevada Irrigation 
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital 
Otay Water 
Palmdale Water District 
Palomar Health 
Pittsburg Unified School 
Roseville Joint Union High School District 
Ross Valley Public Financing Authority 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
San Diego County Water Authority 
San Ramon Valley Unified School  
Sanitary No. 5 of Marin County  
Sierra Kings Health Care 
South Coast Water 
Tracy Joint Unified School 
Trinity Public Utilities 
Tulare Local Health Care 
Valley County Water District 
Washington Township Hospital 
Water Replenishment District of So. California 
Yorba Linda Water District 



RESOLUTION NO. ___________

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING, 

AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING EXECUTION OF A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS 
AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE 

AUTHORITY, APPROVING THE OBTAINING OF A LOAN BY THE AUTHORITY 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING OR REFINANCING THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION AND IMPROVEMENT OF CERTAIN FACILITIES FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF WOLVERINE/INYO LLC, AND APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO BUILD TO SUIT LEASE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code 
of the State of California (the “Act”), certain public agencies (the “Members”) have entered 
into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the California Municipal Finance 
Authority, dated as of January 1, 2004 (the “Agreement”) in order to form the California 
Municipal Finance Authority (the “Authority”), for the purpose of promoting economic, 
cultural and community development, and in order to exercise any powers common to the 
Members, including the issuance of bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness; and

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (the “County”), has determined that it is in the public 
interest and for the public benefit that the County become a Member of the Authority in order 
to facilitate the promotion of economic, cultural and community development activities in the 
County, including the financing of projects therefor by the Authority; and

WHEREAS, there is now before this Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) the form of 
the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized to obtain a loan for the purpose, among 
others, of financing or refinancing the construction of capital projects; and 

WHEREAS, Wolverine/Inyo LLC, a Texas limited liability company (the 
“Company”), wishes, pursuant to a plan of finance, to (i) finance and refinance the 
acquisition, construction, improvement and equipping of a certain office building, to be 
occupied by the County, including related site improvements, and parking, located in the City 
of Bishop, a city in the County; and (ii) pay costs of issuance and certain interest with respect 
to the Loan, hereinafter defined; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the Authority obtain a loan in the 
amount of $14,000,000(the “Authority Loan”) from Western Alliance Business Trust, a 
wholly owned affiliate of Western Alliance Bank, an Arizona corporation (the “Lender”), 
the interest with respect to all or a portion of which Authority Loan is expected to be exempt 
from State of California personal income taxes, for the purpose of making a loan to the 
Company (the “Company Loan,” and together with the Authority Loan, the “Loan”), for the 
purpose of among others of financing and/or refinancing the Project; and 



WHEREAS, in order for the Loan to comply with Section 4 of the Agreement, the 
Board of the County must approve the Authority Loan; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the Board approve the Authority Loan 
in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 4 of the Agreement; and 

            WHEREAS, it is in the public interest and for the public benefit that the Board 
approve the Authority Loan for the aforesaid purposes; and
            WHEREAS, the County and the Company have heretofore entered into a Build to 
Suit Lease Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2018 (the “Original Agreement”); and 
            WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Original Agreement in connection with 
financing the Project; and

  Whereas, there has been submitted to the Board a form of First Amendment to Build 
to Suit Lease Agreement, dated as of December 24, 2019 (the “First Amendment”), to be 
entered into between the County and the Company;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Inyo, as follows:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.
Section 2. The Agreement is hereby approved and the County Administrative Officer or 
the designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed to execute said document, and the 
Clerk of the Board or such Clerk’s designee is hereby authorized and directed to attest 
thereto.
Section 3. The Board hereby approves the Authority Loan to be entered into by the 
Authority.  It is the purpose and intent of the Board that this resolution constitute approval of 
the Authority Loan by the Board in accordance with Section 4 of the Agreement.
Section 4. The Loan shall be subject to the approval of the Authority of all financing 
documents relating thereto to which the Authority is a party.  The County shall have no 
responsibility or liability whatsoever with respect to the Loan. 
Section 5. The adoption of this Resolution shall not obligate the County or any 
department thereof to (i) provide any financing to acquire or construct the Project or any 
refinancing of the Project; (ii) approve any application or request for or take any other action 
in connection with any planning approval, permit or other action necessary for the 
acquisition, construction, rehabilitation or operation of the Project; (iii) make any 
contribution or advance any funds whatsoever to the Authority; or (iv) take any further action 
with respect to the Authority or its membership therein.
Section 6. The Board hereby approves the First Amendment in substantially the form 
submitted to the Board, and the County Administrative Officer or the designee thereof is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute said document in substantially said form, with such 
changers and insertions therein as such County Administrative Officer or designee with the 
advice of counsel to the County, may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced 
by the execution and delivery thereof by the County Administrative Officer or designee. 
Section 7. The executing officers(s), the Clerk and all other proper officers and officials 
of the County are hereby authorized and directed to execute such other agreements, 



documents and certificates, and to perform such other acts and deeds, as may be necessary or 
convenient to effect the purposes of this Resolution and the transactions herein authorized.
Section 8. The Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Resolution and an originally 
executed Agreement to the Authority in care of its counsel:

Ronald E. Lee, Esq.
Jones Hall, APLC
475 Sansome Street, Suite 1700
San Francisco, CA 94111

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of 
California, this __ day of December 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

______________________________________
Chairperson
INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ATTEST:  Clint Quilter
    Clerk of the Board

by: ______________________________ 
Darcy Ellis, Assistant



DM2\10748102.2

FIRST AMENDMENT TO BUILD TO SUIT LEASE AGREEMENT

This First Amendment, dated as of December 24, 2019 (this “First Amendment”), to the 
Build to Suit Lease Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2019 (the “Original Agreement”), 
between Wolverine/Inyo LLC (the “Company”) and the County of Inyo (the “County”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, in January 2019, the Company and the County entered into the Original 
Agreement to document the build to suit lease arrangement between the Company and the 
County, including the price of the Project and the rent to be paid by the County to support the 
financing of such Project; and 

WHEREAS, the actual price of the Project has been reduced and the Original Agreement 
must be amended to reflect such reduction; and 

WHEREAS, other provisions of the Original Agreement must be amended to reflect the 
loan on even date hereof of the California Municipal Finance Authority (the “Authority”) from 
Western Alliance Business Trust (the “Lender”) for the purpose of making a loan on even date 
hereof to the Company (the loan from the Lender to the Authority and from the Authority to the 
Company being collectively the “Loan”), the proceeds of which are being used to finance the 
Project; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the terms and conditions set 
forth below, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

I. All defined terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such 
terms in the Original Agreement.

II. Landlord has had site control of the Property since the Effective Date, and, on or before 
December 24, 2019, will be the owner in fee of the Property.  

III. Paragraph IV. D is hereby amended to read as follows

D. Basic Annual Rent. Tenant agrees to pay Landlord “Basic Annual Rent” of Four 
Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Thirty-Two and 59/100 Dollars ($479,132.59), 
payable to Landlord in equal monthly installments of Thirty-Nine Thousand, Nine Hundred 
Twenty-Seven and72/100 / Dollars ($39,927.72), commencing on the Lease Commencement 
Date and continuing thereafter on the first (1st) day of each month throughout the Term, without 
offset or deduction of any kind. The first monthly payment of Basic Annual Rent shall be in 
addition to the Additional Basic Rent in the amount of $7,800,000, as provided in Paragraph 
IV.E below.

IV. Paragraph V. E. 2. (i) is hereby amended to read as follows: (i) insurance for loss of rent 
for a period of at least 24 months.



2
DM2\10748102.2

V. Paragraph X.D.3(b) is hereby amended so that the references in the third line and in the 
6th line are changed from Paragraph IV.G to Paragraph IV.H. 

VI. Article XII is hereby amended by adding the following sentence: The parties agree that 
the form of estoppel certificate attached as Exhibit H, when completed and fully executed, shall 
satisfy the requirements of Article XII. See Estoppel Certificate, attached hereto as Attachment 
A.

VII. Article XIII is hereby amended by adding the following sentence: Tenant acknowledges 
that the form of SNDA attached as Exhibit I is commercially reasonable as described in 
Paragraph XIII.B, subject to reasonably requested modifications, if any, by Lender.  See SNDA 
attached hereto as Attachment B.

VIII. Paragraph XIII A is hereby amended by adding the following two  sentences: The 
Security Instrument referred to in this Article XIII, including this Paragraph XIII A is the Deed 
of Trust with Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement, Fixture Filing and 
Financing Statement, dated as of December 24, 2019, by Landlord to First American Title 
Insurance Company for the benefit of the California Municipal Finance Authority (the “Deed of 
Trust”), which Deed of Trust has been assigned to Western Alliance Business Trust (the 
‘Lender”), pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, dated as of December 24, 2019. This 
provision serves as notice by Landlord to Tenant of the Security Instrument.  

IX. Article XX is hereby amended by adding a new Paragraph C to read as follows:

C. Tenant Reporting Requirements. Tenant shall provide the Lender with the following 
documentation and information:

1. Audited financial statements of Tenant for the preceding fiscal year, to be delivered within 
nine (9) months of Tenant's fiscal year end; 

2. Certification of Tenant that it is not aware of any default or Event of Default under this 
Lease, to be delivered within nine (9) months of Tenant's fiscal year end; 

3. Annual approved operating budget of Tenant, to be delivered within one (1) month after its 
adoption; 

4. Notice of the occurrence of any Event (as described under 17 CFR 240.l5c2-12(b)(5)(c)), 
in a timely manner, but not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of the Event.

X. Addendum 1 definition of “Landlord’s Financing” is hereby amended to read as follows: 
Landlord’s Financing shall mean collectively the Loan, dated as of December 24, 2019, from 
Western Alliance Business Trust to the California Municipal Finance Authority, and from the  
California Municipal Finance Authority to Landlord in the aggregate principal amount of 
Fourteen Million Dollars ($14,000,000.00), of which no more than Six Million, Two Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($6,200,000.00) shall remain outstanding after the payment of the Additional 
Basic Rent by Tenant on the Lease Commencement Date. This definitional change also serves as 
notice to and consent by Tenant to the Landlord’s Financing.



3
DM2\10748102.2

XI. Exhibit A is deleted and replaced with the revised Exhibit A attached hereto as 
Attachment C.

XII. Exhibit B is deleted and replaced with the Site Plan attached hereto as Attachment D.  

XIII. Exhibit G is hereby deleted. 

XIV. Except as amended by this First Amendment, the Original Agreement remains in full 
force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the County have caused this First Amendment to 
Build to Suit Lease Agreement to be executed this December 24, 2019.

[Signature Page Follows]



Signature Page to First Amendment to Build to Suite Lease Agreement
DM2\10748102.2

WOLVERINE/INYO LLC

By: 
Name:
Title: 

THE COUNTY OF INYO, CALIFORNIA 

By: 
Name:
Title: 





Exhibit ___ 
DM2\10752171.2

ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

The undersigned (“Tenant/Landlord”) hereby certifies and confirms to 
 (“Tenant/Landlord”) [,  (“Buyer”) and 

any present or future lender of Buyer who has (or will have) a mortgage encumbering the 
Property (“Lender”)], as follows:

1. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a true, correct and complete copy of that certain 
Build To Suit Lease Agreement, dated January 18, 2019, as amended by that First Amendment 
to Build To Suit Lease Agreement dated December ___, 2019 (collectively, the “Lease”) by and 
between Landlord and Tenant, together with other amendments, with respect to certain 
premises comprising ________________ square feet (the “Premises”) at the building located at 
the street address of 1360 N. Main Street, Bishop, California (the “Property”), which Premises 
are more particularly described in the Lease.  The Lease represents the entire agreement 
between the parties as to the Premises, is now in full force and effect, and has not been 
amended, modified or supplemented, except as set forth in Paragraph 3 below.  Tenant claims 
no rights with respect to the Property other than as set forth in the Lease

2. The term of the Lease commenced on ____________, 20__ and expires on 
.  The Lease is presently in full force and effect according to its 

terms and is the valid and binding obligation of [Tenant/Landlord].

3. The Lease has not been amended, modified, supplemented, extended or 
renewed, except as follows:  ____________________________________.

4. As of the date of this Estoppel Certificate, Tenant is not in arrears on any Rent 
(as defined in the Lease) or other charges payable by Tenant under the Lease.  

5. No deposits or prepayments of rent have been made in connection with the 
Lease, except as follows (if none, state “None”): 

.

6. To the best of [Tenant’s/Landlord’s] knowledge, neither Landlord nor Tenant is in 
default under the Lease (nor do any events currently exist that with the passage of time or the 
giving of notice, or both, could constitute such a default under the Lease).  

7. The undersigned is authorized to execute this Estoppel Certificate on behalf of 
[Tenant/Landlord].

8. This Estoppel Certificate is being furnished to [Tenant/Landlord, Buyer and 
Lender], in connection with .  This Estoppel Certificate 
may be relied upon by [Tenant/Landlord, Buyer and Lender and their respective successors and 
assigns] and shall be binding upon [Tenant/Landlord] and [Tenant’s/Landlord’s] successors and 
permitted assigns.

[Signature Page Follows]



Exhibit ___ 
DM2\10752171.2

Dated: ___________, 20__ [TENANT/LANDLORD]:

By:

Name:

Title:



DM2\10752171.2

EXHIBIT “1”

LEASE



Page 1
DM2\10751595.2

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Attention:  
 

Street Address: 1360 North Main Street, Bishop, California 93514
APN: 010-490-14-00

SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

NOTICE: THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT RESULTS IN YOUR SECURITY INTEREST IN 
THE PROPERTY BECOMING SUBJECT TO AND OF LOWER PRIORITY THAN THE 
LIEN OF SOME OTHER OR LATER SECURITY INSTRUMENT.

THIS SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 
made December ___, 2019 by and among WOLVERINE\INYO LLC, a Texas limited liability company 
(“Owner” or “Landlord”), COUNTY OF INYO, a political subdivision of the State of California (“Tenant”) 
and Western Alliance Business Trust, a Delaware statutory trust (“Lender”).

R E C I T A L S

A. Pursuant to the terms and provisions of a Build To Suit Lease Agreement dated as of January 18, 
2019, as amended by that certain First Amendment to Build To Suit Lease Agreement dated 
December ___, 2019 (collectively, the “Lease”), Tenant holds a leasehold estate in and to the 
property described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (which 
property, together with all improvements now or hereafter located on the property, is defined as 
the “Property”).

B. Owner has executed a Deed of Trust with Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement, 
Fixture Filing and Financing Statement dated as of December 24, 2019 (“Security Instrument”) 
securing, among other things, a Series A Loan in the original principal amount of Seven Million 
Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($7,200,000) and a Series B Loan in the original principal 
amount of Seven Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($7,800,000), both dated as of 
December 24, 2019, in favor of Lender, evidencing loans in those amounts (collectively, the 
“Loan”).  The Security Instrument has been recorded prior to the date of this Agreement or is to 
be recorded concurrently herewith.

C. As a condition to making the Loan secured by the Security Instrument, Lender requires that the 
Security Instrument be unconditionally and at all times remain a lien on the Property, prior and 
superior to all the rights of Tenant under the Lease and that the Tenant specifically and 
unconditionally subordinate the Lease to the lien of the Security Instrument.

D. Owner and Tenant have agreed to the subordination, attornment and other agreements herein in 
favor of Lender.



Page 2
DM2\10751595.2

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration and to induce Lender to make the Loan, Owner and 
Tenant hereby agree for the benefit of Lender as follows:

1. SUBORDINATION.  Owner and Tenant hereby agree that:

1.1 Prior Lien.  The Security Instrument securing repayment of the Loan in favor of Lender, 
and any modifications, renewals or extensions thereof (including, without limitation, any 
modifications, renewals or extensions with respect to any additional advances made 
subject to the Security Instrument), shall unconditionally be and at all times remain a lien 
on the Property prior and superior to the Lease;

1.2 Subordination.  Lender would not make the Loan without this agreement to subordinate; 
and

1.3 Whole Agreement.  This Agreement shall be the whole agreement and only agreement 
with regard to the subordination of the Lease to the lien of the Security Instrument and 
shall supersede and cancel, but only insofar as would affect the priority between the 
Security Instrument and the Lease, any prior agreements as to such subordination, 
including, without limitation, those provisions, if any, contained in the Lease which 
provide for the subordination of the Lease to a deed or deeds of trust or to a mortgage or 
mortgages.

AND FURTHER, Tenant individually declares, agrees and acknowledges for the benefit of Lender 
that:

1.4 Use of Proceeds.  Lender, in making disbursements pursuant to the Loan, the Security 
Instrument or any agreements with respect to the Property, is under no obligation or duty 
to, nor has Lender represented that it will, see to the application of such proceeds by the 
person or persons to whom Lender disburses such proceeds, and any application or use 
of such proceeds for purposes other than those provided for in such agreement or 
agreements shall not, to any extent, defeat this agreement to subordinate; 

1.5 Waiver, Relinquishment and Subordination.  Tenant intentionally and unconditionally 
waives, relinquishes and subordinates all of Tenant’s right, title and interest in and to the 
Property to the lien of the Security Instrument and understands that, in reliance upon, and 
in consideration of, this waiver, relinquishment and subordination, specific loans and 
advances are being and will be made by Lender and, as part and parcel thereof, specific 
monetary and other obligations are being and will be entered into which would not be 
made or entered into but for said reliance upon this waiver, relinquishment and 
subordination.

2. ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT.  Tenant acknowledges and consents to the assignment of the 
Lease by Landlord in favor of Lender.

3. ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS.  Tenant covenants and agrees that, during all such times as 
Lender is the beneficiary under the Security Instrument:

3.1 Modification, Termination and Cancellation.  Tenant will not consent to any 
modification, amendment, termination or cancellation of the Lease (in whole or in part) 
without Lender’s prior written consent and will not make any payment to Landlord in 
consideration of any modification, termination or cancellation of the Lease (in whole or in 
part) without Lender’s prior written consent;

3.2 Notice of Default.  Tenant will notify Lender in writing concurrently with any notice given 
to Landlord of any default by Landlord under the Lease, and Tenant agrees that Lender 



Page 3
DM2\10751595.2

has the right (but not the obligation) to cure any breach or default specified in such notice 
within the time periods set forth below and Tenant will not declare a default of the Lease 
if Lender cures such default within fifteen (15) days from and after the expiration of the 
time period provided in the Lease for the cure thereof by Landlord (or any longer cure 
period provided to Lender under the Lease); provided, however, that if such default 
cannot with diligence be cured by Lender within such fifteen (15) day period (or such 
longer cure period provided to Lender under the Lease), the commencement of action by 
Lender within such fifteen (15) day period (or such longer cure period provided to Lender 
under the Lease) to remedy the same shall be deemed sufficient so long as Lender 
pursues such cure with diligence; and

3.3 No Advance Rents.  Tenant will make no payments or prepayments of rent more than 
one (1) month in advance of the time when the same become due under the Lease.

4. ATTORNMENT.  In the event of a foreclosure under the Security Instrument, Tenant agrees for the 
benefit of Lender (including for this purpose any transferee of Lender or any transferee of 
Landlord’s title in and to the Property by Lender’s exercise of the remedy of sale by foreclosure 
under the Security Instrument) as follows:

4.1 Continuation of Performance.  Tenant shall be bound to Lender in accordance with all 
of the provisions of the Lease for the balance of the term thereof, and Tenant hereby 
attorns to Lender as its landlord, such attornment to be effective and self-operative 
without the execution of any further instrument immediately upon Lender succeeding to 
Landlord’s interest in the Lease and giving written notice thereof to Tenant;

4.2 Payment of Rent.  Tenant shall pay to Lender all Rent (as defined in the Lease) and all 
other payments required to be made by Tenant pursuant to the terms of the Lease for the 
duration of the term of the Lease;

4.3 No Offset.  Lender shall not be liable for, nor subject to, any offsets or defenses which 
Tenant may have by reason of any act or omission of Landlord under the Lease, nor for 
the return of any sums which Tenant may have paid to Landlord under the Lease as and 
for security deposits, advance rentals or otherwise, except to the extent that such sums 
are actually delivered by Landlord to Lender; and

4.4 Subsequent Transfer.  If Lender, by succeeding to the interest of Landlord under the 
Lease, should become obligated to perform the covenants of Landlord thereunder, then, 
upon any further transfer of Landlord’s interest by Lender, all of such obligations shall 
terminate as to Lender.

5. NON-DISTURBANCE.  In the event of a foreclosure under the Security Instrument, so long as 
there shall then exist no breach, default, or event of default on the part of Tenant under the 
Lease, Lender agrees for itself and its successors and assigns that the leasehold interest of 
Tenant under the Lease shall not be extinguished or terminated by reason of such foreclosure, 
but rather the Lease shall continue in full force and effect and Lender shall recognize and accept 
Tenant as tenant under the Lease subject to the terms and provisions of the Lease except as 
modified by this Agreement.

6. MISCELLANEOUS.

6.1 Remedies Cumulative.  All rights of Lender herein to collect rents on behalf of Owner 
under the Lease are cumulative and shall be in addition to any and all other rights and 
remedies provided by law and by other agreements between Lender and Owner or 
others.  



Page 4
DM2\10751595.2

6.2 Notices.  All notices, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be 
in writing and shall be delivered to the appropriate party at the address set forth below 
(subject to change from time to time by written notice to all other parties to this 
Agreement).  All notices, demands or other communications shall be considered as 
properly given if delivered personally or sent by first class United States Postal Service 
mail, postage prepaid, or by Overnight Express Mail or by overnight commercial courier 
service, charges prepaid, except that notice of Default may be sent by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, charges prepaid.  Notices so sent shall be effective three (3) 
days after mailing, if mailed by first class mail, and otherwise upon delivery or refusal; 
provided, however, that non-receipt of any communication as the result of any change of 
address of which the sending party was not notified or as the result of a refusal to accept 
delivery shall be deemed receipt of such communication. For purposes of notice, the 
address of the parties shall be:

Owner:

Attention:  

Tenant:

Attention:  
Lender:

Western Alliance Business Trust
c/o Western Alliance Bank
One E Washington Street, Suite 1400
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Attention:  Municipal Finance

Any party shall have the right to change its address for notice hereunder to any other 
location within the continental United States by the giving of thirty (30) days notice to the 
other party in the manner set forth hereinabove.

6.3 Heirs, Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided under the 
terms and conditions herein, the terms of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the 
benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, nominees, successors and assigns of the 
parties hereto.

6.4 Headings.  All article, section or other headings appearing in this Agreement are for 
convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in construing this Agreement.

6.5 Counterparts.  To facilitate execution, this document may be executed in as many 
counterparts as may be convenient or required.  It shall not be necessary that the 
signature of, or on behalf of, each party, or that the signature of all persons required to 
bind any party, appear on each counterpart.  All counterparts shall collectively constitute 
a single document.  It shall not be necessary in making proof of this document to produce 
or account for more than a single counterpart containing the respective signatures of, or 
on behalf of, each of the parties hereto.  Any signature page to any counterpart may be 



Page 5
DM2\10751595.2

detached from such counterpart without impairing the legal effect of the signatures 
thereon and thereafter attached to another counterpart identical thereto except having 
attached to it additional signature pages.  

6.6 Exhibits, Schedules and Riders.  All exhibits, schedules, riders and other items 
attached hereto are incorporated into this Agreement by such attachment for all 
purposes.

[Signatures follow on next page]



[Signature Page]
DM2\10751595.2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 
above written.

NOTICE: THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT CONTAINS A PROVISION WHICH ALLOWS 
THE PERSON OBLIGATED ON YOUR REAL PROPERTY SECURITY TO OBTAIN A 
LOAN A PORTION OF WHICH MAY BE EXPENDED FOR OTHER PURPOSES THAN 
IMPROVEMENT OF THE LAND.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT, PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE PARTIES 
CONSULT WITH THEIR ATTORNEYS WITH RESPECT HERETO.

“OWNER”

By: ________________________________________
Name: ________________________________________
Title: ________________________________________

“LENDER”

By: ________________________________________
Name: ________________________________________
Title: ________________________________________

“TENANT”

By: ________________________________________
Name: ________________________________________
Title:

(ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED)



[Exhibit A]
DM2\10751595.2

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

PARCEL 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 417, IN THE CITY OF BISHOP, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 5 PAGE 83 OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.



[Acknowledgment Page]
DM2\10751595.2

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 
signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity 
of that document.

STATE OF _______________ )
)  ss

COUNTY OF ______________ )

On ________________, 20__, before me, ________________________________________, 
Notary Public, personally appeared __________________________ who proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signature  _______________________

My commission expires  __________________.



[Acknowledgment Page]
DM2\10751595.2

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, 
or validity of that document.

STATE OF _______________ )
)  ss

COUNTY OF ______________ )

On ________________, 20__, before me, ________________________________________, 
Notary Public, personally appeared __________________________ who proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signature  _______________________

My commission expires  __________________.



[Acknowledgment Page]
DM2\10751595.2

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF _______________ )
)  ss

COUNTY OF ______________ )

On ________________, 20__, before me, ________________________________________, 
Notary Public, personally appeared __________________________ who proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signature  _______________________

My commission expires  __________________.



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct a workshop on proposed changes to the County's Short-term Rental of Residential 
Properties Ordinance; and B) provide comments and direction to staff.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 15, 2019 staff presented proposed changes to the County’s Short-Term Rental Ordinance. The Board accepted most of these suggestions and 
requested that staff also remove the non-hosted short-term rental permit as an option, resulting in only hosted-short term rentals to be allowed. The 
Board also requested that staff include language to allow for short-term rentals in the Multiple Family zone (2-units, R2). Along with these, the proposed 
changes are primarily to enforcement, processing requirements for getting a permit and definitions. These proposed changes include:

1. Definitions
o Add to 18.73.010 - “Designated representative” means a person or persons designated by the owner to represent them as a ‘host’ 

during the duration of the transient renter(s) stay. The designated representative will be responsible for the short-term rental while it is being 
rented. This definition change will also be added to all pertinent places in the code. 

o Add to 18.73.010 - “Hosted rental” means a short-term rental of a room(s) where the owner or a designated representative of the 
owner is on the parcel where the rental occurs, during the duration of the transient renter(s) stay.

o Remove from 18.73.010 that an owner is someone with twenty-percent or more of ownership interest in the property. This will make 
any level of ownership count someone as an owner and should help prevent certain people or entities from having more than one 
property with a short-term rental.

2. General Requirements 

o Add to 18.73.030 – “Short-term rentals may be permitted on properties zoned open space (OS); rural residential (RR); rural 
residential Starlite; one-family residential (R1); single residence mobile home combined (RMH), and Multiple Residential (R2) subject to the 
following requirements and limitations. This sets forth the zoning districts where short-term rentals will be allowed including the addition of 
the R2 zone and limiting them by the following

o Add to 18.73.030 B – All short-term rentals shall be hosted rentals.
3. Permit Application

o 18.73.040 (10) - change the word agreement to acknowledgement and add – “The applicant shall also include and share a copy of 
the short-term rental rules with each resident contacted”. The word agreement has caused some confusion and built in tension for the 
applicant and for the neighbors who are being asked to sign it. This change helps to relax some of this apprehension by removing the term 
‘agreement’. Applicants are then less likely to try to force an agreement from their neighbors and the neighbors do not feel pressured agree to 
something they either do not like or understand. Adding the requirement to share the rental rules should also help the neighbors to understand 
that the rentals are regulated and provide ideas for additional rules that may be appropriate based on the specific characteristics of the 
neighborhood.

4. Non-hosted Short-term Rental Permit Review Process

o 18.73.060 – Delete this entire section and all other places in the Code related to non-hosted rentals.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The removal of non-hosted short-term rentals has been included in this proposed version at the request of the Board at the October 
15, 2019 meeting.

5. Permit Modification and Revocation 

 Add to 18.73.030 C – Only two hosted rentals per parcel may be permitted, except for in the R2 zone, where only one hosted rental per parcel 
may be permitted, and any such short term rental in an R2 zone shall only be permitted in a dwelling unit that is concurrently occupied by a 
primary resident(s). In the single-family residential zones this will allow for a single-family home and accessory dwelling unit on the same 
single parcel of land to be used for short-term rentals, and prohibits more than one dwelling unit being rented at a time on R2 zoned properties.

 Remove 18.78.030 D – “Only one non-hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, provided that the owner also possesses a permit for a hosted 
rental”. This is not necessary if there are no more non-hosed short-term rental permits and was proposed to be eliminated anyway.

 Add 18.78.030 D – Only two hosted rentals per parcel may be permitted except in the R2 zone where only one hosted rental per parcel may be 
permitted, and any such short term rental in an R2 zone shall only be permitted in a dwelling unit that is concurrently occupied by a primary 
resident(s).

 Add to 18.73.030 E – An owner shall only be eligible to maintain a permit(s) for short term rentals on a maximum of one parcel. This will 
eliminate the ability of someone to have more than one parcel of land in the County with a short-term rental on it.

 Change 18.73.030 (G) to remove “and/or non-hosted” and add “Failure to obtain a hosted short-term rental permit prior to renting a 
residentially zoned property for 30-days or less shall be considered a violation of Chapter 18.73 and subject to legal action and/or 
enforcement proceedings including but not limited to an administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly rental rate of 
the property for each day the short-term rental is operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is 
more, to the maximum extent allowed by law. Adding a specific penalty to the code is intended to detour people from operating short-term 
rentals without permits. This particular penalty will take away the ability to profit while operating a short-term rental in violation of the county 
code.

 Add 18.73.030 (Q) – “An address sign compliant with the County’s sign ordinance 18.75 with a clearly legible, from the street, address 
number shall be included on each short-term rental.This is suggested in response to comments about renters having trouble finding the rental 
properties which causes them to drive around lost and/or go to the wrong houses. This scenario has the potential to cause nuisances and this 
addition should help to eliminate them. 

 Add 18.73.030 (R) – Short-term Rentals shall not be permitted in Accessory Dwelling Units built after January 1, 2020. This is being added in 
response to new State regulations that prohibit the use of accessory dwelling units built after January 1, 2020 to be rented for less than 30-
days. It is also good policy for the County as it will keep the use of infill accessory dwelling unit development for longer term rentals, which 
can help to provide affordable housing.

 18.73.070 (A) – change (A) to state: Every short-term rental permit will be reviewed annually by the Planning Director. This review shall 
include any complaints that may have been submitted on the short-term rental and site visits if deemed necessary to fully evaluate complaints. 
If more than three substantiated complaints have been submitted on a particular short-term rental, the short-term rental permit will be 
considered in violation and subject to the terms of 18.73 and Title 22. 

 18.73.070 (B)(1) The planning director may revoke or modify a short-term rental permit as follows: - add (v) to state: “The parcel on which 
the short-term rental violation has occurred has three or more violations in a year, which shall be an automatic revocation.” 

This provides a specific limitation on the number of violations a single short-term rental can have before the permit is revoked. This should 
result in eliminating short-term rentals with poor histories of continuing nuisances.

 18.73.070 (B)(1)(a) – add vi “Ownership of more than one parcel on which short-term rentals are permitted shall in itself be an automatic 
revocation of all of the owner’s short-term permits, except for the permit(s) originally granted.” This makes it perfectly clear that only one 
parcel may have a short-term rental permit(s) attached to it and also makes clear the penalty if caught with more than one.

 18.73.070 (B)(2) - Notice of Decision. A written notice of the planning director’s decision shall be prepared and mailed to the owner at the 
address specified in the application for approval. The notice shall contain a statement directing the owner to immediately cease using the 
property for short-term rentals, and that failure to cease such use may be subject to further legal action and/or enforcement proceedings – add: 
“including but not limited to fines of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly rental rate of the property for each day the short-term rental 
is advertised and/or operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is more to the maximum extent 
allowed by law”. Again, this is a place in the County code to apply a specific penalty for operating a short-term rental in violation of the code. 
Absent updates to Title 22 this should help to cause people to cease and desist short-term rentals since they would lose any profits made by 
them while in violation.

NEXT STEPS:  Staff will take the direction from the Board to update the Short-Term Rental Ordinance and continue to monitor it. Updates to the code will 
require a hearing with and recommendation from the Planning Commission and a hearing with the Board for possible adoption.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Tax Collector Treasurer, Inyo County Assessor, Inyo County Building and Safety, Environmental 
Health and Public Works Departments and the County Sheriff.
 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 12.17.2019_Chapter 18.73 proposed updates FINAL
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 12/4/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/5/2019
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 12/5/2019



Attachment – Proposed Changes December 17, 2019 

 
Chapter 18.73 SHORT-TERM RENTAL OF RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY 

18.73.010 Definitions. 

    For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply: 

   “Designated representative” means a person or persons designated by the owner to represent them as a 

‘host’ during the duration of the transient renter(s) stay.  

    “Guestroom” means any bedroom or other separate area of a dwelling unit utilized as a sleeping area 

for short-term renters. 

    “Hosted rental” means a short-term rental of a room(s) within a dwelling that is occupied where the 

owner or a designated representative of   the owner resides on the parcel where the rental occurs, during 

the duration of the transient renter(s) stay. 

    “Manager” means the owner or owner’s agent who provides oversight for non-hosted short-term rental 

activities and is available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, during all times that the 

property is rented as a non-hosted short-term rental to respond to and handle complaints. 

    “Non-hosted rental” means a short-term rental of an entire dwelling unit where the owner of the 

dwelling unit does not concurrently occupy the dwelling unit with the transient lodger. 

    “Owner” shall mean a record owner of the property who is responsible for submitting the application 

for approval and conducting hosted and non-hosted short-term rental activities pursuant to this chapter. 

“Owner” shall further include any person or entity with any direct or indirect aggregate ownership interest 

of twenty percent or more  in the subject property, unless the interest is solely a security, lien, or 

encumbrance. 

    “Short-term rental” means to provide transient lodging in a dwelling unit, for compensation, for a 

period of thirty consecutive calendar days or less. “Short-term rental” does not include transient lodging 

in county-approved hotels and motels. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.) 

  

18.73.020 Short-term rentals prohibited. 

    The short-term rental of residential property is a prohibited use in every zoning district in the county, 

with the exception of those permitted pursuant to this chapter. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.)  A violation of this 

Chapter is a Misdemeanor.  

 

18.73.030 Short-term rentals—General requirements. 

    Short-term rentals may be permitted on properties zoned open space (OS); rural residential (RR); rural 

residential Starlite; one-family residential (R1); and single residence mobile home combined (RMH), and 

Multiple Residential (R2) subject to the following requirements and limitations: 

A. No person shall undertake, maintain, authorize, aide, facilitate, or advertise any short-term rental 

activity that does not comply with the provisions of this code. 

B. All short-term rentals shall be hosted rentals. 

 

A.C. Each short-term rental shall have a host or manager designated representative readily available to 

handle any questions or complaints during all short-term rental activities. Any change to the 

contact information for the owner or owner’s designated representative manager of a non-hosted 

http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_010&frames=on
http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_020&frames=on
http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_030&frames=on


Attachment – Proposed Changes December 17, 2019 

 

short-term rental shall immediately be provided in writing to the Inyo County planning department, 

to neighboring properties with three hundred feet of the short-term vacation rental, and on any 

postings required by this chapter. 

B.D. Only one two hosted rentals per parcel may be permitted, except in the R2 zone, where only one 

hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, and any such short term rental in an R2 zone shall only 

be permitted in a dwelling unit that is concurrently occupied by a primary resident(s). 

    D.   Only one non-hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, provided that the owner also possesses a 

permit for a hosted rental. 

    E.    No more than two parcels on which short-term rentals are permitted may share a common owner.   

 An Owner shall only be eligible to maintain a permit(s) for short-term rentals on a maximum of 

 one parcel of land. 

    F.    No more than five guestrooms per dwelling unit may be permitted for short-term rental activity. 

    G.   Issuance of a hosted and/or non-hosted short-term rental permit, pursuant to this chapter, is 

separately required for each dwelling unit in which a short-term rental will occur.  Failure to obtain a 

hosted short-term rental permit prior to renting a residentially zoned property for 30-days or less shall be 

considered a violation of Chapter 18.73 and subject to legal action and/or enforcement proceedings 

including but not limited to an administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly 

rental rate of the property for each day the short-term rental is advertised and/or operated in violation of 

18.73, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is more, to the maximum extent 

allowed by the law. 

    H.   Short-term rentals shall not be permitted in dwelling units that are not compliant with applicable 

building and safety and/or environmental health requirements, or in non-habitable structures, tents, RVs, 

treehouses, yurts, or other provisions or structures not intended for primary occupancy. 

    I.     Only two renters are allowed per guestroom. This number does not include children three years 

and under. 

    J.    A maximum of one vehicle per guestroom shall be allowed, and the owner shall provide off-street 

parking for all such allowed vehicles, that the renter(s) shall utilize. The owner shall ensure that the 

parking limitations are included in short-term rental agreements and in all related advertisements. 

    K.   Outdoor amplified sound is prohibited. 

    L.    Quiet hours shall be from nine p.m. to seven a.m. The host shall ensure that the quiet hours are 

included in rental agreements and in all advertisements. 

    M.   Pets, if allowed by owner, shall be secured on the property at all times. Continual barking or other 

nuisances created by unattended pets are prohibited. 

    N.   Trash bins and recycling storage containers shall be required for all permitted short-term rentals 

and such bins and containers shall not be stored within public view. 

    O.   Outdoor fire areas are only permitted in compliance with applicable state and local laws and shall 

not be utilized by short-term renters during quiet hours. 

    P.    Short-term rental activity is subject to, and the owner shall comply with, Inyo County Code 

Chapter 3.20 Transient Occupancy Tax. The owner shall include the transient occupancy tax registration 

certificate number on all short-term rental agreements, and in any related advertisements. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 

2018.) 



Attachment – Proposed Changes December 17, 2019 

 

  Q. An address sign compliant with the County’s sign ordinance 18.75 with a clearly legible, from the 

street, address number shall be included on each short-term rental.   

R. Short-term Rentals shall not be allowed in Accessory Dwelling Units built after January 1, 2020. 

 

18.73.040 Permit application. 

    In order to obtain a permit authorizing short-term rentals under this chapter, the owner shall submit an 

application and any applicable fee for a permit to the planning director. 

    A.   The application shall include: 

    1.    Proof of ownership of the subject property; 

    2.    Name, address, and contact information of the owner; 

    3.    Name, address, and contact information of all other record owners of the subject property; 

    4.    Name, address and contact information for the owner’s local emergency contact representative in 

the event the owner is the manager and is unable to be contacted; 

    5.    A site plan prepared on an eight and one-half-inch by eleven-inch piece of paper showing that the 

required off-street parking spaces are provided, and the emergency access to the dwelling unit(s); 

    6.    Proof that transient occupancy registration certificate for the subject property has been applied for 

and/or received; 

    7.    A copy of the rules, regulations, and information that will be posted in a prominent place within 

six feet of the front door of the short-term rental; 

    8.    A verified list of the names and addresses of the owners of all property within three hundred feet of 

the exterior boundaries of the property proposed for the short-term rental as shown on the last adopted tax 

role of the county; 

    9.    A deposit for the cost of the county mailing notice of permits  applications and received and 

granted to property owners and neighbors of an approval short-term rental within three hundred feet of the 

subject property; 

    10.  For hosted rentals only: 

    a.    A planning department issued neighborhood agreement  acknowledgement form signed by each 

resident within three hundred feet of the proposed hosted rental. If the applicant is unable to obtain the 

required signatures, the applicant shall provide proof of his or her reasonable attempts to gather those 

signatures. The applicant shall also include and share a copy of the short-term rental rules with each 

resident contacted. 

    B.11.   Incomplete applications shall be returned to the applicant with an explanation of what is 

required to make the application complete. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.) 

  

18.73.050 Hosted rental permit review process. 

    A.   The planning director shall review completed applications for hosted short-term rentals. The 

planning director shall not approve the application absent a finding that the use will comply with the 

requirements of this code and other applicable law. Approval of an application for a hosted rental shall be 

subject to the general requirements of Chapter 18.81 of this code. 

http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_040&frames=on
http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_050&frames=on


Attachment – Proposed Changes December 17, 2019 

 

    B.   As part of the hosted rental application review, the planning director shall consider any relevant 

comments received from neighboring residents and/or owners regarding the application. The planning 

director may add reasonable conditions to a hosted rental permit in order to prevent impacts of the short-

term rental activities from being a nuisance to the surrounding properties, including, but not limited to, 

conditions related to specific parking requirements, noise reduction measures, garbage collection, and 

related property maintenance issues. 

    C.   The decision of the planning director may be appealed to the planning commission pursuant to 

Chapter 18.81 of this code. The planning commission shall review the application in the manner set forth 

for vacation rental applications in Section 18.73.040. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.) 

  

18.73.060 [RESERVED] Non-hosted short-term rental permit review process. 

    A.   Upon receipt of a complete application for a non-hosted short-term rental, the planning director 

shall cause the application to be placed on a planning commission agenda for the review of the 

application as generally required by Chapter 18.81 of this code. The planning director may provide a 

recommended action and/or any other relevant information to the planning commission as part of the 

agenda item. Approval of an application for a non-hosted short-term rental shall be subject to the general 

requirements of Chapter 18.81 of this code. 

    B.   The decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the board of supervisors consistent 

with Chapter 18.81 of this code. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.) 

  

18.73.070 Permit modification and revocation. 

    A.  Every short-term rental permit will be reviewed annually by the Planning Director. This review 

shall include any complaints that may have been submitted on the short-term rental and site visits if 

deemed necessary to fully evaluate complaints and to initiate a modification proceeding as deemed 

appropriate given all of the facts and circumstances of a given parcel on which short term rental activity is 

permitted. 

     B.  The planning director may revoke or modify a short-term rental permit as follows: 

    1.    Notice and Hearing. Notice shall be mailed to the owner at the address specified in the approval 

application. The notice shall specify the reason(s) for the modification or revocation and shall designate a 

time and place of an administrative hearing with the planning director no sooner than six and no later than 

thirty weekdays, excluding holidays, following the mailing date of the notice. 

    The owner shall be provided the opportunity to present written and oral evidence at the hearing. Failure 

to appear at the hearing shall constitute a waiver of any objections to the proposed modification or 

revocation. 

    a.    Following the hearing, the planning director may revoke or modify the approval upon making one 

or more of the following findings: 

i. The approval was obtained by fraud; 

ii. The short-term rental activity has been or is being conducted in violation of this chapter or 

other applicable law; 

iii. The conditions of approval have been or are being violated; 

iv. The short-term rental activity constitutes a public nuisance. 

http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_060&frames=on
http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_070&frames=on


Attachment – Proposed Changes December 17, 2019 

 

v. The parcel on which the short term rental violation has occurred has three or more violations in 

a year, which shall be an automatic revocation. 

vi. “Ownership of more than one parcel on which short-term rentals are permitted shall in itself be 

an automatic revocation of all of the owner’s short-term permits, except for the permit(s) 

originally granted.”   

    2.    Notice of Decision. A written notice of the planning director’s decision shall be prepared and 

mailed to the owner at the address specified in the application for approval, or as may have otherwise 

been formally changed by the owner. The notice shall contain a statement directing the owner to 

immediately cease using the property for short-term rentals, and that failure to cease such use may be 

subject to further legal action and/or enforcement proceedings. including but not limited to an 

administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly rental rate of the property for each 

day the short-term rental is advertised and/or operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 

1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is more, to the maximum extent allowed by law.  

    B.   Appeal. The decision of the planning director to modify or revoke a short-term rental application 

may be appealed to the board of supervisors consistent with Chapter 18.81 of this code. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 

2018.) 

  

18.73.080 Enforcement. 

    A.   Initial Complaints. Initial complaints regarding short-term rental activity on a parcel permitted 

pursuant to this chapter will generally be directed to the owner or manager owner’s designated 

representative identified in the short-term rental permit. The owner for hosted or, designated 

representative the manager for nonhosted  of short-term rentals shall be responsible for contacting the 

tenant to correct the problem within ninety minutes, or within forty-five minutes if during quiet hours, 

including visiting the site if necessary, to ensure that the issue has been corrected. The owner or owner’s 

designated representativefor hosted, or the manager for non-hosted short-term rentals, shall report any 

such complaints, and their resolutions or attempted resolutions, to the Inyo County planning department 

within twenty-four hours of the occurrence. Failure to respond to complaints or report them to the 

planning department within twenty-four hours of the occurrence shall be considered a violation of this 

section, and may constitute cause for revocation or modification of the short-term rental permit. 

Occupants of surrounding properties shall be apprised of this complaint procedure. 

    B.   The county may enforce the provisions of this chapter in accordance with Chapter 18.22 Title 22 of 

this code. 

 

http://www.qcode.us/codes/inyocounty/view.php?topic=18-18_73-18_73_080&frames=on


County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct workshop on the draft scoping comment letter for the Bureau of Land Management's 
Alabama Hills Management Plan; and B) provide comments and potentially direction to staff to send the 
comment letter.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The BLM is preparing to begin work on a management plan for the Alabama Hills. The plan will focus on specific 
uses, resource values and future management strategies for the area.

The Alabama Hills are an important and iconic feature of Inyo County that provide for: scenic, cultural, geological, 
educational, biological, historical, recreational, cinematographic and scientific opportunities.

The management plan will implement the Orders - Increasing Recreation Opportunities on Lands and Waters 
Managed by the U.S. Department of the Interior and the Conservation Stewardship and Outdoor Recreation. In 
March 2019, the John D. Dingell, Jr. Conservation, Management and Recreation Act designated 18,610 acres in 
the Alabama Hills as a National Scenic Area, as well.

Currently, the BLM does not have much information on the specifics of the planning effort, but is asking for 
scoping comments. Planning Department staff has prepared a comment letter to the BLM based on previous 
values expressed by the County on other Federal land management plans and is asking the Board for comments 
and suggestions, as well as, potentially authorizing the Chairperson to sign.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
1. Do NOT approve the Chairperson to sign the letter prepared by staff.  
2. Direct staff to make specific changes to the letter.
3. Return to staff with direction.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
US Bureau of Land Management
 
FINANCING:
Costs to monitor and respond to work being conducted by other agencies are paid out the Planning Department 
budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Scoping Comment Letter 12.17.2019
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 11/26/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2019
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 12/3/2019



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

 

 

 

 December 17, 2019 

 

 Bureau of Land Management (BLM) – Bishop Field Office 

Attn: Alabama Hills Management Plan 

351 Pacu Lane, Suite 100 

Bishop, CA 93514 

 

RE: Alabama Hills Management Plan 

 

Field Manager Nelson: 

 

On behalf of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I would like to thank the BLM for providing the 

opportunity to submit scoping comments on the Alabama Hills Management Plan and respectfully 

request cooperating agency status on this planning effort. The Alabama Hills are a very unique and 

special place within Inyo County and the Board of Supervisors cannot encourage the BLM enough to 

treat the area as such throughout this planning process. The Board would also like to offer the 

following comments. 

 

As you know, Inyo County encourages access to its natural wonders and to this end, we urge the 

BLM to strive to maintain multiple use access in the project area, including access to existing 

activities, roads and trails; pay special attention to the visual resources in and into the area, especially 

with regard to the current planning for electrical transmission conveyance in the area; and, evaluate 

proposed management decisions with the potential effects on local economies as they are closely tied 

to tourism. The County’s General Plan provides the vision for access, recreation, economy and 

energy generation and conveyance, as well as, other topics that will be relevant to this planning 

effort. We strongly suggest the BLM review the County’s General Plan at the onset. It can be viewed 

online at: http://inyoplanning.org/general_plan/goals.htm. County staff is happy to answer any 

questions the BLM may have related to General Plan policies. 

 

In closing, I would like to reiterate that the Alabama Hills are one of the most iconic areas in Inyo 

County and have a prominent place in its history and culture. The Board of Supervisors is excited 

about being involved at the highest possible level in the Management Plan process for this very 

special place.  

  

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 Rick Pucci, Chairperson 

 Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

CC:  

 

 
 

 

 
 

MEMBERS  OF T HE  BOARD 
DAN TOTHEROH 

JEFF GRIFFITHS 

RICK PUCCI     

MARK TILLEMANS              

M ATT  KINGS LEY      
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

CLINT G. QUILTER       

Clerk of the Board 
 
 

 
 

 

DARCY ELLIS 

Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 

P. O. BOX N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526 
 

TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373  

e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us 



Supervisor Rick Pucci 

Supervisor Jeff Griffiths 

Supervisor Mark Tillemans 

Supervisor Dan Totheroh 

Supervisor Matt Kingsley 

Clint Quilter, County Administrative Officer 

Carl B. Symons, Field Director, Bureau of Land Management, Ridgecrest Office 

Steve Nelson, Field Director, Bureau of Land Management, Bishop Office 

 Mary Wuester, Chairperson Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe 

 
 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Parks & Recreation
 

WORKSHOPS AND PRESENTATIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  State of the Parks Workshop 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct a State of the Parks workshop and provide follow-up direction to staff; and B) 
consider adopting the Inyo County Statement of Philosophy for Park Maintenance and Improvement to be used 
as a guideline for prioritizing parks and campgrounds projects.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This workshop is intended to provide a review of the County's park and campground operations, and provide a 
basis for future planning. After a review of current staffing levels and projects, staff will introduce a Statement of 
Philosophy for Park Maintenance and Improvement for Board discussion and consideration. If adopted, the 
statement will serve as a guide for prioritizing future projects, and will assist in the development of a long-term 
Park and Campground Improvement Plan. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
None at this time
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
No fiscal impact at this time. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. State of the Parks
2. State of the Parks Appendix A Projects
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 12/12/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/12/2019
Leslie Chapman Approved - 12/12/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/12/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 12/12/2019



INYO COUNTY

PARKS AND RECREATION

STATE OF THE PARKS

Leslie L. Chapman
Assistant County Administrative Officer



State of the Inyo County Parks and Campgrounds

As Inyo County citizens and leaders, we are the stewards of an extensive network of County 
parks and campgrounds. We are fortunate to be able to boast that we live where others come 
to play, but along with bragging rights comes the responsibility to care for our County facilities. 
This report will serve as a baseline for formulating a long-term plan to continue to care for and 
improve these valuable assets for all to enjoy. 

Our goal is to develop a plan that is reasonable and achievable based on a common philosophy 
to guide us as we prioritize both capital and maintenance projects. A review of our recreation 
facilities and the time required to maintain them juxtaposed with the current staffing levels 
amplifies the notion that the task at hand is quickly overwhelming without a common 
philosophy and guiding principles. Without those, deciding on future staffing levels, prioritizing 
projects to tackle, and chasing grants and other resources is the equivalent of climbing a very 
tall ladder only to find that it is leaning against the wrong wall (Stephen R. Covey, The 7 Habits 
of Highly Effective People).  

Therefore, after a brief review of our recreational facilities, current staffing levels and recently 
completed and ongoing projects, including ideas for the current fiscal year appropriation of 
$250,000, we introduce the recommended Statement of Philosophy for Park Maintenance and 
Improvement. The balance of the report is a menu of future projects and potential resources to 
discuss under the light of the Statement of Philosophy, which is intended to inform the 
development and execution of a long-term park improvement plan.

Inyo County Facilities
With the Sierra Nevada on the west and the White Mountains on the east, changing to the 
Inyos as you head south and ending in unique rock formations as you near Death Valley, Inyo 
County’s natural beauty is astounding. Making things even more fascinating is our cultural 
history full of Wild West stories and colorful characters. Each campground and park has its own, 
distinctive history and geology providing the opportunity to emphasize unique scenery while 
developing an Inyo County brand for the park system as a whole.  

 Tecopa Hot Springs Park – This park was built on popular hot springs on the edge of 
Death Valley.  Snow Birds escaping cold winters have descended on the hot springs in 
large numbers starting in the 1970s. While its popularity dipped in later years, it seems 
to have been rediscovered in recent years by a new generation. The campground has 
200 sites and is run by a concessionaire. The County is responsible to maintain the small 
park, which includes a youth playground in front of the Tecopa Library. 

 Diaz Lake – Named for the family who owned the land as a cattle ranch in the 1860s, 
this park is the gateway to all of the Owens Valley parks for visitors from the south. This 
park is very popular with tourists and locals who utilize it for both day use and overnight 
stays. The campground is approximately 140 acres with 200 campsites that 



accommodate everything from tents to large RVs. It features an 80 acre lake, with 
seasonal motorized boat use, an ADA fishing dock, and boat launching facilities. The lake 
is periodically stocked with fish by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

 Portagee Joe Campground – The name is a reminder of the people who came to the 
valley as sheepherders, miners, ranchers, and farmers, and whose descendants are still 
here. Sitting at the foot of the Alabama Hills, it provides travelers a less extreme stay 
after leaving Death Valley. It is a small park that is very quiet and intimate with 22 
campsites. It is nestled between the Alabama Hills and the town of Lone Pine. The 
entrance to the park is from Tuttle Creek Road which forms a part of the Alabama Hills 
Scenic Route. 

 Spainhower Park (Lone Pine Park) – Historically, this park had a strong connection to 
the military, with a US Navy jet in the park for many years. That prominent place has 
faded over the years, and the space was converted to tennis courts. The park sits on the 
north end of the community and is a gathering place for residents and a beautiful stop 
for travelers needing a meal and rest from the road. 

 Independence Park – This is a small park on the south end of town that is primarily used 
as a rest stop by Highway 395 travelers. The green setting and view of the rugged 
mountains and high desert valley is very refreshing.

 Independence Creek Campground – Several bedrock mortars can be found along the 
creek, which testify to the area’s use by Native Americans in the past. Ranchers drove 
cattle and sheep through the area on what is still a legal driveway, though rarely used. It 
is located on the edge of the town of Independence. It is a small campground of about 
20 acres with 29 campsites. The Eastern California Museum is a quarter of a mile away 
and there is a trail that connects the museum to the campground and provides access to 
the bedrock mortars. 

 Dehy Park  – This park has an historic railroad connection. It was the home of the Slim 
Princess Engine #18 until it was restored and moved to the Eastern California Museum. 
Now it now houses a railroad boxcar. This park is used by some travelers as a rest stop, 
and it is heavily used by local community members for a variety of events and festivals 
throughout the year.  

 Taboose Creek Campground  – Taboose is a plant root, used in Native American food. 
The park sits at the edge of a highly visible black lava flow and is surrounded by 
varicolored cinder cones of old volcanic activity. These rock formations make the 
location geologically interesting and unique. The campground sits west of Highway 395, 
and north of Independence in an open area on Taboose Creek with spectacular views in 
all directions. The creek provides good fishing and the open land is very attractive to 
OHV users. The campground covers 15 acres with 36 campsites. 



 Tinnemaha Creek Campground – Tinnemaha was named after a local Native American 
leader. In the 1800s the area was a flourishing farm called Red Mountain Fruit Ranch. 
Remnants of the orchards, building foundations, and the stone entrance pillars are still 
visible within the boundaries of the park. The campground is about 4 miles north of 
Taboose Creek Campground and is set in open, rolling country sheltered behind Poverty 
Hills. It covers 25 acres and has 35 spaces. 

 Mendenhall Park – While the park is adjacent to Highway 395, the focus of the park is 
local sports activities, with Little League fields, and two playground facilities. This park 
provides the residents of Big Pine with a much needed sports complex. Occasionally, this 
park has been used as a staging area for emergency responders. 

 Baker Creek Campground – The park has a varied topography with rock formations and 
mature trees. The sight and sound of cascading water is almost everywhere in the park 
which is covered with lush tree and vegetative covering. The well-stocked ponds and 
streams provide good fishing. This is also a popular location for birders. This 
campground covers about 25 acres and has 43 campsites.   

 Izaak Walton Park – This park is all about fish, specifically native Brown Trout. In 1913, 
Izaak Walton penned “The Complete Angler,” one of the most reprinted books in the 
history of British letters. During the 1940s and 50s, the Izaak Walton League became 
active in Bishop, and in the 1950s, LADWP leased this land to the Bishop Izaak Walton 
League in its quest to protect and enhance upland game species of the region. Over the 
years, it has become a popular place for family barbeques, parties, weddings and other 
special events. 

 Starlite Park – This park was developed as part of a new subdivision. Planning 
regulations included recreational space, providing adult and youth activities. This was 
done successfully with a tennis/basketball court and a youth playground. The main users 
of this park are residents of the subdivision. 

 Millpond Recreation Area – It is a regional park facility with a pond which was once the 
site of an old sawmill. The physical remnants of the site’s historic past contribute to its 
ambiance. The pond is a central feature of the facility and many activities revolve 
around it. It is a large park on 125 acres and located adjacent to a concessioner run 
campground. It is one of the most heavily used facilities that is enjoyed by both locals 
and visitors. 

 Pleasant Valley Campground – The name evokes a peaceful and relaxing image. It is a 
rustic, quiet campground along the Owens River and includes spawning grounds for the 
native Brown Trout. The Department of Fish and Wildlife maintains a spawning channel 
for the trout in an old oxbow of the river immediately upstream from the campground.  
It is located on the north end of Bishop on the Owens River, just below Pleasant Valley 
Dam. It has 30 acres and 75 campsites. 



Inyo County’s 11 campgrounds and 7 parks span 250 miles from Tecopa to Bishop. The 11 
campgrounds have over 900 campsites that serve approximately 40,000 users annually.  
Concessionaires operate 4 of these while the other 7 are operated by county staff. Additionally, 
there are 7 County Parks that cover more the 450 acres. Maintaining and improving such a large 
system requires substantial effort and resources. 

Field Staff and Current Duties
Field staff includes the County Park Supervisor (who also manages the County Motor Pool), 
three full-time Park/Campground Specialists, and 5 seasonal workers; 4 in the summer and 1 in 
the winter. The summer seasonals maintain grounds and facilities, keeping them clean and safe 
for our visitors and citizens. The winter seasonal assists with repair and construction with the 
objective of completing larger projects during the winter when there are fewer visitors. 

Parks and Campgrounds Field Staff

Put another way, 6.25 FTEs are maintaining 14 facilities in the second largest county in the 
State, which covers over 10,000 square miles. The team provides basic maintenance and repairs 
along with capital projects when time allows. When equipment or infrastructure fails or 
inclement weather causes safety issues, daily maintenance is sacrificed. In order to formulate a 
plan going forward, it is important to see how the current staffing and workload breaks down. 
The table below is the result of a short time study that was extended mathematically to 
represent a year.  It is an abbreviated summary of timesheets, detailed by task, that each field 
employee completed.



Field Staff Duties

Tasks Hours FTEs
Landscape Maintenance – mowing 450 acres, fertilizing, tree 
trimming, removing leaves, weeding, maintaining and replacing 
grass & plants

3,944 1.9

Janitorial – clean restrooms and replace supplies, trash collection 3,324 1.6

Equipment Maintenance – sprinkler systems, lighting, playground 
equipment, fire rings, mowers, tractors, etc. 1,210

 
.58

Building and Structure Maintenance – painting, plumbing, repairs, 
signage maintenance, road maintenance, water systems 504 .24

Customer Service – provide camper assistance, answer phone 
calls, patrol campsites 2,172 1.04
Administration – paperwork, travel time, sick leave, vacations, 
scheduled breaks 1,860 .89

     
      TOTAL 13,014 6.25

The conclusion is that there is no excess capacity to execute a plan that includes capital 
improvements or enhancements unless we eliminate some nagging problems that continue to 
take unplanned time and compromise efficiency such as broken water pipes or failing 
equipment.  

Currently, staff is analyzing new organizational structures for the Parks and Recreation 
department. Preliminary discussions are leaning towards a proposal to add a position and 
divide the department into a grounds maintenance division and a repairs and capital projects 
division. The plan will be refined as the overarching philosophy and long term plan for 
recreation facilities becomes clearer. 

Completed and Ongoing Projects 

When it comes to County services, it is tempting to focus on what is not getting done because 
we provide a huge range of services with relatively few employees. Parks and Campgrounds is 
no exception, so before we move into a discussion about future projects, highlights of recently 
completed projects and ongoing projects are listed below.

Completed Projects:  In recent years, the County has made several improvements to parks and 
campgrounds. Advances have also been made in the way services are provided to the public. 
Some examples follow.

 Disk Golf course at Millpond is complete and heavily used. 



 Irrigation systems at Millpond and Mendenhall Park were rebuilt.
 Fertilizer injection system installed at Millpond and Diaz Lake so nutrients are now 

distributed through the sprinklers rather than being manually distributed freeing up 
staff time for other projects.

 Vault toilet at Pleasant Valley Campground was moved to protect the facility from 
erosion of the river bank during heavy rains.

 Water well, solar well house and an Old West style water tank were installed at Taboose 
Creek.

 Vintek cash and credit card machines are now installed at all campgrounds except 
Independence Creek and Portagee Joe’s. 

 New security cameras have been placed at several facilities to provide security from 
theft and vandalism.

 Reserve America campground reservation system is now utilized. This required 
campsites to be moved, defined, numbered and mapped.

 Equipment storage vaults were installed at Diaz Lake and Millpond.

Ongoing Projects:  Some notable projects that are scheduled to be completed this year follow.

 Water system at Diaz Lake – plans are in engineering and grant application is due in 
January 2020. Funds are per capita allocation from Prop 68.

 Non-motorized boat launch at Diaz Lake with disabled launch – plans are 90% complete 
and project is expected to be done this year. This project is funded by a grant from 
California Department of Boating and Waterways.

 Dog Park at Spainhower Park – the plans are substantially complete and completion is 
expected this summer. Funding is appropriated in the current budget.

 Remodel one restroom at Pleasant Valley and two at Diaz Lake (entrance and 
campground) – approximately 40% complete.

 Installation of recycling trash cans at all locations – approximately 60% complete.
 Reroofing projects countywide: Millpond baseball dugouts, restroom, and shade cover 

on beach; Izaak Walton Park Restroom, Dehy Park restroom, Independence Park 
restroom, Diaz lake office and entrance restrooms.

Recommended for Fiscal Year 2019-20 Appropriation ($250,000): During the 2019-20 Budget 
Hearings, a $250,000 transfer into the Parks Rehabilitation Trust was approved. Preliminary 
feedback regarding the best use of this money can be divided into two categories: projects with 
an immediate and noticeable impact and support for long-term improvements. Of course, other 
ideas will be welcome during the workshop.

Recommendations for immediate impact projects:

 Replace the Gazebo at Spainhower Park.
 Railroad theme stage at Dehy Park.
 Redo the ballpark at Mendenhall Park.
 Repair and reroute electrical lines at Mendenhall Park.



 Remove the old barbeque and replace the well house at Izaak Walton Park.

Support for long-term improvements:

 Set aside for grant matches. 
 Use for deferred maintenance such as tree maintenance, re-roofing structures; or 

repair or replace water lines.

Statement of Philosophy for Park Maintenance and Improvement: 
As we move from information to action, agreeing on a Statement of Philosophy is the critical 
next step before developing an executable work plan and allocating the appropriate resources. 
Therefore, we ask your Board to consider the following, or a similar Statement of Philosophy, 
including Guiding Principles, for providing direction in decisions related to funding levels, 
staffing levels and project choices moving forward. 

The Guiding Principles are presented in order of importance and projects will be prioritized 
accordingly. For example fixing water systems that are constantly breaking will be higher 
priority than beautiful entrance signs. Threats to health and safety will always be dealt with 
immediately and are therefore not listed as one of the guiding principles. A sample Statement 
of Philosophy is provided below.

Inyo County Statement of Philosophy for Park Maintenance and Improvement
Inyo County Parks and Recreation provides a critical role in enhancing the well-being and quality 
of life of our residents and visitors by creating safe, inviting and beautifully maintained parks 
and campgrounds. Inyo County leaders and staff will use the following guiding principles to 
prioritize tasks and projects while striving for excellence in County park and campground 
operations and maintenance.

Guiding Principles:

1. Fix or replace things that will result in less long-term maintenance and free up time 
for better park and campground care. This includes items such as tree maintenance 
and replacement, major repairs and replacement of water systems, and re-roofing 
structures that are constantly being repaired.

2. Customer enhancements – complete visible projects that make the parks and 
campgrounds more attractive and/or convenient for users. Examples include uniform 
signage with a County branding scheme, more attractive and inviting entrances to 
parks and campgrounds, dumpster enclosures and new playgrounds.

3. Non Critical Infrastructure and deferred maintenance such as paving roads, 
developing day use areas, and adding footbridges.

4. Available funding  –  complete high priority projects when grants or other funding is 
available. Increase priority to meet grant restrictions and deadlines. Staff will be 
vigilant in researching grants and applying for funding that will solve identified issues 
and enhancements, but will not create new projects solely because there is grant 



funding available. When recommending grants, staff will prioritize based on the 
criteria above when multiple grants become available concurrently. 

Potential Future Projects
Once the Statement of Philosophy is adopted, potential projects will be sorted and prioritized 
into an action plan. The list of potential projects is presented as Appendix A. It is an extensive 
list that is intended to be separated from this report and used as a working guide to be 
prioritized, executed and serve as a benchmark for future progress. This list was started in 2018 
and was updated for this report with some projects moving to completed or in process and 
some new ones added. In 2018, there was a rough financial estimate to complete all projects of 
$3.6 million. That appears to be a low estimate and with the new additions and growth in 
pricing of materials and labor, the estimate is probably closer to $5 million.  As projects and 
priorities become more clearly defined, so will this number. 

Regardless, it is a big number and not achievable with current staffing and budget resources. 
Therefore, this discussion would not be complete without considering what additional financial 
and human resources might be available.  While the list below is not comprehensive, it is a 
start.

Potential Resources
Human Resources:

 Internship program – This would be an opportunity for local youth to gain job skills and 
provide a valuable service to the County.

 California Conservation Corps – Can be unreliable because firefighting is priority, so non-
urgent capital projects or maintenance projects such as picnic table restoration and 
maintenance would be ideal.

 Prisoners – Experience shows that they are an excellent resource when they are 
available.  

 WRAP Workers
 Campground Hosts

Financial Resources:
 Grants – Besides the Per Capita allocation that staff is currently working on, Prop 68 has 

a competitive grant that staff will pursue when the application period opens. 
Department of Boating and Waterways has been a source for the Diaz Lake boat ramp 
and has potential for other projects. Staff is researching other possibilities.

 Raise Fees
 Explore implementing Transient Occupancy Tax on overnight camping – this would help 

cover the burden campers put on our systems such as solid waste, roads and 
maintenance of the campgrounds they use. This will require Board approval and a vote 
of the people.



Inyo County has a tremendous asset in its recreation facility system that we are all committed 
to maintaining and enhancing. It is anticipated that this report will serve as a reference and 
provide the basis to adopt a common philosophy for a comprehensive park and campground 
improvement plan that will be reasonable and achievable for many years to come. 

 

 



Appendix A
Listing of Potential Park Projects by Location

Universal Improvements:
Signage

Create an Inyo County brand for parks and campgrounds by creating a uniform design that 
displays the same logo, lettering, information and colors at the entrance of each facility. Also 
provide directional signs from highway 395 to the park entrances to reduce confusion in finding 
parks.

Information Kiosks

Create uniform information stations with QR scans where guests can learn about the 
immediate facility and all County facilities and other interesting County attractions.

Tree Maintenance
Universal tree maintenance is overdue and once performed, will free up staff time since 
maintenance is done as needed on individual trees.

Dumpster Enclosures and Recycling Services
Dumpsters are unsightly out in the open. 

Re-roof Structures
Almost all structures in the park system are in need of re-roofing: ball field dugouts, shade 
structures, office/maintenance structures and restrooms. 

Adjust Campsites
All campsites need to be between 20 and 50 feet from water banks for safety and 
environmental purposes. Leases with LADWP indicate distance requirements.

Replace Playground Equipment
Replace equipment with updated models that meet current standards

Diaz Lake Campground - 200 campsites on approximately 140 acres
Replace Water System

The system is old and breaks often. Currently, there is not potable water. Frequent breaks in 
the irrigation system required frequent, unplanned staff time that could be better used on 
improvements. 

Restrooms/Showers
Rehab both restrooms and add showers. 

Add Vault Toilet
The North side of the park needs restroom facilities

New Gazebo
This area is heavily used for group activities. It is worn out and needs to be replaced.

Fish Cleaning Area
This is a valuable amenity that is heavily used

Beach Day Use Area
Needs rehabilitation

Remove Bulrush
Lake access is impeded by the overgrowth of bulrush. The disabled fishing platform has become 
inaccessible.

Improve Roads

1 of 7



Repave or rehabilitate with surfaces that will be easier to maintain and mitigate dust
Improve Roads

2 of 7



Portage Joe Campground - 22 Campsites
Foot Bridges

One additional foot bridge would provide better access to restrooms that are located north of 
the channel. 

Shade Structure
The day use area that was created by converting campsites would greatly benefit from a shade 
structure to add comfort and relief from the direct sun.

Independence Creek - 29 campsites on approximately 20 acres
Footbridges

Footbridges over the creek are a nice feature of this park that are near the end of life and need 
to be replaced.

Campsite tables
Tables need to be repaired. Replacing with more sturdy tables would be better.

Concrete Fires Rings
Metal barbeques should be replaced

Fish Cleaning Area
This is a valuable amenity that is heavily used

Vintec Machines
Automated fee collection stations have been installed in most County campgrounds

Star Park
This project is in process. Concrete telescope pads have been installed and car barriers and 
signage are being worked on currently.

Taboose Creek - 36 campsites on approximately 15 acres
Day Use Area Development

Current day use areas are underdeveloped and need shade structures
Fish Cleaning Area

This is a valuable amenity that is heavily used
Footbridges

Footbridges over the creek are a nice feature of this park that are near the end of life and need 
to be replaced.

OHV Signage and Way Finding
OHV usage in increasing in this campground and users and the environment would greatly 
benefit from directional signs and way finding.

Tinemaha Creek - 35 campsites on approximately 25 acres
Day Use Area Development

Current day use areas are underdeveloped and need shade structures
Water Tank Tower

There is a new well drilled that needs a water tank and solar powered well house.

3 of 7



Footbridges
Footbridges over the creek are a nice feature of this park that are near the end of life and need 
to be replaced.

Road Repairs
Roads are dusty and have potholes that need to be repaired

OHV Signage and Way Finding
OHV usage in increasing in this campground and users and the environment would greatly 
benefit from directional signs and way finding.

Baker Creek - 43 campsites on approximately 25 acres
Water Tank Tower

There is a new well drilled that needs a water tank and solar powered well house.
Footbridges

Footbridges over the creek are a nice feature of this park that are near the end of life and need 
to be replaced.

New Paths and Trails
An integrated trail system where connect different areas of the park. This is important because 
vault toilets are not evenly distributed. 

Pleasant Valley - 75 campsites on approximately 30 acres
Day Use Area at Dam

Developing the dam area so people using the trial above the dam for biking, walking and fishing 
would have a place to congregate and picnic would add tremendous value.

Tree Planting
Trees that were destroyed during the fire need to be replaced

Walk in tent sites
This would be an excellent location to accommodate hikers passing through the area.

Repair Bridge
This old bridge survived the fire, but needs repairs and updates

Road Repairs
Roads are dusty and have potholes that need to be repaired

Lone Pine Park
Dog Park

Plans for the dog park are almost complete, including moving and upgrading the water lines to 
the park. This project is expected to be completed within the fiscal year.

Irrigation and Turf Replacement
Lines need to be repaired or replaced. The system leaks and needs frequent repairs resulting in 
unplanned loss of productivity for other maintenance and upgrade projects. Once the irrigation 
is done, turf needs to be replaced.

Tennis Court Surface and Lighting
Lighting needs to be upgraded and converted to dark sky lighting. Minor surface repairs are 
needed to the courts.

There is a new well drilled that needs a water tank and solar powered well house.

4 of 7



Gazebo
The gazebo is completely worn out. It is heavily used and needs to be replaced with a new 
structure, including lighting and electrical outlets.

Barbeque Pits
Pits need to be upgraded and replaced

Lighting
Lights needs significant repairs and upgrades, including dark sky compliance.

Creek Repairs
The sharp bend in the creek has been contained with k rails, but a pond would be more 
attractive and provide a place for kids to wade.

Independence Park
Restrooms

Facilities need to be rehabilitated and upgraded.
Parking

Currently, the only parking is on the street. Creating head-in parking would add value.
Tables

Concrete tables would be a nice feature for people traveling through town that need to stop for 
rest and a meal.

Lighting
Dark sky lighting would make the park more visible to travelers.

Dehy Park
Box Car Stage

Using the existing railroad box car, create a stage for local events around the railway theme. 
Improvements Across the Creek

The footbridge was replaced, so now it would be valuable to make improvements near the 
existing horseshoe pits.

Restrooms
Restrooms are old and dilapidated, needing to be replaced or updated.

lighting
The community has voiced a desire to convert the lighting to dark sky compliant and add two 
additional lights.

Mendenhall Park
Irrigation

Controls need to be upgraded for grassy areas and ball field
Little League Field

Field needs to be completely redone. It needs to be leveled, new infield and outfield dirt 
applied and turf re-installed.

Delineation Parking
Clearly defined parking will improve safety and enhance entries and exits.

5 of 7



Remove Light Poles
Old poles need to be removed and replaced with dark sky lighting

Drinking Fountains

Old drinking fountain needs to be replaced and additional fountains should be considered.

Isaac Walton Park
Restrooms

Repair or replace and modernize bathrooms
Turf

Turf needs replacement 
Old Barbeque Grill

Needs to be removed.
Wellhead Dog House

This structure needs to be rebuilt to protect it from the elements.

Starlight Park
Delineation Parking

Clearly defined parking will improve safety and enhance entries and exits.

Millpond Recreation Area
Vehicle Delineation

The barrier for motorized vehicles needs to be replaced for most of the park. This includes the 
borders for driveways, roads and parking lots. There are numerous areas with no barriers 
present. Vehicle traffic needs to be restricted to designated areas.

Restrooms
Replace restroom with a modern facility that will accommodate heavy usage.

Repair Septic
The current leach field needs to be fixed along with the sewer lines. Piping is old and 
deteriorating and the leach field needs to be updated to meet regulations. This should be done 
in conjunction with replacing restrooms.

Roads
All roads are in a state of disrepair and need to be repaved or graveled.

Horseshoe Pitches
Horseshoes has declined in popularity, so most of the 50 horseshoe pitches should be removed 
and those remaining should be upgraded. Additionally, the lights should be repaired, replaced 
or removed.

New Ball Courts

Ball courts should be analyzed and changed to support modern community needs. For example, 
Bocce Ball or Pickle Ball courts might be popular. Community workshops would be a good way 
to inform this decision

Clearly defined parking will improve safety and enhance entries and exits.

6 of 7



Beach Shade Structures
The existing shade structures have been repaired numerous times, are near the end of their 
useful lives and should be replaced.

Resurface Tennis Courts
Based on community use and demand, courts should be resurfaced or replaced with something 
that is more in demand.

Trails
The size and location of this park make pathways with way finding signs and exercise stations 
ideal.

Replace Trees
Old trees that are at the end of their life need to be replaced

Soccer 
The County could use another soccer field and the Millpond would be a good location.

Turf
Consider replacing or aggressively rehabbing the turf on all ball fields and in other locations 
throughout the park.

Pond
The pond needs aquatic vegetation removed and the intake needs to be cleared and 
rehabilitated. 

Stage/Amphitheater
This is a great location for festivals and concerts and a permanent stage or amphitheater would 
support these activities. 

7 of 7



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Lucy Vincent 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract between County of Inyo and Brian McKinney, M.D. Inc. for psychiatry services 
at Inyo County Jail. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Brian McKinney, M.D. Inc. for jail 
psychiatry services in an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, for the period of July 1, 2019 to September 30, 2019, 
and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign the contract and HIPPA Business Associate Agreement.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This contract comes to you late as the contractor, Dr. Brian McKinney, was unsure whether he wanted to move 
forward with the provision of psychiatry services for the County in FY 2019/2020. Last year, Dr. McKinney 
provided telemedicine psychiatry services for the Inyo County Jail inmate population. These services were 
provided to an average of 10-12 inmates at any time and included medication assessment as well as 
consultation. Services provided were well received by inmates and Dr. McKinney worked well with the Jail Nurse. 
Ultimately, Dr. McKinney decided not to pursue further work in Inyo but agreed to provide jail psychiatry services 
until the end of September in order to assist with care while other alternatives were explored. We appreciate the 
services provided by Dr. McKinney during this time.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
You could choose not to ratify this contract. An alternative method to pay for these services would need to be 
identified.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Jail and other HHS programs involved in inmate services.
 
FINANCING:
Mental Health realignment funds as allowed in a correctional setting.  This contract is budgeted in Mental Health 
(045200) in Professional Services (5265).  No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. McKinney Contract FY19-20
2. Business Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 11/27/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/4/2019
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 12/5/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 12/6/2019
Lucy Vincent Approved - 12/9/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/9/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/9/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/10/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/10/2019
Rhiannon Baker Final Approval - 12/10/2019









































County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Ratify and Approve the payment of $1,633 of per diem costs to Maria Serna for the period of FY 
16/17 through FY 18/19. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the payment of $1,633.00 to Maria Serna for per diem reimbursement for the 
period of FY 16/17 through FY 18/19.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Maria Serna, a Program Services Assistant in our Aging Services programs, provided same day medical 
transportations and delivery of frozen meals to Tecopa during the period of September 2016 through June 2019.  
Each of these one day trips exceeded 75 miles one way from her workplace, making her eligible for per diem 
reimbursement, however Ms. Serna was not aware of her eligibility for reimbursement.  

This issue was brought forward to the Department when Ms. Serna realized that she was eligible for 
reimbursement.  The department, in coordination with the employee, reviewed  motor pool logs for the identified 
time period to determine the total amount of reimbursement owed to Ms. Serna.  The amount owed is outlined 
below:

FY 16/17               17 trips               $554.67
FY 17/18               26 trips               $789.33
FY 18/19                 9 trips               $289.00
                              TOTAL            $1,633.00

The Department respectfully requests your Board ratify and approve this reimbursement payment to Maria Serna 
consistent with any County or legal requirements.  
 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize the payment which may result in non-compliance with laws governing 
this type of reimbursement.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
NA
 
FINANCING:
This expense will be paid out of IC-GOLD (056100) in object code Travel (5331), as these are expenses for prior 
fiscal years that cannot be claimed through ESAAA (683000) due to state and federal funding claiming 
restrictions.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 12/11/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/11/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/11/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/11/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 12/11/2019



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Fiscal
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Request your Board ratify and approve purchases from Pueblo Hotel Supply in the amount of 
$14,190.37.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve purchases from Pueblo Hotel Supply for kitchen equipment in the amount of 
$14,190.37.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
County Purchasing Policy indicates that any department wide purchases from one vendor for over $10,000 must 
be approved by the Board.  HHS has 23 individual budgets that it oversees.  

Older kitchen equipment in our Lone Pine Senior Center has broken and has been deemed not repairable. We 
purchased a large skillet in early December that cost over $6,000.  When  quotes for the oven, which has since 
completely failed, were sent out, the same vendor was the lowest bidder, resulting in the amount taking us over 
the $10,000 threshold for the vendor.

We are requesting that you ratify the skillet purchase in the amount of $6,898.01 and approve the purchase of an 
oven in the amount of $7,292.36 from Pueblo Hotel Supply.   

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to approve this request which would result in our Department having to seek other 
options for food preparation in our Lone Pine.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None.
 
FINANCING:
General fund and donations.  This equipment is being purchased with monies in the Senior Citizens Trust 
(506903) and the county general fund budget ICGOLD (056100) in object code Equipment (5650)
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 12/11/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/11/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/11/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 12/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/11/2019
Rhiannon Baker Final Approval - 12/11/2019



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Kelley Williams 
 
SUBJECT:  Amend Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget to receive California Department of Fish and Wildlife - Oil 
Spill Prevention Response Grant funds and authorize the creation of a new budget to disburse the funds 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget as follows: A) create a new budget titled CDFW-Oil 
Spill Prevention Response Grant (budget number to be determined by the Auditor-Controller); and B) increase 
revenue in State Grants (Revenue Code #4498) by $35,000 and increase appropriation in Equipment (Object 
Code #5650) by $35,000 (4/5ths vote required).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On July 2, 2019, your Board approved Resolution 2019-29, entitled "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo, State of California, to Accept Grant Funds from the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, Office of Oil Spill Prevention Response, for Oil Spill Response Equipment".  

The CDFW-Oil Spill Prevention Response grant provides a non-matching funding opportunity for Inyo County to 
purchase oil spill response equipment.  This equipment can be deployed anywhere throughout the region to help 
protect local resources in the crucial minutes and hours before a full oil spill response team arrives on scene for 
appropriate clean up.

The fully executed California Department of Fish and Wildlife Agreement #Q1975068 has been received.  A new 
budget must now be created to appropriately disburse these grant funds.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Resolution 2019-29, entitled "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 
to Accept Grant Funds from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Oil Spill Prevention and 
Response, for Oil Spill Response Equipment"  was approved by the Board on July 2, 2019 and authorized the 
County Administrative Officer/Director of Emergency Services to accept the $35,000 in grant funds and sign any 
and all grant funding agreements and accompanying documents.

The CDFW Grant agreement and all accompanying documents have been signed and received by both parties.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to accept the California Department of Fish and Wildlife grant funds, but this is not 
recommended at this time.  This is an excellent and infrequent opportunity to receive non-matching funds that 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

can be used to purchase emergency response equipment.  This equipment can be deployed immediately 
throughout the region.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Office of Emergency Services, Sheriff's Office, Public Works-Road Department, Environmental 
Health, Risk Department and local Volunteer Fire Departments.
 
FINANCING:
Grant is 100% funded through the California Department of Fish and Wildlife.  The Grant performance period is 
July 2019 through June of 2020
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20190702OilSpillGrantResolution#2019-29
2. Fully Executed Grant Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 12/5/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/5/2019
Denelle Carrington Approved - 12/5/2019
Kelley Williams Approved - 12/5/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/6/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/6/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/6/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 12/6/2019



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

             In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
                           County of Inyo, State of California  
              

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 2nd day of July 2019 an order was duly made 

and entered as follows: 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Emergency 
Services – Oil Spill 
Grant/Reso # 2019-
29 

Supervisor Griffiths and moved by Supervisor Totheroh to: A) approve Resolution No. 2019-29, 
titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, to 
Accept Grant Funds from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill 
Prevention and Response, for Oil Spill Response Equipment,” and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign; and B) appoint the County Administrative Officer/Director of Emergency Services as 
the authorized agent to accept the $35,000 in non-matching grant funds and sign any and all 
grant funding agreements and accompanying documents. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with 
Supervisor Tillemans absent. 
 

 
 

Routing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CC       
Purchasing   
Personnel   
Auditor    
CAO  Emergency Services 
Other:  
 DATE: July 2, 2019 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 2nd       
Day of  July, 2019  

 

 
 

CLINT G. QUILTER 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 
 

               
                             By: _____________________________ 



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent ! Departmental flCorrespondence Action

E Scheduled Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

rl

! Puolic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM Co u nty Ad m i n istrato r/Office of E me rge ncy Se rvices

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: July 2,20!9

SUBJECT: Resolution to accept grant funds from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill
Prevention and Response, and designate the lnyo County Administrative Officer/Director of Emergency Services, as the
County's Authorized Agent for executing actions necessary to accept the grant funding through the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife.

D E PARTME NTAL RE C OMMENDATI ON

Request your Board:
A) Approve Resolution No. 2019-XX entitled "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of tnyo,

State of California, to Accept Grant Funds from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of
Spill Prevention and Response, for Oil Spill Response Equipment,,; and

B) Appoint the lnyo County Administrative Officer/Director of Emergency Services, as the authorized agent to
accept the 535,000 in non-matching grant funds and sign any and all grant funding agreements and
accompanying documents.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION

ln October of 2018, the lnyo County Office of Emergency Services (OES) was contacted by the California Department
of Fish and Wildlife-Office of Spill Prevention and Response (CDFW-OSPR), with information about a grant
opportunity being offered to local governments. The grant offered 535,000 in non-matching funds to be used
towards the purchase of oil spill response equipment that would help protect local resources in the crucial minutes
and hours before a full response team is able to arrive. ln some situations, response for any kind of significant oil spill
emergency here in lnyo County could be at least 3 hours away.

ln response to the grant opportunity, lnyo County OES immediately submitted a grant application to become eligible
as one of those few local governments that would be considered for the S35,0OO award towards the oil spill
equipment. The City of Bishop and all of the local Tribes were all notified about this grant opportunity, as they too
were eligible to apply.'

ln March of 2Ot9, CDFW staff performed a site visit, as part of the evaluation of lnyo County's application for the
OSPR grant. Staff from the following lnyo County departments attended the site visit/meeting; Public Works, Road,
Environmental Health, Risk and the Office of Emergency Services.

On May 20,2019, the lnyo County Office of Emergency Services was notified by CDFW that lnyo County had been
chosen as one of the recipients of the 535,000 Oil Spill Response Equipment Grant. These grant funds will be used to
purchase a mobile trailer, a containment boom, absorbent materials, personal protective equipment and a boom
deployment-training course. The grant performance period will begin in July of 2019 and must be completed by
February 28,2O2O.



Agenda Request
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES

Your Board could choose not to accept these non-matching grant funds, but this is not recommended at this time.
This is an excellent and infrequent opportunity to receive match free State funds that can provide lnyo County and
the surrounding region with the ability to respond to the immediate needs of an oil spill.

OTHER AGENCYINVOLVEMENT

County Administrator/Office of Emergency Services, the Sheriff's Office, Public Works, Road Department,
Environmental Health Department, Risk Department and local Volunteer Fire Departments.

FINANCING

The 535,000 in grant funds will require no match. When the contract-related paperwork is provided, a new budget
for Fiscal Year 20t9-2020 will be created at that time.

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIG NATURE:
t9(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNry COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submr'ssrbn to the board

RELATED ITEMS (Musf be

Approved

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to
to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of per$ofnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

APPROVALS



RESOLUTTON NO. 2019-

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS FROM THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE,

OFFICE OF SPItt PREVENTION AND RESPONSE, FOR OIt SPITL RESPONSE EQUIPMENT

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo Office of Emergency Services applied to the California Department of Fish

and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention and Response, for oil spill response equipment for the County of
lnyo;

WHEREAS, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention and Response,

approved the County of lnyo Office of Emergency Services to receive 535,000 in oil spill response

equipment grant funds and now requires a resolution accepting these grant funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo as follows: the
lnyo County Administrative Officer, as the designated Director of Emergency Services, is hereby

appointed as the lnyo County Authorized Agent and is directed to prepare and sign any necessary

documents, and to take any actions as necessary or appropriate, to accept a California Department of
Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention and Response grant in the amount of S35,OO0 for oil spill
response equipment on behalf of the County of lnyo, a public entity established under the laws of the
State of California.

Passed and Adopted at a regular meeting of the lnyo County Board of Supervisors on July znd,2O!9by
the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN

ABSENT:

Rick Pucci, Chairperson
lnyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Boord

Dorcy Ellis, Assistont



Gayin Arewsome.. Govemor
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE IHARLTIN H, BINHAM, DiTrctoT
Office of Spill Prevention and Response
1700 K Street, Suite 250
Sacramento, Califomia 95811
Telephone: (916) 445-933S
www.wildlife ca.gov

May 20,2019

lnyo County Office of Emergency Services

fe]ley Williams, lnyo County Emergency Services Manager
P.O. Drawer N
136-A South Jackson Street
lndependence, CA 93526

Pete Barker
Local Government Outreach & Grants Coordinator
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
Office of Spill Prevention and Response

Dear Ms. Williams:

The Department of Fish and Wildlife's Office of Spill Prevention and Response (OSpR), has
lwarde{ the lnyo Co_qnlV Office of Emergency Services an Oil Spill Response Equipment
Grant of up to $35,000 for the purchase of oil spill response equipment and to secure the
necessary training, The equipment will provide the lnyo County Office of Emergency
Services and the sunounding region with the ability t6 responri to the immediaie neids of an
oilspill.

lnyo County Office of Emergency Services shallown the equipment and may use it without
obligation or limitation- The equipment will include, but not lie'limited to, a m'obile trailer, an
unspecified amount of containment boom, absorbent materials, personal protective
equipment, and a boom deployment-training course.

I look forward to working with y_ol gld your organization towards finalizing the Response
Equipment.Grant by February 28,2019. As wl discussed during our me6ting in March, this
grant shall be for the Department's new fiscal year, beginning on-or about.lut-y t, 201g. I will
be unable to begin any contract-related paperwork prior to ttrat time but you ar" rOf" to begin
your procurement process at any time. lf you have any questions, please feel free to e-mail
me at peter.barker@wildlife.ca.qov or reach me by phbne at (g16) 324-62s7.

Very respectfully,

ffi'



RESOLUTION NO. 2019.29

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS FROM THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE,

OFFICE OF SPILL PREVENTION AND RESPONSE, FOR OIL SPILL RESPONSE EQUIPMENT

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo Office of Emergency Services applied to the California Department of Fish

and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention and Response, for oil spill response equipment for the County of

lnyo;

WHEREAS, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention and Response,

approved the County of lnyo Office of Emergency Services to receive 535,000 in oil spill response

equipment grant funds and now requires a resolution accepting these grant funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo as follows: the

lnyo County Administrative Officer, as the designated Director of Emergency Services, is hereby

appointed as the lnyo County Authorized Agent and is directed to prepare and sign any necessary

documents, and to take any actions as necessary or appropriate, to accept a California Department of

Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention and Response grant in the amount of S35,000 for oil spill

response equipment on behalf of the County of lnyo, a public entity established under the laws of the

State of California.

Passed and Adopted at a regular meeting of the lnyo County Board of Supervisors on July znd,2OL9by

the following vote:

AYES: -4- Supervisors Griffiths, Kingsley, Pucci, Totheroh
NOES: -0-

ABSTAIN:-0-
ABSENT: -1- Supervisor Tillemans

Pu ChairpersonI,

lnyo County Board of Supervisors
Attest: Clint Quilter

Clerk the Boord

Assistont

















































County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of December 10, 2019.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/10/2019
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 12/10/2019



County of Inyo

Treasurer/Tax Collector
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL - NO 
ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 17, 2019 

FROM:  Alisha McMurtrie 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasury Status Report for Quarter Ending September 30, 2019. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report for the Quarter Ending March 31, 2019.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The report is provided pursuant to the provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. The primary 
purposes of the report are to disclose the following:

 the investments and deposits of the treasury;
 the cost basis and market values of the investments;
 compliance to the County Investment Policy;
 the weighted average of the investments; and
 the projected ability of the treasury to meet the expected expenditure requirements of the treasury's 

pooled participants for the next six months.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 53646(g) of the Government Code, copies of this report, while no longer mandated, will 
continue to be provided to the members of the Treasury Oversight Committee.
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Treasurer's Report for Quarter Ending September 30, 2019



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Alisha McMurtrie Created/Initiated - 11/26/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2019
Alisha McMurtrie Final Approval - 12/3/2019



AUSHA MCMURTRIE 
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

(P) 760-878-0312 
(F) 760-878-0311 

inyottc@inyocounty.us  

JOEY PETERSON 
ASSISTANT TREASURER-

TAX COLLECTOR 

MOANA CHAPMAN 
OFFICE TECHNICIAN III 

 

COUNTY OF INYO 
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

FABIOLA ISIDRO 
OFFICE TECHNICIAN III 

TO: 
FROM: 
SUBJECT: 
DATE: 

Honorable Members of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer-Tax Collector 
Report of the Status of the Inyo County Treasury as of: September 30, 2019 
November 18, 2019 

The following status report of the County Treasury as of 09/30/2019 is provided pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. 

The attached copy of the "Treasurer's Daily Reconciliation" provides a breakdown of the dollar 
amount of the Treasury assets by depository for monetary assets. 

The attached securities holdings report reflects, among other things, the following information 
regarding each security held: issuer, maturity date; CUSIP number; face  amount; cost basis; and 
market value (calculated by Merrill Lynch). 

The weighted average maturity of the investments of the Treasury was 550 days. 

The latest PARS/OPEB investment statement is attached for reference. 

It is anticipated that the County Treasury will be able to meet the liquidity requirements of its 
pooled participants for the next six months. 

The investment portfolio is in compliance with the Inyo County Treasury Investment Policy. 

NOTES: Regarding Inyo County's monetary assets held outside the County Treasury: 
• Various Inyo County Departments and treasury pool participants maintain and 

administer bank checking accounts outside the County Treasury. 
• Inyo County's PARS relationship for our OPEB investment began in June 2010. To 

date: the PARS balance as of:9/30/2019 was $7,414,749.28 (Principal: $4,424,326.00 
+ Interest = $3,112,698.39 less Fees: $-122,275.1 1) 

C: Members of the Inyo County Treasury Oversight Committee 

POST OFFICE DRAWER. 0 INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526-0614 



TREASURERS DAILY RECONCILIATION 

For the Business Day of: 
11/18/2019 

AUDITOR BALANCES: 

Beginning "Claim on Cash in Treasury" $ 	141,816,746.23 

Deposit Authorizations $ 	600,693,17 

Checks Paid on: 	 11/15/19 $ 	(64,199 241 

Account Analysis: 

Outgoing Debits: 

Ending "Claim on Cool, in Treasury" $ 	142,353,240.56 

TREASURER BALANCES: 

CASH ON HAND: 

Drawer $261.16 

Vault $2,175.00 

REMOTE DEPOSIT ON HAND: 

Date: 

Date: 

Date: 

BANK ACCOUNTS: 

Union Bank- General Account. $1,178,161.55 

Eastern Sierra Community Bank- Gen $2,340,828.43 

El Dorado 02107- Directs Account $10,446.47 

El Dorado 09703- Cash Account $173,698.56 

INVESTMENTS: 
Agency 	Limit 

Local Agency Investment Fund $ 	28,000,000.00 15.49% 	50,000,800 

UBS Money Market $ 	2,500,000.00 1.67% 	of 10.00% 

Local Agencies 5 	028,673 08 0.70% 	of 100.00% 

Federal Agencies $ 	78,749,714.00 56.47% 	of 100.00% 

Federal Agencies-Treasury Notes/Bonds $ 	1,964,607.50 4.60% 	of 100.0098 

Commercial Paper $ 	14,778,897.70 3.92% 	of 15,00% 

Corporate Obligation $ 	7,031,246.13 2.43% 	of 30.00% 

CDs $ 	12,365,000.60 10.39% 	of 30.00% 

Grand Cr1 Incorternents $ 	141,21A,218.99 

NOTES 

Maturities, 1 Year $ 	63,019,833.75 	42.26% of 60.80% 

GRAND TOTAL TREASURY BALANCE $144,923,790.46 

RECONCILIATION 

Treasury Over/Short: $ 	2,570,549.90 

Explanation: ($427,884.21) 11/18/19 REMOTE DEPOSIT IN TRANSIT 

($1,269.51) 11/18/19 Carmen Day Report- Misc/Teller Debit 

($296.38) 11/18/19 Aud: RTRN.Stale Dated CKB 4373822 

$3,000,000.00 11/18/2019 Settlement - CUSIP: 3134GUPP9 

$ 	2,570,549.90 

Prepared By Moana Chapman 



Inyo County 

Portfolio Holdings 

COMPLIANCE REPORT09-30-2019 

Report Format: By Transaction 

Group By: Asset Category 

Average By: Face Amount/ Shares 

Portfolio/ Report Group: All Portfolios 

As of 9/30/2019 

Dasaiption 	 CUSIP/Tiolcer 	% of Potifotlo 	Settlement Date 	frrM Q Cost 	Face Amount/Shares 	Cost Value 	Market Value 	Maturity Date 	Days To Maturity 	Accrued Interest 

Cerificate of Deposit - 30 % 

American Express UT 1.95 5f7/2020  02587DXT0 017 05/07/2015 1 950 245,000 00 245,00000 245,00000 05/07/2020 220 1,911 00 

American Express UT 2454/5/2022 02587DN38 0.18 04/05/2017 2.450 248000.00 248,00000 248000.00 04/05/2022 918 2,963.09 

Amencari State Bank IA 1 452/5/2020 029728AT9 017 02/05/2016 1 450 245,00000 245,00000 245,00000 02/05/2020 128 24332 

Apex Bank 1.5 10/12/2021 03753XAQ3 0.18 10/12/2016 1.500 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 10/12/2021 743 18345 

Bank Hapoalin NY 2051/15/2021 06251AL40 0.17 01/15/2016 2.050 245,000.00 245,00000 245,000.00 01/15/2021 473 1,059.54 

Barclays Bank DE 2.2 9/16/2020 06740KJK4 0.18 09/16/2015 2.200 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 09/16/2020 352 209.27 

Belmont Savings Bank MA 2 153/21/2022 080515BV0 018 03/20/2017 2,150 248,00000 248,00000 248,00000 03/21/2022 903 14608 

Beneficial Bank PA 1.254/27/2020 08173QBPO 0.18 04/27/2016 1.250 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,00000 04/27/2020 210 25.48 

BMW Bank NA UT 2.25 12/18/2020 05580ADM3 017 12/18/2015 2,250 245,00000 245,00000 245,00000 12/18/2020 445 1,57068 

Bridgewater Bank MN 1.58/17/2020 108622ET4 0.18 02/17/2016 1.500 248,00000 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/17/2020 322 132,49 

Capital One Bank 2.25 7/1/2020 140420SX9 018 07/01/2015 2,250 248,00000 248,000.00 248,000.00 07/01/2020 275 1,391.18 

Capital One VA 2.3 7/15/2020 14042E4P2 0.18 07/15/2015 2.300 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,00000 07/15/2020 289 1,20331 

Carroll County State Bank IA 1.2 8/12/2020 145087AH5 0,18 08/12/2016 1.200 248,000.00 248,00000 248,000.00 08/12/2020 317 14676 

Citbank UT 2.3 6/30/2020 17284DDN9 0.18 06/30/2015 2.300 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 06/30/2020 274 1,43772 

Citibank National SD 341/9/2024 17312QZ36 0,17 01/09/2019 3400 245,00000 245,00000 245,00000 01/09/2024 1,562 1,89422 

Commercial Bank Ml 1.755/29/2020 2012821-189 0.17 12/30/2015 1.750 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 05/29/2020 242 0.00 

Community Financial Services KY 1.6 2/1712021  20364ABA2 0.18 02/17/2016 1.600 248,00000 248,00000 248,00000 02/17/2021 506 141 33 

Continental Bank UT 111/29/2020 211163FQ8 0.18 04/29/2016 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 01/29/2020 121 1,150.99 

Discover Bank DE 	7511/2/2021 254672M39 0.17 11/02/2016 1.750 245,000.00 245,000 00 245,00000 11/02/2021 764 1,77373 

Everbank FL 2.05 8/28/2020 29976DA59 0.18 08/28/2015 2.050 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/28/2020 333 459.65 

Evergreen Bank IL 1.6 5/29/2020  300185FM2 0,18 05/31/2017 1,600 248,00000 248,00000 248,00000 05/29/2020 242 000 

First Business Bank WI 1.6 1/21/2020 	 ' 31938QR30 0.17 01/21/2016 1.600 245,000.00 245,00000 245,000.00 01/21/2020 113 76252 

First Service Bank AR 1,5 11/12/2020 33640VBG2 018 02/12/2016 1 500 248,00000 248,000.00 248,00000 11/12/2020 409 18345 

First Source Bank IN 1.8 2/28/2020 33646CFN9 0.18 08/28/2015 1.800 248,00000 248,00000 248,000.00 02128/2020 151 403.59 

First Technology CA 36 1/9/2024-20 33715LDF4 018 01/09/2019 3.600 249,00000 249,00000 249,00000 01/09/2024 1,562 51574 

Goldman Sacks Bank NY 1.9 5/6/2020 38148JSU6 0.18 05/06/2015 1.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 05/06/2020 219 1,897.71 

Guaranty State Bank KS 1.6 6/30/2020 401228AW1 0.17 12/30/2015 1.600 245,00000 245,000.00 245,000.00 06/30/2020 274 000 

HSBC Bank VA Step 12/9/2020 40434AE62 0.18 12/09/2015 2.353 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 12/09/2020 436 2,399.32 

Investors Community Bank WI 1,8 2/26/2021  46147USN1 0.18 02/27/2017 1.800 248,00000 248,00000 248,00000 02/26/2021 515 3669 

Iowa State Bank IA 1.55 7/29/2020  46256YAH2 0.17 01/29/2016 1.550 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 07/29/2020 303 655.46 

Iroquois Federal Savings IL 1,6 8/1212020  46355PBV9 0,18 02/12/2016 1.600 248,00000 248,00000 248,000.00 08/12/2020 317 19566 

Jefferson Financial LA 2.211/22/2021 474067AJ4 0.18 11/22/2017 2.200 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/22/2021 784 1,95818 

JPMorgan Bank OH 2.35 2/28/2022-19 48126XYN9 0.18 02/28/2017 2.350 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 02/28/2022,  882 31.93 

JPMorgan Chase OH 1.811/18/2021 48126XLB9 0.18 11/18/2016 1.800 248,000.00 248,00000 248,000.00 11/18/2021 780 525.90 

Kansas Statebank 1.55 8/19/2020  501 16CAJ8 0,18 02/19/2016 1,550 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/19/2020 324 11585 



LCA Bank UT 1.65 11/25/2019 501798HN5 018 11/23/2015 1.650 248000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/25/2019 58 1,457.42 

Lubbock National Bank TX 1.55 7/29/2020 549152CM6 0 17 01/29/2016 1.550 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 07/2912020 303 10.40 

Maple City Savings TXl.51217/2020 56511PAC2 018 12/07/2016 1.500 248,00000 248,000.00 248,000.00 12/07/2020 434 234.41 

Mercantil Commercial FL 1.65 6/24/2021 58733ACY3 0 18 06/24/2016 1.650 248,00000 248,000.00 248,00000 06/24/2021 633 1,098.67 

Morgan Stanley Bank UT 2.65 2/8/2023 61747MJ77 018 02/08/2018 2.650 248,00000 248,000.00 248,000.00 02/08/2023 1,227 954.29 

Mountain America UT 2.4 11/30/2022 62384RAD8 018 11/30/2017 2.400 248,00000 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/30/2022 1,157 244.60 

Privatebank & Trust 1.5 5/26/2021 74267GVG9 018 05/26/2016 1.500 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 05/26/2021 604 1,294.36 

Sallie Mae Bank UT 2 12/9/2019 795450XF7 017 12/09/2015 2.000 245,000.00 245,000,00 245,000.00 12/09/2019 70 1,516.99 

State Bank India NY 2.35 2/24/2022 8562846J8 018 02/24/2017 2.350 248,000.00 248,000,00 248,00000 02/24/2022 878 590.78 

Steams Bank MN 1.62/26/2020 857894TA7 018 02/24/2017 1,600 248,00000 248,000,00 248,00000 02/26/2020 149 6523 

Synchrony Bank UT 1.94/24/2020 87165FGF5 018 04/24/2015 1.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 04/24/2020 207 2,052.62 

Texas Exchange Bank TX 1.7 11/30/2021-19 88241TAV2 018 11/30/2016 1.700 248,000,00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/30/2021 792 0.00 

UBS Bank UT 1.65 617/2021 90348JAR1 0.18 06/07/2016 1.650 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 06/07/2021 816 257.85 

United Community Bank GA 2053/1/2022 9098.4P5A9 018 03/01/2017 2,050 248,00000 248,00000 248,00000 03/01/2022 883 40393 

Webbank UT 1.85 3/30/2020 947547JN6 018 03/30/2017 1.850 248,000.00 248,000 00 248,000.00 03/30/2020 182 0.00 

Sub Total/Average Certficate of Deposit -30% 8.76 1.905 12,365,000.00 12,365,000.00 12,365,000.00 498 37,906.86 

Commercial Paper - 15 % 

MUFG BANK LTD/NY0 3/16/2020 62479LCG8 142 07/03/2019 2153 2,000,000 00 11 969,731.11 2,000,000.00 03/16/2020 168 0.00 

NATIXIS NYO11/26/2019 63873KY50 213 07/26/2019 2.217 3,000,000.00 2,977,450.00 3,000,000.00 11/26/2019 57 0.00 

NATIXIS NY 02/21/2020 63873JBM1 283 05/30/2019 2443 4,000,00000 3,928,80000 4,000,00000 02/21/2020 144 0.00 

NATIXIS NY 0 3/17)2020 63873JCH1 283 07/11/2019 2.193 4,000,000.00 3,940,000.00 4,000,000.00 03/17/2020 169 000 

Toyota Motor Credit 01/1712020 89233GAH9 1 42 04/25/2019 2.547 2,000,000.00 1.962,916.67 2,000,000.00 01/17/2020 109 000 

Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper - iS % 1063 2.306 15,000,000.00 14,778,897.78 15,000,000.00 132 0.00 

Coporate Obligation - 30 % 

IBM Corporation 2252/19/2021-20 459200JF9 071 02/19/2016 2.174 1,000,000.00 1,003,600,00 1,000,000.00 02/19/2021 508 2,562.50 

PNC Bank 2.6 7/21/2020-15 69353RES3 071 07/21/2015 2.016 1,000,000.00 1,027,646.53 1,000,000.00 07/21/2020 295 4,983.33 

Sub Total / Average Coporale Obligation - 30% 1 42 2.095 2,000,000.00 2,031,246.53 2,000,000.00 402 7,545.83 

Federal Agencies - 100% 

FFCB 1.19 7/13/2020-17 3133EGLB9 142 07/13/2016 1.203 2,000,000 00 1,999,000,00 2,000,000.00 07/13/2020 287 5,090.56 

FFCB 1.3 11/25/2019-16 3133EGBK0 1 42 05/25/2016 1,344 2,000,000 00 1,997,000 00 2,000,000 00 11/25/2019 56 9,027.78 

FFCB 1.42 5/18/2020-16 3133EGAX3 071 05/18/2016 1.433 1,000,000.00 999,490.00 1,000,000.00 05/18/2020 231 5,206.67 

FFCB 29/12/2022-17 3133EHXZ1 2 13 09/12/2017 2,000 3,000,00000 3,000,00000 3,000,00000 09/12/2022 1,078 3,00000 

FFCB-2.15 7/12/2022-18 3133EHQZ9 1.42 07/12/2017 2.150 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 07/12/2022 1,016 9,316.67 

FFCB 2159/28/2022-17 3133EHA78 2 13 09/28/2017 2.150 3,000,00000 3,000,00000 3,000,00000 09/28/2022 1,094 35833 

FFCB 2.36/7/2023-21 3133EKNY8 1.42 06/07/2019 2.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 06/07/2023 1,346 14,438.89 

FFCB 2755/26/2020 3133EJW88 267 11/28/2018 2,750 3,775,00000 3,775,00000 3,775,000.00 05/26/2020 239 35,757.64 

FFCB 2.76 5/5/2020 3133EJ051 213 11/28/2018 2.760 3,000,00000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 05/05/2020 218 33,350.00 

FFCB 2.8 12/17/2021 3133E,13133 354 12/17/2018 2800 5,000,00000 5,000,000.00 5,000,00000 12/17/2021 809 40,05558 

FHLB 1.6 4/13/2020 3130AB3F1 071 04/13/2017 1.600 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 04/13/2020 196 7,422.22 

FHLB 187511/29/2021 3130AABG2 142 11/30/2016 2.115 2,000,000 00 1,977,324.00 2,000,000.00 11/29/2021 791 12,604.17 

FHLB 2.2 1/29/2021-19 3130ADC26 1 42 01/29/2018 2.200 2,000,00000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 01/29/2021 487 7,455.56 

FHLB 2.55 6/5/2024-20 3130AGKBO 2 13 06/05/2019 2,550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 06/05/2024 1.710 24,437.50 

FHLB 31/29/2024-20 3130AFNZ6 1 42 01/29/2019 3.000 2,000,00000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 01/29/2024 1,582 10,166.67 

FHLB Step 4/15/2024-20 3130AGAA3 213 04/15/2019 2.749 3,000,00000 3.000,00000 3,000,00000 04/15/2024 1.659 33,687.50 

FHLB Step 9/3012021-19 3130A9DH1 2.13 09/30/2016 1.827 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 09/30/2021 731 0.00 

FHLMC 1.3511/2612019-19 3134G9KW6 071 05/26/2016 1.350 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 11/26/2019 57 4,650.00 



FHLMC 1.7 12/2212020 3134GBSAI 1.42 06/22/2017 1.700 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,00000 12/22/2020 449 9,25556 

FHLMC 2 1/8/2021-20 3134GTZM8 2.83 07/08/2019 2.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,00000 4,000,00000 01/08/2021 466 1822222 

FHLMC 2 10/27/2021-19 3134GBWK4 2.13 07/27/2017 2.000 3,000,00000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 10127/2021 758 25,500.00 

FHLMC 2.02 11/24/2021-19 3134GBMX7 072 05/24/2017 2,020 1,020,00000 1,020,00000 1,020,00000 11124/2021 786 7,211 40 

FHLMC 2.15 8/19/2024-20 3134GT2L6 213 08/1912019 2.150 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,00000 08/19/2024 1,785 7,34583 

FHLMC 2.25 8/5/2024-20 3134GTQ30 0.71 08/05/2019 Z250 1,000,000.00 1,000,00000 11 000,000.00 08/05/2024 1,771 3,437.50 

FHLMC 2.3 7/30/2024-20 3134GTP56 1.42 07130/2019 2.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 07/30/2024 1,785 7,666.67 

FHLMC 2.5 10/30/2020-19 3134GTKK8 4.25 04/3012019 2.500 6.000.00000 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 10/30/2020 396 62,50000 

FHLMC 25 6/6/2022-19 3134GTSD6 1.42 06/06/2019 2.500 2,000,00000 2,000,00000 2,000,000.00 06/06/2022 980 15,83333 

FHLMC 2.75 4/15/2024-19 3134GT6Q5 1,42 04/15/2019 2.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,00000 04/15/2024 1,659 25,208.33 

FHLMC Step 4/24/2020 3134GBGD8 1.42 04/24/2017 1.695 2,000,000.00 1,998,000.00 2,000,000.00 04/24/2020 207 17,33333 

FHLMC Step 6/15/2022-19 3134GBRV6 071 06/15/2017 2.420 1,000,000.00 1,000,00000 1,000,000.00 06/15/2022 989 5,83333 

FNMA 1.25 10/28/2019-19 3135G0Q71 1.42 10/28/2016 1.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 10/28/2019 28 10,555.56 

FNMA 1.25 5/612021  3135G0K69 142 05/16/2016 1,418 2,000,00000 1,983,90000 2,000,00000 05/06/2021 584 10,00000 

FNMA 1.4 11/26/2019-19 3136G2YA9 142 02/26/2016 1.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 11/26/2019 57 2,64444 

FNMA 1.5 512612021  3136G3PR0 1.42 05/26/2016 1.500 2,000,00000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 05/26/2021 604 10,33333 

FNMA 1.557/2712021-19 3136G31-124 425 07/27/2016 1.550 6,000,000.00 6,000,00000 6,000,000.00 07/27/2021 666 16,275.00 

Sub Total / Average Federal Agencies -100% 61.49 2.120 86,795,000.00 86,749,714.00 86,795,000.00 785 511,181 55 

Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M 

LAIF LGIP LAIF4000 1452 09/30/2018 2280 20,500,00000 20,500,00000 20,500.00000 N/A 1 

Sub Total / Average Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M 14.52 2.280 20,500,000.00 20,500,000.00 20,500,000.00 1 0,00 

Treasury Notes I Bonds -100% 

T-Note 1.5 7/15/2020 9128282,18 1.42 07/15/2017 2.110 2,000,000.00 1,964,687.50 2,000,000.00 07/15/2020 289 6,277.17 

Sub Total / Average Treasury Notes I Bonds - 100% 1.42 2.110 2,000,000.00 1964,687.0 2,000,000.00 289 6,277.17 

UBS Money Market -10% 

UBS Financial MM MM9591 1 77 06/30/2018 2,010 2,500,00000 2,500,00000 2,500,00000 N/A 1 

Sub Total / Average UBS Money Market - 10% 1 77 2.010 2,500,00000 2,500,000.00 2,500,00000 1 000 

Total /Aveffige 100 2.142 141,160,000.00 140,889,545.81 141,160,000.00 550 562,911.41 



3-Months 	1-Year 

0.73% 

Annualized Return 
3-Years 	5-Years 	10-Years 

6.19% 

Plan's Inception Date 

6/16/2010 6.76% 
	

7.69% 

1-Month 

0.73% 

PUBUC 
AGENCY 

RETIREMENT 
SERVICES PARS 

  

COUNTY OF IN YO 	 Account Report for the Period 

PARS OPEB Trust Program 

Clint Quilter 

County Administrative Officer 

County of Inyo 

P.O. Drawer N 

Independence, CA 93526 

9/1/2019 	to 	9/30/2019 

Account Summary 

Source 

Beginning Balance 
as of 

9/1/2019 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 

Ending 
Balance as of 

9/30/2019 

OPEB $7,362,036.06 $0.00 $54,622.40 $1,909.18 $0.00 $0.00 $7,414,749.28 

Totals $7,362,036.06 $0.00 $54,622.40 $1,909.18 $0.00 $0.00 $7,414,749.28 

Investment Selection 
Moderate HighMark PLUS 

Investment Objective 

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 
significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 
and fixed income investments. 

Investment Return 

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS; Not FDIC Insured, No Bank Guarantee; May Lose Value 

Past performance does not guarantee future results. Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns. Information Is deemed reliable but may be subject to 

change. 

Investment Return: Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return 

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administration, Trustee and Investment Management fees 

Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave., Suite tOO, Newport Beach, CA 92660 800 540.6369 Fax 949 250 t250 www.pars.org  



Department ofAlcoholic Beverage Control
APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLTC BEVERAGE LTCENSE(S)
ABC2IL 6/99\

State of California

TO: D_epartment of Alcoholic Beverage Control
48OO STOCKDALE HWY
STE 2I3
BAKERSFIELD, CA 93309
(66t) 39s-2731

DISTRICT SERVING LOCATION:

First Owner:
Name of Business:

Location of Business:

County:

Is Premises inside city limits?

Mailing Address :(If different
from
premises address)

Type oflicense(s):
Transferor's license/name :

BAKERSFIELD

JHK HOLDINGS LLC
BOULDER CREEK RV RESORT
2550 S STATE HIGITWAY3g5
LONE PINE, CA 93545

n\rYo

No Census Tract:

16813 OUTRIGGER CIRCLE
CERRITOS, CA 90703

File Number: 613245
ReceiptNumber: 2615472
Geographical Code: 1400
Copies Mailed Date: December 4,2019
Issued Date:

r-

_:.-- .
.':Je'.

il;

Ht
ffi€
u-trt

l

F*

l"'\

0008.00

20 Dropping Partner: Yes_ Nq\_
457797 / BOULDER CREEKRESORT LLC

License Tvpe
20 - Off-Sale Beer And Wine

Transaction Tvne
PER

Master Secondary LTAnd Count
Y

License Type
Application Fee

Application Fee

Application Fee

20 - Off-Sale BeerAnd Wine

Transaction Description Fee Code
STAIE FINGERPRINTS

PERSON TO PERSON TRF

FEDERAL FINGERPRINTS

ANNUALFEE

Dqp
2

0

2

0

NA

NA

NA

NA

Date
12/04/19

l2t04n9
l2l04n9
t2t04n9

Fee
$78.00

$335.00

$48.00

$400.00

Total $861.00

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? No
Have you ever violated any provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, or regulations of the
Department pertaining to the Act? No

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Applicant Name(s)

JHK HOLDINGS LLC

County of INYO Date: December 4,2019


	 Call to Order
	1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT
	3. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two
	4. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	5. Request Board: A) approve the attached job descrip
	Agenda Request Form
	CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER Job Description.

	6. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	7. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-59, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	EPMC Resolution 2019

	8. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-60, waiv
	Agenda Request Form
	Owens River Clean Up FEE WAIVER RESOLUTION 2019

	9. Request your Board approve Amendment #1 to the con
	Agenda Request Form
	Stinnett Amendment #1
	Original Contract - Stinnett

	10. Request Board certify that funds expended by Inyo
	Agenda Request Form
	Certification FY2019
	2019 Fund Expenditures and Revenues

	11. Request Board approve Amendment No. 01 to the Tase
	Agenda Request Form
	Axon Contract
	Axon Amendment 01
	20191216 Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA - Add 5 Body 2  10 Basic to 21234 11.20.19
	20191216 Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA - Add Redaction Assistant to 21234 Special Rate 11.20.19
	Axon Master Services and Purchasing Agreement

	12. Request Board: A) declare HdL SOFTWARE, LLC of Bre
	Agenda Request Form
	HdL Prime Software Agreement


	 Departmental
	13. Request Board consider the Letters of Interest rec
	Agenda Request Form
	Nate Gratz - Water Commission
	Mark Nechodom - Water Commission
	Holly Alpert - Water Commission
	Nate Gratz - Letter 2
	Holly Alpert - Letter 2 (and CV)

	14. Request Board consider three (3) Letters of Intere
	Agenda Request Form
	Notice of Vacancy - Fish and Wildlife Commission
	Toby Dickinson-F&W Comm.
	Warren Allsup-F&W Comm.
	Daniel McIntosh-F&G Comm. (Letter 1)
	Daniel McIntosh-F&W Comm. (Letter 2)

	15. Request Board approve proposed Resolution No. 2019
	Agenda Request Form
	INYO - Fully Executed Lease - 1.18.19
	CMFA JPA Agreement- County of Inyo
	CMFA Membership List (2)
	COB Resolution
	COB Lease Amendment
	Estoppel Certificate 10752171-v2
	Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement re 1360 North Main Street Bishop CA 10751595-v2

	16. Request Board: A) conduct a workshop on proposed c
	Agenda Request Form
	12.17.2019_Chapter 18.73 proposed updates FINAL

	17. Request Board: A) conduct workshop on the draft sc
	Agenda Request Form
	Scoping Comment Letter 12.17.2019

	18. Request Board: A) conduct a State of the Parks wor
	Agenda Request Form
	State of the Parks
	State of the Parks Appendix A Projects

	19. Request Board ratify and approve the contract betw
	Agenda Request Form
	McKinney Contract FY19-20
	Business Agreement

	20. Request Board ratify and approve the payment of $1
	Agenda Request Form

	21. Request Board ratify and approve purchases from Pu
	Agenda Request Form

	22. Request Board amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budg
	Agenda Request Form
	20190702OilSpillGrantResolution#2019-29
	Fully Executed Grant Agreement

	23. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	24. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational
	25. Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report f
	Agenda Request Form
	Treasurer's Report for Quarter Ending September 30, 2019

	26. Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control - Applica
	ABC License Application



